
 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
Board of Education  

 

 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
6:00 p.m. 

 
Board Room 

1601 E. Chestnut Avenue 
Santa Ana 

 

 
  José Alfredo Hernández, J.D.                Rob Richardson       Thelma Meléndez, Ph.D. 
         Vice President                                  President                  Secretary/ 
                       Superintendent 
  
        John Palacio                            Audrey Yamagata-Noji, Ph.D.               Roman A. Reyna 
             Member                   Clerk                     Member    
  

  
 

If special assistance is needed to participate in the Board meeting, please contact Board 
Recording Secretary, at (714) 558-5515.  Please call prior to the meeting to allow for 

reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting, per the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, Title II. 

 
 

 
Mission Statement 

 

The Santa Ana Unified School District is dedicated to high academic achievement, in a scholarly and 
supportive environment, ensuring that all students are  

prepared to accomplish their goals in life. 
 



 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING INFORMATION 

 
 
Role of the Board 
 
The Governing Board is elected by the community to provide leadership and citizen oversight of the District’s 
schools.  The Board works with the Superintendent to fulfill its major roles including: 

1. Setting a direction for the District. 
2. Providing a basic organizational structure for the SAUSD by establishing policies. 
3. Ensuring accountability. 
4. Providing community leadership on behalf of the District and public education. 

 
Agenda Items are provided to the Board of Education that includes the description of items of business to be 
considered by the Board for approval at Board Meetings.  These items contain recommendations; the Board 
may exercise action they believe is best for the SAUSD. 
 
Board Meeting Documentation 
 
Any and all supporting materials are made available to the public by the Public Information Office.  They may 
be reached from 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. at (714) 558-5555. 
 
Public Comments at Board Meetings 
 
The agenda shall provide members of the public the opportunity to address the Board regarding agenda items 
before or during the Board’s consideration of the item.  The agenda also provides members of the public an 
opportunity to testify at regular meetings on matters which are not on the agenda but which are within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. 
 
Individual speakers are allowed three minutes to address the Board on agenda or nonagenda items.  The Board 
may limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes.  With the Board’s consent, the Board 
President may increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and the 
number of persons wishing to be heard.  The Board President may take a poll of speakers for or against a 
particular issue and may ask that additional persons speak only if they have something new to add. 
 
The Board urges that complaints and derogatory remarks against a District employee be made in writing on 
forms available in the Office of the Superintendent.  This allows the District and the Board to examine more 
carefully the complaint and to initiate the appropriate investigation. 
 
Persons wishing to address the Board on an item on the agenda or an item of business in the Board’s jurisdiction 
are requested to complete a card.  This card is to be submitted to the Secretary of the Board.  The Request to 
Address the Board of Education cards are located on the table in the foyer. 
 
Televised Meeting Schedule 
 
The Regular Board of Education meetings are broadcast live on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each month 
on Channel 31.  The meeting is replayed on Tuesdays at 6:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 3:00 p.m., following the 
Board of Education meeting. 
 
Agenda and Minutes on District Website at http://www.sausd.us 
 
 

http://www.sausd.us


 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT           TUESDAY 
REGULAR MEETING                   1601 EAST CHESTNUT AVENUE              SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 

 SANTA ANA, CA  92701                         6:00 PM 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
 

CALL TO ORDER  
 
 

4:30 P.M. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
• See Closed Session Agenda below for matters to be considered at this time. 

 
 
RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING 
 
6:00 P.M. MEETING 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

 

• Announcements/Awards Received  
 

RECOGNITION 
  

• Customer Service Employee of the Month for September 2012, Rocio Dominguez 
 
 

PRESENTATION 
 

• Common Core State Standards Implementation Update – English Language Arts Focus 
 

• Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports 
 

 
 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (Pursuant to Government Code 54954.3) 

• Individuals or groups may make presentations or bring matters to the Board's attention that are within the Board's 
subject matter jurisdiction. 

 



 

 

1.0 APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1.1 Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting - September 11, 2012 
 

1.2 Approval of Agreement with Intel-Assess, Inc., for Development and Creation of 
Assessments for 2012-13 School Year 
 

1.3 Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Orange County United Way for 
Participation in Destination Graduation Initiative Grant for Intermediate Schools for 
2012-13 School Year 
 

1.4 Approval of Master Contracts and/or Individual Service Agreements with Nonpublic 
Schools and Agencies for Students with Disabilities for 2012-13 School Year 
 

1.5 Ratification of Payment and/or Reimbursement of Costs Incurred for Designated 
Instructional Services for Students with Disabilities for 2011-12 School Year 
 

1.6 Ratification of Provider Participation Agreement with California Department of Health 
Care Services for LEA Medi-Cal Billing Option Program 
 

1.7 Ratification of Purchase Order Summary and Listing of Orders $25,000 and Over for 
Period of August 29, 2012 through September 11, 2012 
 

1.8 Ratification of Expenditure Summary and Warrant Listing for Period of August 29, 2012 
through September 11, 2012 
 

1.9 Approval/Ratification of Listing of Agreements/Contracts with Santa Ana Unified School 
District and Various Consultants Submitted for Period of August 29, 2012 through 
September 11, 2012 
 

1.10 Approval of Disposal of Obsolete Unrepairable Computer Equipment, Miscellaneous 
Furniture, and Equipment 
 

1.11 Authorization to Obtain Bids for Purchase of Classroom and Office Furniture 
Districtwide 
 

1.12 Authorization to Obtain Bids for Installation of Structured Cabling System and Network 
Equipment at Various E-Rate Eligible Sites Districtwide 
 

1.13 Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Wide Area Network Services 
Districtwide Under E-Rate 
 

1.14 Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Various Telecommunication and 
Internet Access Services Districtwide Under E-Rate 
 



 

 

1.15 Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Cisco Base Maintenance for 
Maintenance of Newtwork Equipment and Cabling Districtwide Under E-Rate 
 

1.16 Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Lease of Copier Equipment 
Districtwide 
 

1.17 Approval of Rejection of Government Code §910 and §910.2 Claim Against Santa Ana 
Unified School District – File No. 12-06106 MH 
 

1.18 Acceptance of Completion of Contract for Bid Package No. 5 Ceramic Tile and Flooring 
at Willard Intermediate School Under Modernization Program 
 

1.19 Acceptance of Completion of Contract for Bid Package No. 15 Structural Steel, Metal 
Fabrication, Elevator Refurbishing, Handrails, Ornamental Steel Fence, Refurbish ADA 
Ramp, Concrete Patching, and Sacking at Willard Intermediate School Under 
Modernization Program 
 

1.20 Approval of Deductive Change Order No. 1 for Bid Package No. 2 Arch Wood Casework 
and Finish Carpentry at Willard Intermediate School Under Modernization Program 
 

Items removed from Consent Calendar for discussion and separate action:  
___________________________________________ 
 
REGULAR AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS 
 

2.0 Acceptance of Gifts in Accordance with Board Policy 3290 – Gifts, Grants, and Bequests 
 

3.0 Acceptance of Actuarial Study of Workers’ Compensation Program as of June 30, 2012 
 

4.0 Adoption of Resolution No. 12/13-2939 – To Support Schools and Local Public Safety 
Protection Act (Proposition 30) 
 

5.0 Board Policy 6163.2 – Animals at School (Revised: For Adoption) 
 

6.0 Administrative Regulation 4032 – Reasonable Accommodation (Revised: For 
Implementation) 
 

7.0 Approval of Personnel Calendar 
 

8.0 Approval to Call for Nomination and Submission of Letter of Support for California 
School Boards Association Director-at-Large, Asian/Pacific Islander 
 

9.0 Board and Staff Reports/Activities 
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
See Closed Session Agenda below for matters to be considered at this time. 

 



 

 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
 
  
A. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in Closed Session pursuant to 

Education Code Sections 35146 and 48918: 
 
 STUDENT EXPULSIONS AND DISCIPLINE ISSUES 
 
 
B. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in Closed Session pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.9 (a) (b) (1) and (c): 
 

 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

 
 
C. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in Closed Session pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54957 
 

 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
  

 
D. With respect to every item of business to be discussed in Closed Session pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54947.6: 
 
 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:   SAEA, CSEA, CWA 
           Bargaining Units 

                           Mr. Chad Hammitt, 
        District Negotiator 

 
 
The Board may exercise discretion to adjourn to Closed Session at any time during this meeting 
to instruct its representatives regarding negotiations with represented and unrepresented 
employees. 
 
 
RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING AND REPORT ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED 
SESSION THAT IS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED OUT AT THIS MEETING 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
FUTURE MEETING - The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Education will be held on 
Tuesday, October 9, 2012, at 6:00 p.m. 











Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

 

Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports 

(PBIS) 
 

September 25, 2012 

 

 

Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Superintendent, Ph.D. 

Doreen Lohnes, Assistant Superintendent, Support Services 

  



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Getting to the Core 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Fight Crime: Invest in Kids, endorses PBIS:        
This national anti-crime organization of sheriffs, 

police chiefs, and DA’s cites PBIS as a way to 
improve school climate and public safety. 

 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Fight Crime: Invest in Kids, endorses PBIS:        
This national anti-crime organization of sheriffs, 

police chiefs, and DA’s cites PBIS as a way to 
improve school climate and public safety. 

 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Fight Crime: Invest in Kids, endorses PBIS:        
This national anti-crime organization of sheriffs, 

police chiefs, and DA’s cites PBIS as a way to 
improve school climate and public safety. 

 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Input from the Continuous Improvement 

Team and Teacher Forums 

 

Continuous Improvement Team Comments on “Climate” April 2012 

• Involvement of students at their site and their relationship with their teachers 

• Would like consistent discipline plans district-wide  with consistent expectations and 

consequences 

 

Executive Summary for the Superintendent Community Engagement -Focus Group 

Reactions 

• Adopting consistent and uniform discipline procedures and expectations of students 

 

SAUSD Teacher Forums 

• We need a system of consistent discipline that helps all students to know what to 

expect 

• Dealing with discipline problems pulls down teaching, especially the troublemakers 

• When we build relationships, students are easier to know and that lowers the levels of 

problems in the class 

 

 
 

 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Orange County Register  
Monday, September 10, 2012 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Orange County Register  
Monday, September 10, 2012 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

PBIS, What is it?  

Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports  

 

• School-wide implementation of the best evidence-
based behavioral practices to improve academic 
achievement and behavior for students. 
 

 Through PBIS implementation, student academic 
engagement time increases. 

 

 By strengthening relationships among staff, 
students, parents, and community, PBIS teaches 
and reinforces pro-social behaviors, making 
students feel more connected to school. 

 

 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

PBIS, What does it look like? 

Teach Behaviors: To do versus what not to do 

 

 

 

Hallway   Restroom Lunch 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

All district schools are implementing PBIS – Within four cohorts 

PBIS, Who’s in it? 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

PBIS  
Webpage 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Exemplars: Expected Behaviors 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Exemplars: Behavioral Matrix 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Valley High School 
Classroom Behavioral Expectations 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Exemplars: PBIS Supporting Documents  



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Lowell Elementary 
Progressive Behavioral Practices  



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Valley High School 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

Diamond Elementary 



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

September 19,  2012 

Snap shot: PBIS in progress  



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

2012-13 ELEMENTARY EXPLORATION PLUS COHORT 

TRAINING 

 SEPTEMBER 19,  2012  



Superior Standards Supportive School Climate Successful Students 

SUPPORT: 

  CONTINUED TRAINING,  

COACHING, AND MONITORING  

BY DISTRICT PBIS TEAM 

PBIS Next Steps 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.1

rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text

















































































rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.2



 
 

September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 1 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District  

CONTENT LICENSE AND SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

This CONTENT LICENSE AND SERVICE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is entered into as 

of September 26, 2012 (the “Effective Date”) between Intel-Assess, Inc. with its principal place of 

business at 1032 Irving Street, #445, San Francisco, CA 94122-2200, (the “Company”), and Santa Ana 

Unified School District . (“Licensee”), with its principal place of business at 1601 E Chestnut Avenue, 

Santa Ana, CA 92701.  The Company and Licensee shall be collectively referred to herein as the 

“Parties,” or each may be referred to individually as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Company is a provider of assessment content and related tools; and, 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into a contractual relationship providing for the access and 

use of content of the Company to Licensee, all under the general terms provided for in this Agreement, 

subject to more specific terms and conditions in one or more Schedules which shall be attached to this 

Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and the mutual covenants and 

promises of the Parties herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. Definitions. 

a. “Applicable Schedule” means the Schedule attached to this Agreement containing the 

individualized terms and conditions applicable to specified Content.   

b. “Permissible Uses” means the use for the Content permitted under this Agreement as set 

forth on the Applicable Schedule.  

c. “Content” means the information described in the Applicable Schedule attached hereto. 

d. “Items” means all assessment test questions of any kind developed by the Company. 

e. “Formative Item Bank” means the set of items that are provided to the Company’s 

customers for their use in assessment development or to be used by the Company to develop assessments 

for the Company’s customers. These are Items are distinct from the Items included in the Quick Check 

assessments.  

f. “Quick Checks” means any or all of a series of assessments developed by the Company 

and marketed under the name of “Quick Checks.” The Items on the Quick Checks will not appear in the 

Formative Item Bank and will be licensed separately from the Formative Item Bank. 

2. The Company’s Obligations.  In exchange for payment of the applicable Fee (as defined in 

Section 6), the Company shall provide to Licensee the Content described in the Applicable Schedules.  

3. Limited Use License; Ownership.   Any Content provided under an Applicable Schedule shall 

be subject to the following: 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 2 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

a. Grant of License.  Licensee shall be granted a nonexclusive, nontransferable, revocable, 

worldwide, limited license during the Term, subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof, to use the 

Content solely pursuant to the Permissible Uses (the “License”). 

b. Restrictions.  Licensee shall not, except as expressly provided otherwise herein: 

(i) transfer all or any part of the Content to any person or entity without the prior written consent of the 

Company in each instance; (ii) create a derivative work from the Content or any part thereof; (iii) 

sublicense, assign, delegate or otherwise transfer this Agreement, the License, the Content or any of the 

related rights or obligations for any reason without the prior written consent of the Company, in each such 

instance, unless as otherwise permitted by Section 12(b) herein; or (iv) otherwise use the Content for any 

use other than as expressly set forth herein.  In the event that the Company becomes aware that Licensee 

has breached any of the foregoing restrictions, this Agreement shall automatically and immediately 

terminate unless Licensee has cured such breach within thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice by the 

Company of such breach. 

c. Ownership.  As between the Company and Licensee, the Company shall retain all right, 

title and interest in and to all Content, including any reproductions or compilations thereof, and any 

updates to the Content (each as provided to Licensee hereunder), whether now existing or which may 

hereafter come into existence, including without limitation, copyright and other intellectual property and 

proprietary rights therein or appurtenant thereto, except as expressly provided herein.  Any modifications, 

improvements or changes to the Content made by Licensee shall immediately become the property of the 

Company and Licensee will sign any documents requested by the Company in order to document the 

transfer of any such modifications to the Company.   

4. Delivery of Content.  The Company shall provide Licensee with the Content in accordance with 

the delivery schedule, format and other specifications (the “Delivery Specifications”) set forth in the 

Applicable Schedule attached hereto.   

5. Licensee Obligations. 

a. Display of Content; Modifications.  Except as otherwise stated on the Applicable 

Schedule: (i) Licensee will not modify, translate, and/or edit the Content in any manner that (a) distorts or 

changes the meaning of the content, (b) causes otherwise non-defamatory, non-infringing content to 

defame or infringe the intellectual property rights of any person, or (c) otherwise violate any person’s 

personal proprietary or personal rights; and (ii) Licensee may not edit, alter or translate the form or 

substance of the Content in any manner without the prior written approval of the Company, except that 

Licensee may make minor non-substantive formatting changes to the Content. 

b. Removal of Content.  Subject to the Applicable Schedule, if the Company requests that 

any portion of the Content be deleted, replaced or made inaccessible because such Content contains 

material errors, is or could be subject to a third party claim or for any other similar reason, then Licensee 

shall immediately (or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable taking into account the exigency of the 

circumstances) cease using such deleted Content from all Permissible Uses.  In the event that any Content 

contains material errors, the Company shall use reasonable efforts to correct such errors within five (5) 

business days of notice or discovery of such errors. 

c. Security Measures.  Licensee shall take all reasonable steps and precautions, and 

implement all reasonable procedures, that are necessary to prevent or restrict the unauthorized use, 

downloading, transmission, display, copying or other dissemination of the Content in a manner 

inconsistent with the permitted rights and uses in the Content expressly granted under this Agreement.  

Licensee shall be responsible to the Company for any unauthorized use of or access to the Content by its 

employees or agents. 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 3 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

d. Additional Obligations.  Licensee and the Company shall comply with any additional 

obligations specified in the Applicable Schedule. 

6.  Fees.   

a. Pricing for Content.  Licensee agrees to pay the Company the amounts and at the times 

set forth in the Applicable Schedule hereto (the “Fees”).     

b. Taxes; Collection Costs.  The Parties acknowledge that the Fees have been established 

under the assumption that no federal, state, local or foreign taxes, duties, tariffs, levies or similar 

assessments (collectively, “Taxes”) are due on the licensing of the Content under this Agreement.  In the 

event such Taxes should become due, the Fee shall be increased by the amount of such Tax, provided that 

all Taxes shall be separately itemized on the applicable invoice, indicating the Tax and the charges 

against which such Tax was calculated.  In no event will Licensee pay any Taxes in respect of the 

Company’s net income, gross revenue, franchise, corporate excise or privilege, personal, or property.  If 

Licensee fails to pay any amounts due under this Agreement, including Fees and Taxes, Licensee will pay 

all expenses incurred by the Company, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to collect such amounts.   

c.  Audit Rights and Licensee’s Obligation to Pay Fees.  Licensee agrees to keep accurate 

books and records at its principal place of business regarding its uses of the Content and its calculation of 

the Fees.  Up to one time during each calendar year the Company shall be entitled to have a Certified 

Public Accountant, or other person acceptable to the Company in the Company’s unfettered discretion, 

inspect, copy and audit, at the Company’s expense, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice and during 

ordinary business hours, such of Licensee’s books and records as are reasonably necessary to verify such 

uses and calculations. If Licensee disputes the result of the Company’s audit, Licensee shall pay the 

Company any undisputed underpayment of Fees within twenty (20) days of the completed audit and 

notice of such undisputed underpayment.  If Licensee fails to do so, the Company may terminate this 

Agreement upon 15 days notice.  In the event that Licensee underpaid any Fees by five  percent (5%) or 

more within a six (6) month period, the expense of auditing Licensee’s records shall be borne by 

Licensee, payable within thirty (30) days of the completed audit and notice of such obligation.  Audit 

rights are subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement.  All information, documents, and 

copies obtained by the Company or any party conducting or participating in any audit hereunder on behalf 

of or in conjunction with the Company shall be treated as Confidential Information hereunder; provided, 

however, that such Confidential Information may be disclosed pursuant to any legal dispute resolution 

process between the Parties regarding such audit, whether in arbitration or in a court of law.   

7.  Limited Warranties and Disclaimer of Warranties and Representations.  Licensee represents 

and warrants that it has the right, power, and authority to enter into and be bound by the terms of this 

Agreement and to perform its obligations under this Agreement without the approval or consent of any 

other party. The Company represents and warrants that (i) except as disclosed on the Applicable 

Schedule, it has the right, power, and authority to enter into and be bound by the terms of this Agreement 

and to perform its obligations under this Agreement without the approval or consent of any other party; 

and (ii) it has sufficient title, right and interest in and to the rights granted to Licensee hereunder to enter 

into and perform this Agreement and to enable Licensee to perform hereunder.  The Company does not 

assume, and hereby disclaims, any liability to any party for any loss or damage caused by errors or 

omissions in the Content and/or Services, whether such errors or omissions result from negligence, 

accident or any other cause.  OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY SPECIFIED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 

NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, 

NONINFRINGEMENT, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, DESIGN, CONDITION, 

PERFORMANCE, AVAILABILITY, FUNCTIONALITY AND/OR QUALITY.  THE COMPANY 

MAKES NO WARRANTY, GUARANTEE, OR REPRESENTATION THAT ANY CONTENT 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 4 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

PROVIDED TO LICENSEE WILL BE FREE FROM ERRORS OR THAT ITS USE WILL BE 

UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE OR MAKE ANY OTHER REPRESENTATIONS 

REGARDING THE USE, OR THE RESULTS OF THE USE, OR OTHERWISE.  ALL CONTENT 

PROVIDED HEREIN BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY IS PROVIDED ON AN “AS IS” 

BASIS.   

8. Indemnification. 

a. The Company’s Indemnification.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless Licensee, its parents, affiliates and subsidiaries, and its and their officers, directors, 

shareholders, general partners, limited partners, employees and agents (the “Licensee Parties”) from and 

against any losses, settlements, claims, actions, suits, proceedings, judgments, awards, liabilities, 

demands, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), brought by any third parties against 

the Licensee Parties which allege, arise out of, relate to or result from: (a) a claim that the Content as 

originally delivered to Licensee or as modified by the Company and used by Licensee solely as permitted 

by this Agreement, infringes, misappropriates, or violates any copyright, trademark, patent right or other 

intellectual property right of any third party; (b) the Content being deemed obscene; or (c) the Company’s 

breach of its representations and warranties hereunder.   

b. Licensee Indemnification.  Licensee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

Company, its parents, affiliates and subsidiaries, and its and their officers, directors, shareholders, 

employees and agents (“the Company Parties”), from and against any losses, settlements, claims, actions, 

suits, proceedings, judgments, awards, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees) brought by any third parties against the Company Parties which arise out of or as a result of: (a) any 

use by Licensee of the Content hereunder in violation of this Agreement; (b) and breach by Licensee of its 

representations and warranties hereunder; (c) to the extent permitted under this Agreement or any 

Applicable Schedule, any translations to languages other than English of the Content by Licensee to the 

extent such losses are attributable to the actual translation; or (d) any damage caused by any improper 

action of Licensee, including  but  not limited to the inclusion of errors or incorrect data in the Content or 

any modified Content. 

c. Indemnification Procedure.  Each Party’s indemnification obligations hereunder shall 

be subject to:  (i) the indemnified party’s prompt notification to the indemnifying party with respect to the 

pertinent third party claims, although failure to provide such notification shall not excuse the 

indemnifying party’s obligations hereunder except to the extent of any material prejudice as a direct result 

of such failure; (ii) the indemnifying party’s sole control of the settlement or defense of the pertinent third 

party claims, although the indemnifying party shall not, without the prior written approval of the 

indemnified party, settle or dispose of any claims in a manner that materially adversely affects the 

indemnified party’s rights or interests without the indemnified party’s prior written consent; and (iii) the 

indemnified party’s provision of reasonable assistance to the indemnifying party, at the indemnifying 

party’s expense, in defending the claim.  The indemnified party shall have the right to participate at its 

own expense in the defense of an indemnified claim.  

d. Limitation on Indemnity.  The indemnity set forth in Section 8(a) above will not extend 

to any third-party infringement claims resulting, in whole or in part, from (i) any modification of the 

Content by Licensee or persons acting under the control or direction of Licensee, to the extent that such 

modification alone gives rise to the infringement claims, (ii) the use of all or any portion of the Content in 

combination with any other software, hardware or server, if such infringement would have been avoided 

without the use of such software, hardware or server, (iii) the use of the Content by Licensee or persons 

acting under its control in any manner or application for which the same were not designed to be used, or 

(iii) the use of the Content by Licensee to make unsolicited communications (including, without 

limitation, communications via e-mail, faxes, or telephone) to third parties. 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 5 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

9. Confidential Information.  Each Party understands and agrees that in the performance of this 

Agreement it may have access to private or confidential, non-public information of the other Party, or the 

other Party’s parent company, subsidiaries and affiliates, and its and their customers and suppliers, 

including but not limited to, trade secrets, marketing and business plans, customer information and 

technical specifications and information (the “Confidential Information”).  Each Party agrees that:  (1) all 

Confidential Information shall remain the exclusive property of the owner thereof; and (2) it shall 

maintain, and shall cause its employees, subcontractors and other agents to maintain, the confidentiality 

and secrecy of the other Party’s Confidential Information.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential 

Information shall not include any information to the extent it (i) is or becomes a part of the public domain 

through no act or omission of the receiving party, (ii) is rightfully in the receiving party’s possession, 

without obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, prior to the disclosing party’s disclosure, (iii) is 

lawfully disclosed to the receiving party by a third party having no obligation of confidentiality with 

respect thereto, (iv) is independently developed by or on behalf of the receiving party, (v) is released from 

confidential treatment by written consent of the disclosing party thereof; or (vi) is required to be disclosed 

by applicable law or by request from a governmental agency, provided that the receiving party gives the 

disclosing party prior written notice of such disclosure such that the disclosing party can obtain an 

appropriate protective order or similar remedy if it so desires.  Without limiting the foregoing, the 

following shall be considered Confidential Information: (a) the terms of this Agreement, including 

without limitation the Fees except as required by applicable law or by request from a governmental 

agency; (b) programs and computer code used in the formatting and transmission of Content between the 

Parties; and (c) the Content.  The provisions of this Section 9 shall survive any expiration or termination 

of this Agreement for a period of three years after such expiration or termination. 

10. Limitation of Damages. 

a. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH BELOW, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE 

OTHER PARTY UNDER CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER LEGAL 

THEORY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE 

DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT (EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN 

ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES), INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 

DAMAGES ARISING FROM LOSS OF BUSINESS, ANTICIPATED PROFITS OR REVENUE.  IN 

NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING FROM OR UNDER 

THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE GREATER OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT PAID BY LICENSEE 

TO THE COMPANY UNDER THE APPLICABLE SCHEDULE IN A ONE-YEAR PERIOD OR 

$100,000, PROVIDED THAT THE LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL 

NOT APPLY TO (A) EACH PARTY’S CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION OBLIGATIONS UNDER 

SECTION 9, (B) CLAIMS FOR WHICH EITHER PARTY HAS AGREED TO INDEMNIFY THE 

OTHER PARTY PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR (C) TO DAMAGES CAUSED BY THE 

GROSS NEGLIGENCE, BAD FAITH, OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF A PARTY OR ITS 

PERSONNEL.   

b. The foregoing is subject to any additional limitations contained in the Applicable 

Schedule. 

11. Term; Termination. 

a. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall run concurrently with the term(s) as set forth on 

the Applicable Schedule. 

b. Termination by Either Party.  In addition to any rights set forth in this Agreement, 

either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately if the other Party: (i) is in material breach of this 

Agreement and fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days after being notified, in writing, of such 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 6 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

breach (except with respect to Licensee’s failure to pay applicable Fees, in which case Licensee shall 

have twenty (20) days after being notified in writing of such breach to cure); (ii) files a petition in 

bankruptcy, or has such a petition filed against it; or (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 

or if a receiver, trustee, custodian or similar agent is appointed or takes possession of its assets.    

Licensee may terminate this Agreement upon three months written notice to the Company. 

c. Effect of Expiration or Termination.  Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement for any reason, each Party shall return all documents, notes and other tangible and intangible 

embodiments of the other Party’s Confidential Information. 

d. Survival of Payment Obligations.  Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall 

not affect the obligation of either Party to pay all amounts owing or to become owing pursuant to this 

Agreement, subject to any applicable refund. 

12. Miscellaneous. 

a. Notices.  All notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, or by overnight courier service, to the address set forth below each Party’s 

signature, or to such other addresses as may be stipulated in writing by the Parties pursuant hereto.  

Unless otherwise provided, notice shall be effective on the date it is officially recorded as delivered by 

return receipt or equivalent.   

b. Assignment.  Neither Party shall assign this Agreement in whole or part without the prior 

written consent of the other Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, except that either 

Party may assign this Agreement in its entirety or an individual schedule without any consent of the other 

Party in connection with a merger, reorganization or sale of all or substantially all of the assets or 

business to which this Agreement or individual schedule relates. 

 c. Force Majeure. If either Party is prevented from performing any of its duties and 

obligations hereunder (other than duties or obligations with respect to payment) in a timely manner by 

reason of any act of God, strike, labor dispute, flood, public disaster, war, acts of terrorism, equipment or 

technical malfunctions or failures (including without limitation telecommunication failures, systemic 

Internet failures and/or any interruptions in services of Internet Service Providers), power failures or 

interruptions, or any other reason beyond its reasonable control, such condition shall be deemed to be a 

valid excuse for delay of performance or for nonperformance of any such duty or obligation for the period 

during which such conditions exists.   

d. Relationship of the Parties. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, this Agreement 

does not, and shall not be deemed to, constitute a partnership or joint venture between the Parties and 

neither Party nor any of their respective directors, officers, employees or agents shall, by virtue of the 

performance of their obligations under this Agreement, be deemed to be an agent or employee of the 

other. 

e. No Waiver.  The waiver of any breach or failure of a term or condition of this Agreement 

by any Party shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or failure of the same term or 

condition, or a waiver of any other breach or failure of a term or condition of this Agreement. 

f. Survival of Certain Provisions. Notwithstanding the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement, the provisions of Sections 1, 3(c), 6, 7, 8, 9 (as provided in the last sentence of such Section), 

10, 11(c), 11(d) and 12 shall survive and continue and shall bind the Parties and their legal 

representatives, successors and permitted assigns. 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 7 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

g. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance 

with, the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts made and performed in California without 

regard to conflict of laws principles which would result in the application of the laws of any other 

jurisdiction.  The Parties hereto submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located 

in the State of California, for the purpose of resolving any dispute relating to the subject matter of this 

Agreement or the relationship between the Parties pursuant to this Agreement. 

h. Announcements.   The Company shall be permitted to identify and use Licensee’s name 

and logo in marketing materials, including but not limited to the Company’s website and written 

materials.  

i. Entire Agreement and Precedence.  This Agreement, together with the attached 

Schedules which are incorporated by reference, constitutes the complete agreement between the Parties 

and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements or representations, written or oral, concerning 

the subject matter of this Agreement and such Schedules.  This Agreement may not be modified or 

amended except in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each Party. No other act, 

document, usage or custom shall be deemed to amend or modify this Agreement.  In the event of conflict 

among the terms and conditions of the document of this Agreement and the exhibits or Addenda thereto, 

the exhibits or Addenda shall control. 

j. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.  All 

signed fax copies of the Agreement shall be deemed as valid as originals. 

[Signatures appear on following page.] 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 8 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

WHEREFORE, for the purpose of being bound, the Parties execute this Agreement by their duly 

authorized representatives as of the date set forth above. 

 

INTEL-ASSESS, INC.   Santa Ana Unified School District  

 

 

By:  By:          

 

Date: September 18, 2012  Date:         

 

Name: Jaime Goldfarb, Ph.D.  Name:   

 

Title: President  Title:   

 

 

Santa Ana Unified School District  Billing Information 

Purchase Order #:    

Name:   

Phone Number:    

E-Mail Address:    

Billing Address 1   

Billing Address 2   

Billing City, State, Zip     

 

Instructions: 
1. Sign and date this page 

2. Provide PO # and accounting information 

3. Keep copy of the entire contract for your files 

4. Fax PO & entire contract to: 925.263.1689 

5. Mail entire original contract to address 

below: 

District Notice Address: 

 

1601 E Chestnut Avenue 

Santa Ana, CA 92701 

  

Intel-Assess, Inc. 

Attn: Contracts 

1032 Irving Street, #445 

San Francisco, CA 94122-2200 

Fax: (925) 263-1689 

 

 

 

 

For internal use only: 

TM:20120814-20130813; CLE(F):48000(0); GA:2-12; QCML:2-11; QCME(F):0(0); CI:70; CP:0; IE:70; FR:0; 

UA:20; AC(F):0(0); AU(F):0(0); PR:0;    

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
September 26, 2012

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
Michael P. Bishop Sr., CBO

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
Deputy Superintendent, Operations

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
1601 E. Chestnut Ave.

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
Santa Ana, CA 92701

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
714-558-

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
Accounts Payable

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text
5695

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text

jonathan.geiszler
Typewritten Text



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 9 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

SCHEDULE: Fee Summary and Order Form – September 26, 2012 – Santa Ana Unified 

School District  

In exchange for all the deliverables and services outlined in this agreement, Licensee shall pay the 

Company the following Fees according to the following schedule (payable in U.S. dollars). 

Term Fees   

Item Description Price 

Item Bank Per student fee**: $3.50               Number of Students: 48,000 

Grades Licensed: 2-12                 Term:  September 26, 2012 to  September 25, 2013 

$168,000.00 

Assessment 

Publishing 
Licensee's staff may create and publish any number of assessments using the online 

system. 

Included 

Customization* Custom Items: 70                         Item Modifications: 70 Included 

Quick Checks* 

Mastery 
As part of a district-wide package, all students licensed for use of the California Item 

Bank are licensed to use the Quick Checks Mastery Series Assessments. 

Included 

CCSS Transition 

Plan* 
Common Core Quick Checks and Quick Checks CCSS Performance Tasks included 

with license of California Quick Checks. 

Included 

Assessment 

Blueprint 

Creation 

Intel-Assess works with you to create an effective assessment program. In support, 

Intel-Assess provides access to its Assessment Blueprint Tool, which helps you to:  

 Determine item counts by standard; 

 Review individual assessments and your entire assessment program to 

ensure your educational goals will be met; and 

 Compare your assessment program to the State's blueprint. 

Included 

Implementation Intel-Assess provides an online implementation session to help you:  

 Define your assessment model to meet your educational goals;  

 Define the details of the assessment model; and  

 Review best practices in implementing an assessment program.  

Included 

Training 2 online training sessions to enable key district staff to make effective use of Intel-

Assess’ assessment blueprint and assessment creation tools to empower district staff 

to manage the Intel-Assess implementation. 

Included 

Support* Access to on-line support. Included 

Writing Prompts Writing prompts with scoring rubrics varied by genre and purpose for grades 2-12 Included 

CST Mirror 

Assessments* 
Access to any available CST Mirror Assessment that applies to the licensed grades. Included 

User 

Management* 
The Licensee will be responsible for its own user management  

 Total: $168,000.00 
 

*See attached schedules for details of the above services and products. 
**Bundled pricing requires district-wide 2-12 license. 
 

Notes: 

 Rationale Document: Each assessment includes a Rationale. 

 Additional on-site days can purchased at a rate of $1500 per session. 

 Additional Services: The Company may provide additional services for additional Fees to be determined. 

All payments shall be due and payable thirty (30) days from the Effective Date. The Company reserves the 

right to change the above prices provided that notice of such change is provided to Licensee at least thirty (30) 

days prior to the end of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term, as applicable. 

Payments shall be sent to: Intel-Assess, Inc., 1032 Irving Street, #445, San Francisco, CA 94122-2200, Attn: 

Accounts Receivable. 

 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 10 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

SCHEDULE: Content License – September 26, 2012 – Santa Ana Unified School District  

Term 

Licensee shall be granted a nonexclusive, nontransferable, revocable, worldwide, limited license during 

the Term, subject to all of the terms and conditions hereof, to use the Content solely pursuant to the 

Permissible Uses (the “License”). 

The License Term is from September 26, 2012 through  September 25, 2013, unless it is extended in 

writing and signed by both parties. 

At the termination of this Agreement, if the Agreement is not extended or renewed, the Licensee 

shall have no further rights to use any of the Content. In the event the Licensee has in its possession 

any printed or electronic documents containing any Content, these may not be used for any 

purposes without the written consent of the Company unless a current Agreement is effective 

except that the Assessments administered to students may be retained as student records. 

Further, if the Licensee chooses to extend or renew its license for a subset of the products and 

services provided by the Company in the initial term of the Agreement, the Licensee shall have no 

further rights to use any of the Content that is not included in the extension or renewal term in 

accordance with terms of this Agreement. 

This Agreement may be extended or expanded if both parties agree, in writing, to a change in the scope of 

work and/or Term of License, along with additional Fees. 

Description of Content for Platform Customers 

The Content shall consist of the Company’s Items, Assessments produced using the Company’s Items, 

and related documents set forth on or delivered through the Company’s website as maintained by the 

Company in its discretion and subject to additions and deletions in the ordinary course of business.  The 

website shall be subject to the Company’s terms of use. 

The Company segments its Content into groups for the purpose of licensing each group independently 

(each grouping a “Content Product”). The Licensee is licensed only to use, in accordance with the terms 

of this Agreement, those Content Products specifically identified in an applicable schedule. 

The License includes access to the Company’s web-based Assessment Creation Tool through which the 

Licensee will access Items and specify Assessments. Upon specification of such assessments, the 

Licensee will be able to automatically generate an electronic document of the Assessment and the 

Teacher Rationale Document. Documents will be generated in .pdf or other electronic format of the 

Company’s choice. The annual limit for the number of assessments Licensee may create is indicated in 

Schedule: Fee Summary and Order Form.  

Support 

The Company will provide customer support for Licensee through a single point of contact of Licensee. 

The Company will provide access to online support from 8AM to 5PM Monday through Friday. 

Company will assign an Account Manager for ongoing support and advice. All support issues and 

questions will be coordinated through the single point of contact.  

The Licensee will be responsible for the management of user accounts for the online system, including 

creation of accounts, recovery of lost passwords for users, disabling of accounts no longer in use, and 

maintenance of all user account permissions and settings.  

  



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 11 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

Content Updates 

The Company often adds new Content to its Content Products. The Company also often makes 

improvements to its existing Content. As new Content or improvements are completed and added to one 

of the Content Products, the Content will be made available through the Company’s online system to 

customers that have licensed the applicable Content Product. The Company may choose to develop new 

Content Products which will, at the sole discretion of the Company, be made available only for an 

additional fee. 

Maximum Number of User Accounts 

Licensee may create up to 20 user accounts to access the Company’s technology platform. Licensee may 

not share user accounts between individuals. The purpose of this limit is to prevent very large numbers of 

users from requiring training and support. The Company will increase the limit on request by reasonable 

numbers if the Licensee requires more than 20 individuals to access the technology, and if the Licensee 

agrees to provide their users necessary training. 

Permissible Uses 

The Content is licensed for the purpose of administering assessments to students in Licensee’s school 

district with the limitations outlined herein. Licensee may not resell or otherwise share the Content with 

any other organization. The Licensee may only use the Content with students included in the grades 

and up to the student counts indicated in the Schedule: Fee Summary and Order Form -  

September 26, 2012 (Santa Ana Unified School District ). 

 

  



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 12 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

SCHEDULE: Quick Checks – September 26, 2012 – Santa Ana Unified School District  

Licensed Quick Checks Series 
 

California Mastery ELA & Math: These are mastery level assessments in Math and English 

Language Arts, written to California Content Standards. The following grades are licensed to the 

District: Grades Licensed to the District: 2-11 

Common Core State Standards Mastery ELA & Math: These are mastery level assessments in 

Math and English Language Arts, written to the Common Core State Standards (CCSS). As the CCSS 

are recently released, development of the solution is on-going. To assist districts with their transition, 

the Company is licensing these assessments, as they become available, to the same students licensed 

for California Mastery ELA and Math Quick Checks for no additional cost in the initial year. 

Quick Checks CCSS Performance Items ELA & Math: These performance assessment items and 

written to the CCSS and are written to a constructed response format. They are designed for 

classroom use and include guides designed to help transition to CCSS and support the use of the 

Performance Items during instruction. They include Distractor Rationale Rubrics to help score and 

use the student work product to guide instruction. To assist districts with their transition, the 

Company is licensing these assessments, as they become available, to the same students licensed for 

California Mastery ELA and Math Quick Checks for no additional cost in the initial year. 
 

Description of the Quick Checks Products 

 

1. Quick Checks: 

a. are composed of a specific set of items; 

b. will be delivered in PDF format and cannot be modified; and 

c. generally contain 5 multiple choice items with an additional performance item on the Common 

Core State Standards Mastery series assessments 

2. Currently, the California Mastery Math Quick Checks include: 

a. one assessment for each standard defined as a key standard by the California State Standards 

b. two assessments for each standard defined as a key standard by the California State Standards and 

assessed with at least 3 items on the CST 

3. Currently, the California Mastery ELA Quick Checks include: 

a. one assessment for each standard assessed 2 times on the CST blueprint 

b. two assessments for each standard assessed with at least 3 items on the CST 

4. The CCSS Mastery Math and ELA Quick Checks as well as the Quick Checks CCSS Performance 

Tasks are in development and are released as completed. For a current list of available assessments, 

contact Intel-Assess. 

5. From time to time the Company may add assessments to one or more of the Intel-Assess Quick 

Check Products licensed by the Licensee, but the Company is under no obligation to do so. Licensee 

will have access under the terms of this Agreement to new Assessments developed and marketed by 

the Company as parts of the Quick Check Product or Products licensed to the Licensee.  

6. From time to time the Company may develop and market additional Quick Checks products that may 

be similar to the Quick Checks products licensed by the Licensee. Such new products developed and 

marketed under a new name may require additional fees for the Licensee to access. 

 

Effects of Termination or Non-Renewal 

 

The Quick Checks are part of the Company’s Content and their use is governed by all applicable 

terms of this Agreement unless specifically excluded in this Agreement, including but not limited to, 

the terms of this Agreement describing the return of and the cessation of use of the Content upon 

termination or lapse of this Agreement. 

 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 13 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

SCHEDULE: Content Customization and Modification Support – September 26, 2012 – 

Santa Ana Unified School District  

Support for New Custom Content 

The Company will develop up to 70 New Custom Items in accordance with the terms outlined in this 

Agreement to allow Licensee’s users to request New Custom Items for assessments created by Licensee. 

Support for Modifications 

The Company will make up to 70 Item Modifications in accordance with the terms outlined in this 

Agreement to allow Licensee’s users to request Item Modifications for assessments created by Licensee. 

No Changes to Passages 

Intel-Assess will not make modifications to passages. 

Quick Check Modifications 

Intel-Assess will not make modifications to assessments marketed as Quick Checks. 

Definitions 

Item Modifications 

An Item Modification is limited to minor wording or formatting changes to existing items such that the 

changes do not alter what the item measures or the meaning of the item. Any change request that meets 

any of the following criteria, in the sole discretion of the Company, will be classified as a New Custom 

Item and will be fulfilled only within the limits outlined in this Agreement: 

1. The review calls for a change to the item stem that substantially changes the meaning of the 

question, or  

2. The review calls for a change to the correct answer with anything more than minor replacements 

of synonyms or clarification in English language usage, or  

3. The review calls for an addition or a change to one or more diagrams. 

Item Modifications may include modifications to one incorrect answer choice that may be too difficult for 

students at the given point in the year when the assessment is to be used. All Item Modifications must, in 

the sole discretion of the Company, conform to the Item Quality Standards.  

The following are examples of allowed Item Modifications: 

1. Changing “1000” to “1,000”; 

2. Changing “Oxygen” to “O2”; 

3. Simplifying the wording of an item without changing its meaning; or 

4. Replacement of one incorrect answer with a different incorrect answer. 

New Custom Items 

A New Custom Item is any item developed that is either a new item or is a variation of an existing item 

that goes beyond the limits outlined in this Agreement for an Item Modification. All New Custom Items 

must conform to the Item Quality Standards. 

Following are examples of revisions that will be defined as New Custom Items: 

1. Any change to an item such that the correct answer must be changed (e.g., changing a math item 

from “Johnny had 10 apples. He gave away 3. How many did he have left?” to “Johnny had 9 

apples…”); or 

2. Creating items with the same format but with different numbers (e.g., changing 5 x5 to 5 x 6); or 

3. The addition or removal of graphical images. 

 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 14 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

New Custom Passages 

A New Custom Passage is a passage that is found in the public domain or written by the Company’s 

authoring team. All New Custom Passages must meet the following guidelines: 

1. Passages must match rigor and grade level expectations based on available documentation from 

the state’s education department. 

2. Passages must be of appropriate length, content, and style for use on formative assessments that 

align to state standards. 

3. Either passages must be available in the public domain, or the Company is able to write passages 

with its team of authors. (No passages can be added for which rights must be procured due to the 

unknown complexity and costs associated with such activities.) 

Item Quality Standards 

To the extent that Licensee may request New Custom Items or Item Modifications, the Company will, in 

its sole discretion, approve or reject all such requests based on the following criteria, which it will apply 

reasonably: 

1. Resulting Items must be aligned to the academic standards. 

2. Resulting Items must be at grade level expectations, based on available documentation from the 

state’s education department. 

3. Resulting Items must match the rigor of the state’s corresponding high stakes assessment. 

4. Resulting Items must be multiple choice items with 4 choices for answers 

5. Resulting Items must meet industry standard quality metrics that lead to validity and reliability. 

Ownership 

All Item Modifications, New Custom Items, and New Custom Passages will be added to the Intel-Assess 

item bank and will become part of the Content and may be used by any or all of Intel-Assess’ customers. 

Intel-Assess will retain ownership of the New and Modified Items as part of the Content. Licensee will 

have access to the New and Modified Items in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or any 

extension or renewal for limited use of the Content. Licensee will have no rights to use the items without 

a current Assessment Content License with Intel-Assess that explicitly grants usage rights for a given 

period of time. 

The Company Has Sole Discretion 

As this assistance to customers is not the core service provided by this Agreement and is, instead, an 

effort by the Company to assist its customers in being successful when it is able to do so, the Company 

has sole discretion to interpret the definitions above as to whether a request is for a New Custom Item or 

an Item Modification. 

Honored Requests are not Precedent 

The Company strives to create a solution that is as strong as possible for its customers. As a result, 

whenever possible, given many factors, such as time, cost, value to the Intel-Assess item bank, and 

educational importance, the Company may from time to time complete requested work that goes beyond 

the limits of this Agreement. Further, Intel-Assess attempts to use feedback from customers to shape its 

development efforts. Under no circumstances shall Licensee use past requests completed by the 

Company as a precedent or example in clarifying the definitions above, and the completion of 

additional work at one time does not represent an obligation on the part of the Company to do 

similar work in the future. 
 



Intel-Assess, Inc. 

 September 18, 2012 2:31 PM Page 15 of 15 Santa Ana Unified School District   

SCHEDULE: CST Mirror Assessments – September 26, 2012 – Santa Ana Unified School 

District  

The following CST Mirrors are currently available: 

ELA 

Grade 2: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 3: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 4: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 5: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 6: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 7: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 8: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 9: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 10: ELA CST Mirror 

Grade 11: ELA CST Mirror 

 

Science 

Grade 5: Science CST Mirror 

Grade 8: Science CST Mirror 

Earth Science: CST Mirror 

Biology: CST Mirror 

Chemistry: CST Mirror 

Physics: CST Mirror 

Math 

Grade 2: Math CST Mirror 

Grade 3: Math CST Mirror 

Grade 4: Math CST Mirror 

Grade 5: Math CST Mirror 

Grade 6: Math CST Mirror 

Grade 7: Math CST Mirror 

General Math: CST Mirror 

Algebra I: Math CST Mirror 

HS Summative Math: CST Mirror 

Geometry: Math CST Mirror 

Algebra II: Math CST Mirror 

 

History/Social Studies 

Grade 8: History CST Mirror 

Grade 10 World History: CST Mirror 

Grade 11 US History: CST Mirror 

 

 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.3











rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.4





rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.5





rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.6

























































rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.7



1601 East Chestnut Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322, (714) 558-5501 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Rob Richardson, President • José Alfredo Hernández, J.D., Vice President  

Audrey Yamagata-Noji, Ph.D., Clerk • John Palacio, Member • Roman Reyna, Member 

 

 

Please include in your reply any information about any civil rights complaints. 

 

 

 
Date:     September 11, 2012 

 

To:       Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 

From:     Michael P. Bishop, Sr., CBO, Deputy Superintendent, Operations 

 

Subject:  Purchase Order Summary: From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012 

 

 

Fund 01 General Fund                                     $16,129,473.14 

 

Fund 13 Cafeteria Fund                                    $1,378,953.61 

 

Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A              $371,265.45 

        Building Fund 

 

Fund 25 Capital Facilities Fund                             $114,804.61 

 

Fund 26 Measure G Bond                                       $89,183.00 

 

Fund 29 Measure G                                            $11,667.89 

 

Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund                       $378,666.01 

 

Fund 81 Property & Liability                                  $7,427.69 

 

Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund                        $41,189.62 

 

Fund 81 Property & Liability                                    $870.90 

 

 

                           Grand Total:                  $17,224,387.19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By:  Jonathan Geiszler, Director, Purchasing and Stores  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
Michael P. Bishop, Sr., CBO                                        Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D. 
Deputy Superintendent,             Superintendent 

Operations 

  



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  1 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

276443   SOUTHWEST GENERAL CONTRACTORS, INC. 

 OPSC School         Building           CARR INTERMEDIATE         $265,050.00 

 Facilities Bond     Contractor         SCHOOL 

 

280008   VERIZON WIRELESS 

 Unrestricted        Landline/Internet  DISTRICTWIDE               $65,000.00 

 Discretionary 

 Accounts 

 

280118   JL COBB PAINTING 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008                    SANTIAGO ELEMENTARY         $1,500.00 

 Election, Series A                     SCHOOL 

 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008                    SANTA ANA HIGH              $6,500.00 

 Election, Series A                     SCHOOL 

 

 Capital Facilities                     LATHROP                     $1,500.00 

 Fund                                   INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Capital Facilities                     WILLARD                     $9,800.00 

 Fund                                   INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Developer Fees                         CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL         $5,500.00 

 

 OPSC School                            FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY        $14,374.85 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

280119   VERNE'S PLUMBING, INC. 

 Child Nutrition:    Other Equipment    FOOD 4 THOUGHT              $3,277.17 

School Programs 

 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008                    SANTA ANA HIGH              $3,427.30 

 Election, Series A                     SCHOOL 

 

 Capital Facilities                     WASHINGTON                  $1,301.52 

 Fund                                   ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 Developer Fees                         CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL         $7,214.22 

 

 OPSC School                            EDISON ELEMENTARY           $1,898.26 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            MARTIN ELEMENTARY           $1,334.87 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            MONROE ELEMENTARY           $2,994.53 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            SANTIAGO ELEMENTARY         $1,696.72 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  2 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

280119   VERNE'S PLUMBING, INC. 

 OPSC School                            SPURGEON                    $1,521.81 

 Facilities Bond                        INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            SANTIAGO ELEMENTARY        $10,130.92 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

280235   MICHAEL OLSEN                                             2012/06/26 

 Special Ed: Mental  Sub-Agreements for SPECIAL EDUCATION          $44,660.00 

 Health Services     Services 

 

 Special Ed: Mental  Consultants        SPECIAL EDUCATION          $25,000.00 

 Health Services     Instructional 

 

280439   GILBERT & STEARNS, INC. 

 Capital Facilities                     EDISON ELEMENTARY          $13,482.67 

 Fund                                   SCHOOL 

 

 Capital Facilities                     LATHROP                     $3,124.50 

 Fund                                   INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Capital Facilities                     WILLARD                     $4,117.24 

 Fund                                   INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Capital Facilities                     SADDLEBACK HIGH             $3,872.25 

 Fund                                   SCHOOL 

 

 Developer Fees                         CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $18,474.30 

 

 OPSC School                            HARVEY ELEMENTARY           $1,129.15 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            MARTIN ELEMENTARY           $1,334.87 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

280359   BEN'S ASPHALT, INC. 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008                    WILSON ELEMENTARY           $6,419.00 

 Election, Series A                     SCHOOL 

 

 Community                              SANTIAGO ELEMENTARY         $1,500.00 

 Redevelopment                          SCHOOL 

 

 Measure G Bond                         DAVIS ELEMENTARY           $89,183.00 

 Series B                               SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            ADAMS ELEMENTARY            $4,782.00 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  3 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

280439   GILBERT & STEARNS, INC. 

 OPSC School                            MONROE ELEMENTARY           $2,994.53 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            ROOSEVELT                     $403.19 

 Facilities Bond                        ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            GREENVILLE FUNDAMENTAL      $6,750.00 

 Facilities Bond                        ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            REMINGTON                     $188.64 

 Facilities Bond                        ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            SANTA ANA HIGH              $1,720.00 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            FREMONT ELEMENTARY          $8,423.20 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            HARVEY ELEMENTARY           $8,707.04 

 Facilities Bond                        SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            JEFFERSON                   $4,104.00 

 Facilities Bond                        ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 OPSC School                            WILLARD                     $1,935.00 

 Facilities Bond                        INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

280835   DRIFTWOOD DAIRY 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     FOOD 4 THOUGHT            $161,625.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

280838   ASR FOOD DISTRIBUTORS, INC. 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     FOOD 4 THOUGHT             $64,650.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

280888   EBERHARD EQUIPMENT 

 Ongoing & Major     Equipment          BUILDING SERVICES          $30,000.00 

 Maintenance Account Maintenance 

                     Supplies 

 

281038   BEN'S ASPHALT, INC. 

 Deferred            Maintenance        BUILDING SERVICES          $27,707.78 

 Maintenance Fund    Contracts Repairs 

 

281160   PURCHASE POWER 

 Unrestricted        Bulk Mail          DISTRICTWIDE              $117,900.00 

 Discretionary      (Warehouse Use Only) 

 Accounts 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  3 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281235   IFUSION SOLUTIONS, INC.                                   2012/06/26 

 Child Nutrition:    Consultant         FOOD 4 THOUGHT            $120,000.00 

 School Programs     Noninstructional 

 

281427   FORM PLASTICS COMPANY 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     FOOD 4 THOUGHT             $30,631.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

281563   COLBI TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Plans All Other -  FACILITIES/GOVERNMENTAL   $136,968.25 

 Election, Series A  Printing, etc.     RELATIONS 

 

281572   TEXTBOOK ENTERPRISE, INC. 

 Lottery:            Textbooks          STATE TEXTBOOKS            $26,250.00 

 Instructional 

 Materials 

 

281615   SUNESYS, LLC 

 Unrestricted        Other Contracts    DISTRICTWIDE               $84,200.00 

 Discretionary 

 Accounts 

 

281619   THINKING MAPS, INC. 

 Economic Impact Aid Other Contracts    STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT        $25,000.00 

 

281632   THINK TOGETHER 

 21st Century        Sub-Agreements for DEPUTY                  $2,084,321.93 

 Community Learning  Services           SUPERINTENDENT'S 

 Centers                                OFFICE 

 

 21st Century        Consultants        DEPUTY                     $24,248.56 

 Community Learning  Instructional      SUPERINTENDENT'S 

 Centers                                OFFICE 

 

281633   THINK TOGETHER 

 21st Century        Sub-Agreements for DEPUTY                    $847,070.73 

 Community Learning  Services           SUPERINTENDENT'S 

 Centers                                OFFICE 

 

 21st Century        Consultants        DEPUTY                     $25,029.27 

 Community Learning  Instructional      SUPERINTENDENT'S 

 Centers                                OFFICE 

 

281634   THINK TOGETHER 

 30-R2002-653 Before Sub-Agreements for DEPUTY                  $7,031,715.03 

 and After School    Services           SUPERINTENDENT'S 

 Learning                               OFFICE 

 

 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  4 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281634   THINK TOGETHER 

 30-R2002-653 Before Consultants        DEPUTY                     $24,697.45 

 and After School    Instructional      SUPERINTENDENT'S 

 Learning                               OFFICE 

 

281644   ACCELIFY, LLC dba "SEIS"                                  2012/06/26 

 Special Education   Sub-Agreements for SPECIAL EDUCATION             $929.00 

                     Services 

 

 Special Education   Other Contracts    SPECIAL EDUCATION          $25,000.00 

 

281646   PITNEY BOWES, INC. 

 Unrestricted One    Rental Contracts   PUBLICATIONS               $49,117.80 

 time Funds 

 

281670   SCHOLASTIC, INC. 

 Economic Impact Aid Sub-Agreements for SANTA ANA HIGH              $8,123.50 

                     Services           SCHOOL 

 

 Economic Impact Aid Consultants        SANTA ANA HIGH             $18,462.50 

                     Instructional      SCHOOL 

 

281705   ASR FOOD DISTRIBUTORS, INC. 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SIERRA PREPARATORY          $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MACARTHUR FUNDAMENTAL       $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LATHROP                     $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SANTA ANA HIGH             $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CARR INTERMEDIATE           $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     WILLARD                     $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MCFADDEN                    $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SADDLEBACK HIGH            $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  5 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281705   ASR FOOD DISTRIBUTORS, INC. 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SPURGEON                    $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VILLA FUNDAMENTAL           $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL         $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MENDEZ FUNDAMENTAL          $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SEGERSTROM HIGH             $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

281706   BIMBO BAKERIES LOS ANGELES 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SIERRA PREPARATORY          $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MACARTHUR FUNDAMENTAL       $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LATHROP                     $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SANTA ANA HIGH             $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CARR INTERMEDIATE           $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     WILLARD                     $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MCFADDEN                    $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SADDLEBACK HIGH            $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SPURGEON                    $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  6 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281706   BIMBO BAKERIES LOS ANGELES 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VILLA FUNDAMENTAL           $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL        $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MENDEZ FUNDAMENTAL          $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SEGERSTROM HIGH            $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

281707   A & R WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORS 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     FOOD 4 THOUGHT             $86,200.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LORIN GRISET                $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SIERRA PREPARATORY          $7,542.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MACARTHUR FUNDAMENTAL      $15,085.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LATHROP                     $5,387.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SANTA ANA HIGH             $15,085.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $14,007.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CARR INTERMEDIATE          $19,395.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     WILLARD                    $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MCFADDEN                   $10,775.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SADDLEBACK HIGH            $22,627.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  7 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281707   A & R WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORS 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SPURGEON                   $12,930.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VILLA FUNDAMENTAL          $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $15,085.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CHAVEZ CONTINUATION         $6,465.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL        $14,007.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MENDEZ FUNDAMENTAL         $14,007.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SEGERSTROM HIGH            $14,007.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

281708   GOLD STAR FOODS 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SIERRA PREPARATORY         $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MACARTHUR FUNDAMENTAL      $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LATHROP                    $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SANTA ANA HIGH             $31,247.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $20,472.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CARR INTERMEDIATE          $26,937.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     WILLARD                    $25,860.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MCFADDEN                   $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SADDLEBACK HIGH            $19,395.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  8 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281708   GOLD STAR FOODS 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SPURGEON                   $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VILLA FUNDAMENTAL          $16,162.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $26,937.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL        $26,937.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MENDEZ FUNDAMENTAL         $21,550.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SEGERSTROM HIGH            $25,860.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

281711   DOMINO'S PIZZA STORE #7893 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LORIN GRISET                $1,939.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SIERRA PREPARATORY         $25,321.25 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  ACADEMY 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     LATHROP                    $24,782.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SANTA ANA HIGH              $9,697.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     WILLARD                    $34,480.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SPURGEON                   $39,113.25 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VILLA FUNDAMENTAL          $24,782.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL        $17,240.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MENDEZ FUNDAMENTAL         $64,650.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

281712   DOMINO'S PIZZA STORE #8354 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     FOOD 4 THOUGHT              $1,831.75 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 



 

 

SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page:  9 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281712   DOMINO'S PIZZA STORE #8354 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MACARTHUR FUNDAMENTAL      $21,550.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL         $26,937.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CARR INTERMEDIATE          $53,875.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     MCFADDEN                   $36,635.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     SADDLEBACK HIGH            $23,705.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     CHAVEZ CONTINUATION         $2,155.00 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Child Nutrition:    Food Inventory     GODINEZ FUNDAMENTAL        $14,007.50 

 School Programs     Site Distribution  HIGH SCHOOL 

 

281729   RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 Lottery:            Textbooks          MIDDLE COLLEGE HIGH        $55,000.00 

 Instructional                          SCHOOL 

 Materials 

 

281733   PLAYWORKS dba CHRISTINA WALLESTEIN                        2012/08/28 

 Economic Impact Aid Sub-Agreements for DIAMOND ELEMENTARY          $2,000.00 

                     Services           SCHOOL 

 

 Economic Impact Aid Consultants        DIAMOND ELEMENTARY         $25,000.00 

                     Instructional      SCHOOL 

 

281736   MICHAEL J. CHINDAMO                                       2012/08/28 

 Special Ed: Mental  Sub-Agreements for SPECIAL EDUCATION          $44,660.00 

 Health Services     Services 

 

 Special Ed: Mental  Consultants        SPECIAL EDUCATION          $25,000.00 

 Health Services     Instructional 

 

281740   CAMBRIDGE EDUCATION, LLC                                  2012/08/28 

 ARRA Title 1 School Sub-Agreements for SANTA ANA HIGH             $75,000.00 

 Improvement Grant   Services           SCHOOL 

 

 ARRA Title 1 School Consultants        SANTA ANA HIGH             $25,000.00 

 Improvement Grant   Instructional      SCHOOL 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page: 10 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281750   ORANGE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION                     2012/08/28 

 Special Education   Other Tuition,     SPECIAL EDUCATION       $2,400,000.00 

 

281788   CERTICA SOLUTIONS, INC. 

 Unrestricted        Other Contracts    INFORMATION                $53,499.00 

 Discretionary                          TECHNOLOGY CENTER 

 Accounts 

 

281834   PLAYWORKS dba CHRISTINA WALLESTEIN                        2012/08/28 

 Economic Impact Aid Other Contracts    JEFFERSON                  $27,000.00 

                                        ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

281836   NCS PEARSON, INC.                                         2012/07/24 

 ARRA Title 1 School Sub-Agreements for SADDLEBACK HIGH             $8,850.00 

 Improvement Grant   Services           SCHOOL 

 

 ARRA Title 1 School Consultant         SADDLEBACK HIGH            $25,000.00 

 Improvement Grant   Noninstructional   SCHOOL 

 

 Economic Impact Aid Sub-Agreements for SADDLEBACK HIGH            $30,000.00 

                     Services           SCHOOL 

 

281838   VERNE'S PLUMBING, INC. 

 Ongoing & Major     Maintenance        BUILDING SERVICES          $47,000.00 

 Maintenance Account Contracts Repairs 

 

281845   THE PLANNING CENTER 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Plans All Other -  SANTA ANA HIGH             $50,000.00 

 Election, Series A  Printing, etc.     SCHOOL 

 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Plans All Other -  SADDLEBACK HIGH            $50,000.00 

 Election, Series A  Printing, etc.     SCHOOL 

 

281858   STRADLING YOCCA CARLSON & RAUTH                           2012/08/28 

 Unrestricted        Consultant         BUSINESS SERVICES          $30,000.00 

 Discretionary       Noninstructional   DIVISION 

 Accounts 

 

281869   ESCHOLAR, LLC. 

 Unrestricted        Maintenance        INFORMATION                $70,400.00 

 Discretionary       Contracts Repairs  TECHNOLOGY CENTER 

 Accounts 

 

281907   AT&T 

 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Unassigned         SANTA ANA HIGH             $26,952.08 

 Election, Series A                     SCHOOL 

 

 

 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Purchase Order Listing $25,000 and Over 

                       From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012    Page: 11 of 11 

PO No.   Vendor                                                      BOA Date 

-------  --------------------------------                           --------- 

Funding             Description         Location                       Amount 

 ----------------- ------------------ ------------------- ------------------- 

 

281909   RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 Lottery:            Textbooks          MIDDLE COLLEGE HIGH        $52,000.00 

 Instructional                          SCHOOL 

 Materials 

 

281920   VERTICAL TRANSPORT, INC. 

 Deferred            Maintenance        BUILDING SERVICES         $100,000.00 

 Maintenance Fund    Contracts Repairs 

 

281931   ONISKO & SCHOLZ, LLP                                      2012/08/28 

 Child Nutrition:    Consultant         FOOD 4 THOUGHT             $55,000.00 

 School Programs     Noninstructional 

 

281936   BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORES 

 ARRA Title 1 School Materials &        SIERRA PREPARATORY         $74,370.00 

 Improvement Grant   Supplies/Software  ACADEMY 

 

 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.8



1601 East Chestnut Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701-6322, (714) 558-5501 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Rob Richardson, President • José Alfredo Hernández, J.D., Vice President  

Audrey Yamagata-Noji, Ph.D., Clerk • John Palacio, Member • Roman Reyna, Member 

 

 

Please include in your reply any information about any civil rights complaints. 

 

 
 

Date:  September 11, 2012 

 

To:  Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 

From:  Michael P. Bishop, Sr., CBO, Deputy Superintendent, Operations 

 

Subject: Expenditures Summary: From 29-AUG-2012 through 11-SEP-2012 

 

 

 Fund 01 General Fund                                               $953,236.32 

 

 Fund 12 Child Development                                            $3,693.50 

 

 Fund 13 Cafeteria Fund                                             $164,958.17 

 

 Fund 14 Deferred Maintenance Fund                                   $40,426.03 

 

 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Bui                 $654,638.30 

 

 Fund 25 Capital Facilities Fund                                    $113,589.67 

 

 Fund 26 Measure G Bond                                             $135,020.33 

 

 Fund 27 Qualified School Construction Bond                          $72,074.76 

 

 Fund 28 Measure G                                                   $99,884.78 

 

 Fund 29 Measure G                                                    $3,234.00 

 

 Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund                            $3,900,089.92 

 

 Fund 68 Workers' Compensation                                      $329,633.41 

 

 Fund 69 Health & Welfare                                         $4,061,497.74 

 

 Fund 81 Property & Liability                                     $2,183,011.00 

 

                             Total Expenditures:        $12,714,987.93 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Christeen Betz, Director, Accounting 

 

 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
Michael P. Bishop, Sr., CBO                                            Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D.,  
Deputy Superintendent,            Superintendent 

Operations 

  



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 August 29, 2012 Page 1 of 3 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 01 General Fund 

84172096 AREY JONES EDUCATIONAL SOLUTION $79,059.88 
 Economic Impact Aid CARVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 ENGLISH LEARNER PROGRAMS & STUDENT  
 ACHIEVEMENT 
 WILLARD INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 Economic Impact Aid-LEP KING ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 IASA:Title I Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected, Part A DAVIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts PUBLIC INFORMATION 

84172138 WARE DISPOSAL, INC. $54,368.21 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DISTRICTWIDE 

84172152 ESCHOOL SOLUTIONS $25,050.00 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 

84172078 CAL PERS SAFETY $54,457.60 
 Fund 01 General Fund DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund 

84172223 NTD ARCHITECTURE $209,685.71 
 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund GARFIELD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 25 Capital Facilities Fund 

84172228 DAVE BANG ASSOCIATES, INC. $59,649.40 
 Fund 25 Capital Facilities Fund WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 25 Developer Fees CENTURY HIGH SCHOOL 

 Fund 26 Measure G Bond 

84172196 WESTSIDE ELECTRIC $54,602.64 
 Fund 26 Measure G Bond Series B SANTA ANA HIGH SCHOOL 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 August 29, 2012 Page 2 of 3 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 28 Measure G 

84172198 ROY E WHITEHEAD $99,884.78 
 Fund 28 Measure G Series D SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 
 
 Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund 

84172191 NCM DEMOLITION AND REMEDIATION, LP $31,540.00 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

84172180 ANGELES CONTRACTOR, INC. $297,792.94 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance EDISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172183 COOL AIR SUPPLY, INC. $362,829.22 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance SPURGEON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

84172184 DALKE & SONS CONSTRUCTION, INC. $272,455.95 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance MADISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172185 EMPYREAN PLUMBING, INC. $196,774.45 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance CARR INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

84172186 FAST-TRACK CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION $382,366.57 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance SPURGEON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

84172188 INLAND BUILDING CONTRUCTION $62,326.57 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172190 JRH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. $242,504.88 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance SPURGEON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

84172192 PLYCO CORP. $871,233.60 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
84172234 ALL AMERICAN INSPECTION, INC. $36,400.00 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance ADAMS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 FREMONT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MARTIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MONROE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 August 29, 2012 Page 3 of 3 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 

 REMINGTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 TAFT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172239 FYR LANDSCAPING, INC. DBA PIERRE SPRINKLER AND LANDSCAPE  $38,453.90 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects SANTA ANA HIGH SCHOOL 

84172189 INLAND COMMUNITY BANK $45,854.40 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 68 Workers' Compensation 

84172251 SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT MEDICAL SELF  $319,976.28 
 Fund 68 Workers' Compensation RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 Fund 69 Health & Welfare 

84172254 VISION SERVICE PLAN $50,545.11 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

84172252 BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA $3,510,952.63 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

84172253 SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT $500,000.00 
 Health & Welfare - Active Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Health & Welfare - Retired Employees DISTRICT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 Grand Total: $7,858,764.72 



 SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 September 05, 2012 Page 1 of 3 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
 Fund 01 General Fund 

84172269 FOLLETT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES $32,494.36 
 Lottery:  Instructional Materials STATE TEXTBOOKS 

84172276 XEROX CORPORATION $46,030.66 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts DISTRICTWIDE 

84172305 PARADIGM HEALTHCARE SERVICES $41,455.06 
 Medi-Cal Billing Option PUPIL SUPPORT SERVICES 

84172306 PEARSON ED, INC. $80,108.12 
 Fund 01 General Fund ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 

 Lottery:  Instructional Materials STATE TEXTBOOKS 

84172315 SCHOLASTIC, INC. $66,978.26 
 ARRA Title 1 School Improvement Grant (SIG) PLAS WILLARD INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 Economic Impact Aid-LEP ADAMS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 01 General Fund ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT 

84172267 EXITCERTIFIED CORPORATION $41,000.00 
 Unrestricted Discretionary Accounts INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CENTER 
 
 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund 

84172359 GHATAODE BANNON ARCHITECTS, LLP $56,001.82 
 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 

 SPURGEON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 WILLARD INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

84172357 DIGITAL NETWORKS GROUP, INC. $194,213.63 
 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172360 GKKWORKS $119,497.12 
 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund CARR INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 GREENVILLE FUNDAMENTAL ELEMENTARY  
 SCHOOL 
 KENNEDY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 September 05, 2012 Page 2 of 3 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 

 LOWELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MARTIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MCFADDEN INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 MUIR FUNDAMENTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 TAFT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172361 PCM3, INC. $48,349.41 
 Fund 24 SAUSD GO Bond, 2008 Election, Series A Building Fund SANTA ANA HIGH SCHOOL 

 Fund 26 Measure G Bond 

84172365 INTERCOM CLOCKS & SIGNAL SERVICE $32,552.75 
 Fund 26 Measure G Bond Series B TAFT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 27 Qualified School Construction Bond 

84172368 PCM3, INC. $61,720.26 
 Fund 27 2nd Sale-Qualified School Construction Bond SADDLEBACK HIGH SCHOOL 
 
 Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund 

84172376 PRIEST CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. $50,136.00 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance CARR INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 EDISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 GREENVILLE FUNDAMENTAL ELEMENTARY  
 SCHOOL 
 HARVEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 LOWELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MADISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MONTE VISTA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MUIR FUNDAMENTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 SANTIAGO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 SIERRA PREPARATORY ACADEMY 

 

 

 



SAUSD Board of Education Warrant Listing 
 September 05, 2012 Page 3 of 3 

Check # Vendor Location Amount 
84172370 DIGITAL NETWORKS GROUP, INC. $726,508.01 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects CARR INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 EDISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 HARVEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 MONROE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 TAFT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

84172372 JOHNSON, FINCH & MCCLURE CONSTRUCTION, INC. $26,112.60 
 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects SPURGEON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

 Fund 35 OPSC School Facilities Bond Projects-Second Issuance WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 Fund 81 Property & Liability 

84172378 ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPERATIVE INSURANCE  $2,183,011.00 
 Fund 81 Property & Liability RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Grand Total: $3,806,169.06 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.9



1 

 

2012-13 LISTING OF CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Submitting Division: Educational Services 

September 25, 2012 
 

 
NO. 

 
NAME 

 
IMPLICATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT/TYPE OF SERVICE 

 
DATE 

ANNUAL 
RENEWAL 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

MAXIMUM 
NOT TO EXCEED 

 
REQ. NO. 

 
1. 
 

 
Christine Weatherill 

 
BTSA:  Will provide research based strategies 
for Beginning Teachers to support student 
engagement and curricular activities. 
 

 
September 26, 2012  

through 
June 30, 2013 

  
BTSA 

 
$8,000.00 

 
132462 

 
2. 

 
ThomasKelly Software 
Associates 

 
English Learner Program/Student 
Achievement:  Will provide EZSES Software 
service.  The District will use this software to 
manage student attendance and program data 
for the mandated Title I Supplemental 
Educational Services (SES) programs. 
 

 
September 26, 2012 

through 
June 30, 2013 

  
Title I 

 
$38,000.00 

 
132438 

 
3. 

 
Kid Healthy 
(OneOC) 
 

 
Special Projects:  Will build upon the existing 
local school’s Wellness policy implementation, 
and work with Heroes, Santiago, Sepulveda, 
and Walker elementary schools to increase the 
minutes of physical activity students receive 
on campus.  This will be done by identifying 
and inviting all stakeholders to the table to 
build a School Site Wellness Council (SSWC). 
 

 
September 26, 2012  

through  
June 30, 2013 

  
PEP 

Grant 
Funds 

 
$30,000.00 

 
132468 

 
4. 
 

 
Turning Point Center for 
Families 
 

 
Heroes Elementary School:  Will provide 
counseling for at-risk students, focusing on 
topics such as anger management, social skills, 
and problem solving. 
 

 
September 26, 2012 

through 
June 30, 2013 

  
EIA 

 
$2,400.00 

 
132361 

 



2 

 

 
2012-13 LISTING OF CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Submitting Division: Educational Services 
September 25, 2012 
Page 2 
 

 
NO. 

 
NAME 

 
IMPLICATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT/TYPE OF SERVICE 

 
DATE 

ANNUAL 
RENEWAL 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

MAXIMUM 
NOT TO EXCEED 

 
REQ. NO. 

 
5. 
 

 
Padres Unidos 

 
Pio Pico Elementary School: Will provide a 
school readiness program for students.  Also 
will provide parent workshop activities to 
prepare students and their parents for a 
successful school experience.  Research 
reflects that students with prior educational 
related experiences perform better upon entry 
into a formal school system. Consultant will be 
working with children from 3-5 years of age 
who are not attending any school readiness 
program. 

 
September 26, 2012 

through 
June 30, 2013 

 

  
Title I 

 
$5,000.00 

 
132463 

 
6. 
 

 
Grail Theatre of Britain 

 
Kennedy Elementary School:  Will provide a 
performance of “The Sword in the Stone and 
Oliver Twist” for K-5 grade students.  The 
production will consist of a Fine Arts 
presentation to promote literature and 
cultural development.  

 
October 10, 2012  

through 
June 13, 2013 

  
EIA 

 
$400.00 

 
132519 

 
7. 
 

 
Jump Start 

 
Head Start:  Will provide literacy activities to 
parents and students in the Head Start 
classroom two days a week.  No cost to the 
District. 

 
September 26, 2012 

through 
May 30, 2013 

  
N/A 

 
$0.00 

 
N/A 

 
8. 
 

 
Imagination Machine 

 
Heninger Elementary School:  Will provide 
four entertaining performances based on 
student writing.  This will be the culminating 
activity for the school-wide writing campaign. 
 

 
November 1, 2012  

through 
November 30, 2012 

 

  
Title I 

 
$1,675.00 

 
132589 

 



3 

 

2012-13 LISTING OF CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Submitting Division: Educational Services 
September 25, 2012 
Page 3 
 

 
NO. 

 
NAME 

 
IMPLICATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT/TYPE OF SERVICE 

 
DATE 

ANNUAL 
RENEWAL 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

MAXIMUM 
NOT TO EXCEED 

 
REQ. NO. 

 
9. 
 

 
Catapult Learning West, LLC 
 

 
BTSA:  Will provide professional development 
and mentoring workshops to St. Anne, St. 
Joseph, School of Our Lady which are non-
public schools.  Workshops will take place at 
each individual school site. 
 

 
October 1, 2012 

through  
June 30, 2013 

  
Title II-A 

 
$21,850.00 

 
132943 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

2012-13 LISTING OF CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Submitting Division: Business Services 

September 25, 2012 
 

 
NO. 

 
NAME 

 
IMPLICATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT/TYPE OF SERVICE 

 
DATE 

ANNUAL 
RENEWAL 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

MAXIMUM 
NOT TO EXCEED 

 
REQ. NO. 

 
10. 
 

 
Jody Thulin 

 
Will provide training and technical support for 
budget analytics and training of business staff.  

 
September 26, 2012 

through 
June 30, 2013 

 

  
General Fund 
 

 
$35,000.00 

 
132631 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

 

2012-13 LISTING OF CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Submitting Division: Support Services 

September 25, 2012 
 

 
NO. 

 
NAME 

 
IMPLICATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT/TYPE OF SERVICE 

 
DATE 

ANNUAL 
RENEWAL 

FUNDING 
SOURCE 

MAXIMUM 
NOT TO EXCEED 

 
REQ. NO. 

 
11. 

 
 
 

 
Orange County Department 
of Education 
 

 
Increase services at Valley High School in area 
of mental health and positive behavior in the 
classroom and on campus. 

 
September 26, 2012 

through  
June 30, 2013 

  
SIG Funds 

 
 

 
$121,000.00 

 

 
132689 

 
 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.10



Disposal of Obsolete Unrepairable Computer Equipment,
Miscellaneous Furniture, and Equipment

Qty. Description

Tag 

Number

Asset 

Number Serial Number Model Number

Date In 

Service   Cost PO # Location

35 Rolling Cabinets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Metal Book Shelves N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

160 Student Desks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Large Rectangular Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

50 Trapezoid Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Metal File Cabinets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

15 Wooden Book Shelves N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

85 Single Student Desks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

50 Double Student Desks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

115 Plastic Student Chairs N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Teacher Desks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

5 Kidney Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

2 Round Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Small Rectangular Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

5 Wooden Cabinets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20

Computer Lab Chairs with 

Wheels N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

5 Office Chairs N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

15 Double Computer Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Single Computer Tables N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

3 Library Book Shelves N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

20 Metal Folding Chairs N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

3 Metal Cabinets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

4 Large Wooden Cabinets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  N/A N/A N/A

Note: Items with a value of less than $500.00 are not tagged and original purchase information is not available

Page 1 of 1 Board Date:  09/25/12



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.11



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.12





rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.13



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.14



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.15



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.16





rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.18



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.19





rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
1.20





rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
2.0



 

Santa Ana Unified School District 

GIFTS RECOMMENDED FOR ACCEPTANCE – September 25, 2012 

 

For purposes of determining the estimated value of a gift, the District does not 

perform an appraisal or other such valuation, rather simply reports the value of  

the gift as provided by the donor. 
CO:eh 

 

School: 

 

Gift: 

 

Amount: 

 

Donor: 

 

Used for: 

 

Lincoln 

Madison 

Elementary 

 $1,014  Lifetouch 

Ms. Cathy Becker 

Eden Prairie, MN  

Fieldtrip 

transportation 

costs  

 

Madison 

Elementary 

 $2,918 Mr. Ted Holcomb 

Los Alamitos 

Teacher, 

classified staff 

and parent 

appreciation and 

student rewards 

and incentives 

 

Century High  $554 Target Corporation 

Mr. Gregg Steinhafel 

Minneapolis, MN 

Student 

recognition 

 

Century High  $2,000 Kelly Engineering 

Resources 

Ms. Linda Flores 

7700 Irvine Center 

Dr., Ste. 290 

Irvine 

Instructional 

supplies 

 

Santa Ana 

High 

 $697 Target Corporation 

Mr. Gregg Steinhafel 

Minneapolis, MN 

Staff 

appreciation 

 

Building 

Services 

Department 

 $2,000 Interior Wall Systems, 

Inc. 

Mr. Gregory D. Tucker 

San Marcos 

Staff 

appreciation 

barbecue 

 

 

September 

25, 2012 

donations 

    $9,183               

 

2012 Total 

donations 

 

$369,888     

 

 

$379,071     

  



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
3.0



 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

 

The previous Actuarial Study based on claim data as of June 30, 2011, recommended 

$5,902,520 as funding for 2011-12 and $6,201,290 as funding for 2012-13: 

 

 

Recommended Funding for 2011-12 (data as of 6-30-11) 

Item Expected 70% Confidence 

level 

(A) Projected ultimate losses (full value) $4,624,000 $5,225,120 
(B) Budgeted expenses      677,400      677,400 
(C) Recommended funding  (A) + (B) $5,301,400 $5,902,520 

 

 

Recommended Funding for 2012-13 (data as of 6-30-11) 

Item Expected 70% Confidence 

level 

(A) Projected ultimate losses (full value) $4,858,000 $5,489,540 
(B) Budgeted expenses      711,750      711,750 
(C) Recommended funding  (A) + (B) $5,569,750 $6,201,290 

 

The current Actuarial Study based on claim data as of June 30, 2012 recommends $5,797,860 

as funding for 2012-13 and $5,914,040 as funding for 2013-14: 
 

 

 

Recommended Funding for 2012-13 (data as of 6-30-12) 

Item Expected 70% Confidence 

level 

(A) Projected ultimate losses (full value) $4,542,000 $5,132,460 
(B) Budgeted expenses      665,400      665,400 
(C) Recommended funding  (A) + (B) $5,207,400 $5,797,860 
 

Recommended Funding for 2013-14 (data as of 6-30-12) 

Item Expected 70% Confidence 

level 

(A) Projected ultimate losses (full value) $4,633,000 $5,235,290 
(B) Budgeted expenses      678,750      678,750 
(C) Recommended funding  (A) + (B) $5,311,750 $5,914,040 
 

 

 

 

Source: Actuarial study of Workers’ Compensation Program as of June 30, 2012 performed by Aon Risk Solutions 

 

 



   ARM Tech / Aon Global Risk Consulting 
  100 Bayview Circle, Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660 

  (949) 608-6300, Fax (949) 608-6475 
  www.aon.com 

Presented by    September 25, 2012 
 

Mujtaba Datoo, ACAS, MAAA, FCA 
Actuarial Practice Leader 

Actuarial Overview 
Workers Compensation 



ESTIMATED OUTSTANDING LOSSES 
As of June 30, 2012 

Note:  Liabilities are for losses and ALAE 
 Consistent with GASB and financial reporting requirements. 
 Outstanding losses decreased from $21.3 million as of June 30, 2011, 
 to $18.2 million as of June 30, 2012, primarily due to a $3.6 million decrease 
 in case reserves. 

$18.2 M 



PROJECTED ULTIMATE LOSSES 
Accrual for 2012/13 

Notes:   
1. Loss rate is $1.46 per $100 of payroll. 
2.Excludes expenses for claims administration (ULAE), general administration,  
   and excess insurance. 

Loss Funding = $4.5M 



COMPONENTS OF  
PROJECTED ULTIMATE LOSSES 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

Pr
ior

93
/9

4
94

/9
5

95
/9

6
96

/9
7

97
/9

8
98

/9
9

99
/0

0
00

/0
1

01
/0

2
02

/0
3

03
/0

4
04

/0
5

05
/0

6
06

/0
7

07
/0

8
08

/0
9

09
/1

0
10

/1
1

11
/1

2

Fiscal Year

Paid Case IBNR

Note:  The loss data appeared to only include information on open claims for 
many of the older claim periods. 



Frequency: 1.5 claims per $1 M of payroll 
Average cost of claim: $10,000 



1% of employees cost about 
90% of incurred claim dollars  

• On average there are about 5,000 employees 
• The district experiences about 500 claims annually 
• Average cost of claim is about $10,000 

– Not all claims cost this average amount 
• 14% of claims [1 out of 7] are above average 

$10,000, i.e. about 50-70 claims 
• These 50 claims costs about 90% of total incurred 

claim dollars of about $4.5M 
• 50 claims from 5,000 employees is 1% of 

employees that cost about 90% of total incurred 



LOSS RATE PER $100 OF PAYROLL 



OBSERVATIONS 

• Decrease in estimated outstanding losses of about $3.1 
million.   
– Primarily due to a decrease in case reserves of $3.6 million between 

June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012. 
 

• Frequency and loss rate have been stable, severity high in 
FY10 and FY12 due to a few larger losses  
– for example, FY10 has a higher than average number of claims with an 

incurred amount greater than $100,000 



 
Questions? 

 

 
Mujtaba Datoo, ACAS, MAAA, FCA 
Actuarial Practice Leader 
ARM Tech / AGRC 
(949) 608-6332 
mujtaba.datoo@aon.com 



     … Thank You! 



     … Thank You! 



     … Thank You! 



 
100 Bayview Circle, Suite 100 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
tel: 949.608.6300 • fax: 949.608.6475 • www.aon.com 
Aon Risk Solutions | Global Risk Consulting | Actuarial and Analytics 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Santa Ana Unified School District 
 

Actuarial Study of the 
Workers Compensation Program 

as of June 30, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 14, 2012 



 
100 Bayview Circle, Suite 100 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
tel: 949.608.6300 • fax: 949.608.6475 • www.aon.com 
Aon Risk Solutions | Global Risk Consulting | Actuarial and Analytics 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
August 14, 2012 
 
 
 
Santa Ana Unified School District 
1601 East Chestnut Avenue 
Santa Ana, California 92701 
 
Attn:  Ms. Camille Boden 

Executive Director of Risk Management 
 
 

Actuarial Study of the 
Workers Compensation Program 

as of June 30, 2012 
 
This study has been completed for the Santa Ana Unified School District for the specific 
objectives listed in the study. It contains the analysis and conclusions of our work. 
 
Each section and appendix of the study is an integral part of the whole. We recommend a 
review of the entire study prior to reliance upon this study. 
 
No key personnel have a relationship with the Santa Ana Unified School District that 
may impair our objectivity. 
 
Please call if you have any questions. Thank you for the opportunity to be of service. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Aon Global Risk Consulting 
 
 
 
By   

Mujtaba Datoo, ACAS, MAAA, FCA 
Actuarial Practice Leader 

 
MD:blc 
X:\Clients\Actuarial\S\Santa Ana USD 588\2012_06_30\Report\SantaAnaUSD_063012_081412.docx 



 

Table of Contents 
 
 
I. Background  .............................................................................................................1 
 
II. Objectives  ...............................................................................................................2 
 
III. Conclusions  .............................................................................................................4 
 
 
 
Appendices 
A Conditions and Limitations 
B Glossary of Actuarial Terms 
C Exhibits 



 

I.  Background 
 
 
The Santa Ana Unified School District (the District) has been self-insured for workers 
compensation since July 1, 1977. Excess insurance with a self-insured retention of $1 
million was purchased beginning November 1, 2009. Prior to that date, there was no 
excess insurance. 
 
Claims are handled internally. 
 
The District records its liabilities at the undiscounted level. 
 
 
Data 
 
Loss data valued as of June 30, 2012 was provided to us by the District. The District also 
provided payroll for years through 2011/12. Payroll projections for 2012/13 and 2013/14 
are based on a 0% trend, as provided by the District. 
 
In conducting this analysis, we relied upon the provided data without audit or 
independent verification; however, we reviewed it for reasonableness and consistency. 
Any inaccuracies in quantitative data or qualitative representations could have a 
significant effect on the results of our review and analysis.  Any material discrepancies 
discovered in the loss or exposure data by the District or any other parties should be 
reported to us immediately, and if warranted, we will make appropriate amendments to 
the report. 
 
The loss data we received appeared to only include information on open claims for many 
of the older claim periods. 
 

1



 

II.  Objectives 
 
 
The specific objectives of this study are: 
 
1. Estimate Outstanding Losses.  Estimate outstanding losses (including 

allocated loss adjustment expenses [ALAE]) as of June 30, 2012. 
 
The estimated outstanding losses are the cost of unpaid claims. The outstanding 
losses include case reserves, the development of known claims and incurred but 
not reported (IBNR) claims. ALAE are the direct settlement expenses for specific 
claims, primarily legal expenses. 
 

2. Project Financial Position.  Project the financial position of the program 
as of June 30, 2012 
 
The projected financial position is a comparison of the present value of the 
estimated outstanding losses with projected funds available (approximate and 
unaudited) to meet them. 
 

3. Project Ultimate Losses.  Project ultimate losses (including ALAE) for 
2012/13 and 2013/14. 
 
The projected ultimate losses are the accrual value of losses with accident dates in 
2012/13 and 2013/14, regardless of report or payment date. 
 

4. Project Losses at Alternative SIRs.  Project ultimate losses at 
alternative self-insured retention levels of $500,000, $750,000, and unlimited. 
 

5. Project Losses Paid.  Project losses paid (claim disbursements) during 
2012/13 and 2013/14. 
 
The projected losses paid are the cash value of losses paid during 2012/13 and 
2013/14, regardless of accident or report date. 
 

6. Recommend Funding.  Recommend funding for 2012/13 and 2013/14. 
 
The recommended funding on an accrual basis is based on the present value of the 
projected ultimate losses and the budgeted expenses (for claims handling and 
administration). The recommended funding on a cash basis is based on the 
projected losses paid (claim disbursements) and the budgeted expenses. 
 

2



 

7. Compare to Previous Actuarial Study.  Compare to the previous 
actuarial study valued as of June 30, 2011. 

 
8. Size of Loss Distribution Analysis.  Analyze the distribution of losses 

in various layers. 
 
9. Affirm GASB Statement No. 10.  Provide a statement affirming the 

conclusions of this report are consistent with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 10. 
 

3



 

III.  Conclusions 
 
 
We have reached the following conclusions: 
 
 
 1. Estimate Outstanding Losses 
 
We estimate outstanding losses as of June 30, 2012 to be as shown in Table III-1. 
 

Table III-1 
Estimated Outstanding Losses 

June 30, 2012 
 

Item 
(1) 

Amount 
(2) 

(A) Estimated outstanding losses $18,216,871 

 
Note: (2) is from Exhibit WC-11. 

 
 
The estimated outstanding losses decreased by about $3.1 million, from $21,339,242 as 
of June 30, 2011 to $18,216,871 as of June 30, 2012. This change is primarily due to a 
decrease in the reported case reserves, which decreased by $3.6 million from June 30, 
2011 to June 30, 2012. This decrease was not due to large decreases in a few claims, but 
rather to smaller decreases (less than $100,000) in many claims. There were also 10 
claims which had case reserve decreases in the $100,000 to $200,000 range. 
 
The District records its liabilities at the undiscounted level. 
 
All costs other than unpaid claims are additional. 
 
 

4



 

 2. Project Financial Position 
 
We project the financial position of the program as of June 30, 2012 to be as shown in 
Table III-2. 
 

Table III-2 
Projected Financial Position 

June 30, 2012 
 

Item 
(1) 

Full Value 
(2) 

Present Value 
(3) 

(A) Projected funds available 
(approximate and unaudited) 

$23,445,823 $23,445,823

(B) Estimated outstanding losses 18,216,871 17,744,794

(C) Projected financial position 
(A) - (B) 

$5,228,952 $5,701,029

 
Note: (A) was provided by the District. 
 (B) is from Exhibit WC-11. 

 
The present value of outstanding losses is the amount of money, discounted for 
anticipated investment income, required to meet unpaid claims. It is calculated based on a 
0.5% yield on investments. 
 
 
 3. Project Ultimate Losses 
 
We project ultimate losses for 2012/13 and 2013/14 at expected and 70% confidence 
levels to be as shown in Tables III-3A and III-3B. 
 

Table III-3A 
Projected Ultimate Losses 

2012/13 
 

Item 
(1) 

Expected 70% Confidence 

Amount 
(2) 

Loss Rate 
per $100 
of Payroll 

(3) 
Amount 

(4) 

Loss Rate 
per $100 
of Payroll 

(5) 

(A) Projected ultimate losses $4,542,000 $1.46 $5,132,460 $1.65

(B) Present value of 
projected ultimate losses 

4,436,000 1.43 5,012,680 1.62

 
Note: (2) and (3) are from Exhibit WC-10. 
 (4) and (5) are based on (2) and (3), respectively, and actuarial judgment. 

5



 

Table III-3B 
Projected Ultimate Losses 

2013/14 
 

Item 
(1) 

Expected 70% Confidence 

Amount 
(2) 

Loss Rate 
per $100 
of Payroll 

(3) 
Amount 

(4) 

Loss Rate 
per $100 
of Payroll 

(5) 

(A) Projected ultimate losses $4,633,000 $1.49 $5,235,290 $1.68

(B) Present value of 
projected ultimate losses 

4,525,000 1.46 5,113,250 1.65

 
Note: (2) and (3) are from Exhibit WC-10. 
 (4) and (5) are based on (2) and (3), respectively, and actuarial judgment. 

 
 
The present value of the projected ultimate losses is the amount of money, discounted for 
anticipated investment income, required to meet claims. It is calculated based on a 0.5% 
yield on investments. 
 
All costs other than claims are additional. 
 
 

4. Project Losses at Alternative SIRs 
 
We project ultimate limited losses for 2012/13 and 2013/14 to be as shown in 
Table III-4A and III-4B, respectively. 
 

Table III-4A 
Projected Ultimate Limited Losses 

2012/13 
 

Retention 
(1) 

Full Value 
(2) 

Present 
Value 

(3) 

(A) $500,000 $4,405,740 $4,302,920 

(B) $750,000 4,496,580 4,391,640 

(C) $1,000,000 4,542,000 4,436,000 

(D) Unlimited 4,632,840 4,524,720 

 
Note: (C) is from Exhibit WC-10. 

(A), (B), and (D) are based on (C), the District’s data as show in Exhibit WC-15, 
and actuarial judgment. 

6



 

 
 

Table III-4B 
Projected Ultimate Limited Losses 

2013/14 
 

Retention 
(1) 

Full Value 
(2) 

Present 
Value 

(3) 

(A) $500,000 $4,494,010 $4,389,250 

(B) $750,000 4,586,670 4,479,750 

(C) $1,000,000 4,633,000 4,525,000 

(D) Unlimited 4,725,660 4,615,500 

 
Note: (C) is from Exhibit WC-10. 

(A), (B), and (D) are based on (C), the District’s data as show in Exhibit WC-15, 
and actuarial judgment. 

 
 
 5. Project Losses Paid 
 
We project losses paid during 2012/13 and 2013/14 to be as shown in Table III-5. 
 

Table III-5 
Projected Losses Paid 

 
Item 2012/13 2013/14
(1) (2) (3)

(A) Projected losses paid $4,311,890 $4,208,373  
 
Note: (A) is from Exhibit WC-12. 

(B) is from Exhibit WC-13. 

 
 
All costs other than claims are additional. 
 

7



 

Loss Experience Trends 
 
Graphs III-1 and III-2 show loss experience trends for workers compensation as 
measured by loss rate per $100 of payroll and frequency and severity, respectively. 
 

Graph III-1 
Loss Rate per $100 of Payroll 

 

$1.95

$1.40

$1.18

$1.36

$1.16 $1.14

$0.75

$1.69

$1.29

$1.60
$1.46 $1.49

$0.00

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

Historical Projected

 
 

Note: Loss rates are from Exhibit WC-10, columns (4) and (7). 

 
 

8



 

Graph III-2 
Frequency and Severity 

 

$8,642

$6,724 $6,926

$8,464

$7,653 $7,773

$4,961

$11,112

$8,175

$10,610

693 615 486 466 504 502 485 498 494 453

2.26

2.09

1.71
1.61

1.52 1.46 1.50 1.52 1.57 1.51

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

la
im

s 
p

er
 $

1M
 o

f 
P

ay
ro

ll

A
ve

ra
g

e 
C

o
st

 p
er

 C
la

im

Severity # of  Reported Claims Frequency

 
 

Note: Frequency amounts are from Exhibit WC-8, Section I, column (7). 
 Severity amounts are based on the projected claim counts in Exhibit 

WC-8 and the projected ultimate losses in Exhibit WC-9. 

 
 

9



 

Graph III-3 shows the composition of the projected ultimate limited losses for workers 
compensation. 
 

Graph III-3 
Composition of Projected Ultimate Limited Losses 

 

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0
19

93
/9

4

19
94

/9
5

19
95

/9
6

19
96

/9
7

19
97

/9
8

19
98

/9
9

19
99

/0
0

20
00

/0
1

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

M
il

li
o

n
s

Paid Losses Case Reserves IBNR Projected

 
 

Note: Amounts through 2011/12 are from Exhibit WC-11. 
 Amounts for 2012/13 and 2013/14 are from Exhibit WC-10. 

 
 
  

10



 

 6. Recommend Funding 
 
The funding amounts for 2012/13 and 2013/14 are as shown in Tables III-6A and III-6B, 
respectively. The recommended funding amounts reflect a $1 million retention. 
 

Table III-6A 
Recommended Funding 

2012/13 
 

Item 
(1) 

Present Value Full Value 

Expected 
(2) 

70% 
Confidence 

(3) 
Expected 

(4) 

70% 
Confidence 

(5) 

(A) Projected ultimate losses $4,436,000 $5,012,680 $4,542,000 $5,132,460

(B) Budgeted expenses 
 (A2) x 15% 

665,400 665,400 665,400 665,400

(C) Recommended funding 
 (A) + (B) 

$5,101,400 $5,678,080 $5,207,400 $5,797,860

 
Note: (A) is from Table III-3A.  

(B) is based on our studies of similar programs and discussions with the District. The 
District may substitute this estimate with actual budgeted expenses. 

 
 

Table III-6B 
Recommended Funding 

2013/14 
 

Item 
(1) 

Present Value Full Value 

Expected 
(2) 

70% 
Confidence 

(3) 
Expected 

(4) 

70% 
Confidence 

(5) 

(A) Projected ultimate losses $4,525,000 $5,113,250 $4,633,000 $5,235,290

(B) Budgeted expenses 
 (A2) x 15% 

678,750 678,750 678,750 678,750

(C) Recommended funding 
 (A) + (B) 

$5,203,750 $5,792,000 $5,311,750 $5,914,040

 
Note: (A) is from Table III-3B.  

(B) is based on our studies of similar programs and discussions with the District. The 
District may substitute this estimate with actual budgeted expenses. 

 
 
The funding rates for 2012/13 and 2013/14 are as shown in Tables III-6C and III-6D, 
respectively. 

11



 

 
Table III-6C 

Recommended Funding Rates 
2011/12 

 

Item 
(1) 

Present Value Full Value 

Expected 
(2) 

70% 
Confidence 

(3) 
Expected 

(4) 

70% 
Confidence 

(5) 

(A) Projected ultimate losses $   1.43 $   1.62 $   1.46 $   1.65

(B) Budgeted expenses 
 (A2) x 15% 

   0.21    0.21    0.21    0.21

(C) Recommended funding 
 (A) + (B) 

$   1.64 $   1.83 $   1.67 $   1.86

 
Note: (A) is from Table III-3A.  

(B) is based on the expenses in Table III-6A and projected 2012/13 payroll of $310.7 
million. 

 
 

Table III-6D 
Recommended Funding Rates 

2012/13 
 

Item 
(1) 

Present Value Full Value 

Expected 
(2) 

70% 
Confidence 

(3) 
Expected 

(4) 

70% 
Confidence 

(5) 

(A) Projected ultimate losses $   1.46 $   1.65 $   1.49 $   1.68

(B) Budgeted expenses 
 (A2) x 15% 

   0.22    0.22    0.22    0.22

(C) Recommended funding 
 (A) + (B) 

$   1.68 $   1.87 $   1.71 $   1.90

 
Note: (A) is from Table III-3B.  

(B) is based on the expenses in Table III-6A and projected 2013/14 payroll of $310.7 
million. 

 
 

12



 

7. Compare to Previous Actuarial Study 
 
Graphs III-4 and III-5 are graphical comparisons of the reported incurred losses and 
projected ultimate losses, respectively, by fiscal year of occurrence of the workers 
compensation program from the previous study (report dated September 22, 2011) to the 
current study. 
 

Graph III-4 
Comparison of Limited Reported Incurred Losses 

as of June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012 
 

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

19
93

/9
4

19
94

/9
5

19
95

/9
6

19
96

/9
7

19
97

/9
8

19
98

/9
9

19
99

/0
0

20
00

/0
1

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

M
il

li
o

n
s

6/30/11 6/30/12

 
 

Note: Amounts as of June 30, 2011 are from the previous actuarial study. 
 Amounts as of June 30, 2012 are from Exhibit WC-1. 

 
 

13



 

Graph III-5 
Comparison of Projected Ultimate Limited Losses 

as of June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012 
 

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

19
93

/9
4

19
94

/9
5

19
95

/9
6

19
96

/9
7

19
97

/9
8

19
98

/9
9

19
99

/0
0

20
00

/0
1

20
01

/0
2

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

M
il

li
o

n
s

6/30/11 6/30/12

 
 

Note: Amounts as of June 30, 2011 are from the previous actuarial study. 
 Amounts as of June 30, 2012 are from Exhibits WC-9. 

 
 
For all claims through 2010/11, the change in the projected ultimate limited losses from 
June 30, 2011 to June 30, 2012 was -6.2%. 
 
 

14



 

8. Size of Loss Distribution Analysis 
 
Table III-8 shows the distribution of losses in various layers. 
 

Table III-8 
Size of Loss Distribution 

 

Layer

Total 
Reported 
 Claims

Percent 
of Total

(2)/Total(2)

Cumulative 
 Percent of 

Total

Total 
Reported 
Incurred 
Losses

Percent 
of Total

(5)/Total(5)

Cumulative 
 Percent of 

Total
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

 (A) $0 to $5,000 4,954       82.1%       82.1%         $4,203,901 6.0%         6.0%           

 (B) $5,000 to $10,000 260          4.3%         86.4%         1,755,617      2.5%         8.5%           

 (C) $10,000 to $25,000 272          4.5%         90.9%         4,572,870      6.5%         15.1%         

 (D) $25,000 to $50,000 198          3.3%         94.2%         7,159,032      10.2%       25.3%         

 (E) $50,000 to $100,000 170          2.8%         97.0%         12,202,004    17.4%       42.7%         

 (F) $100,000 to $250,000 133          2.2%         99.2%         20,167,253    28.8%       71.6%         

 (G) $250,000 to $500,000 39            0.6%         99.9%         12,857,645    18.4%       90.0%         

 (H) $500,000 to $750,000 5              0.1%         100.0%       3,101,147      4.4%         94.4%         

 (I) $750,000 to $1,000,000 1              0.0%         100.0%       811,253         1.2%         95.6%         

 (J) Over $1,000,000 2              0.0%         100.0%       3,096,183      4.4%         100.0%       

 (K) Total
(A) … (J)

6,034       100%        $69,926,905 100%        

 
 
Note: See Exhibit WC-16. 

 
The average cost per claim is about $11,200. About 86% of the non-zero claims reported 
are below $10,000 and represent about 9% of the incurred amounts. The remaining 14% 
of the claims consume about 91% of the incurred amounts. 
 
 

9. Affirm GASB Statement No. 10 
 
We affirm the conclusions of this report are consistent with GASB Statement No. 10. 
 

15



 Appendix A 
 

Conditions and Limitations 
 
 
It is important to understand the conditions and limitations listed below. Each chapter and 
section is an integral part of the whole study. If there are questions, please contact Aon for 
clarification. 
 

 Data Quality. We relied upon data provided by the organization shown 
on the transmittal page or its designated agents. The data was used without 
verification or audit, other than checks for reasonableness. Unless otherwise 
stated, we assumed the data to be correct and complete. 

 
 Economic Environment. Unless otherwise stated, we assumed the 

current economic conditions will continue in the foreseeable future. 
 
 Insurance Coverage. Unless otherwise stated, we assumed no 

insurance coverage changes (including coverage provided by the 
organization to others) subsequent to the date this study was prepared. This 
includes coverage language, self-insured retention, limitations and similar 
issues. 

 
 Insurance Solvency. Unless otherwise stated, we assumed all 

insurance purchased by the organization is from solvent sources payable in 
accordance with terms of the coverage document. 

 
 Interest Rate. The exhibits specify the annual interest rate used. 
 
 Methodology. In this study, different actuarial methods were applied. In 

some instances, the methods yield significantly disparate results. The 
estimates, projections and recommendations in this study reflect our 
judgments as to the best method or combination of methods that are most 
reliable and reflective of the exposure to loss. 

 
 Reproduction. This study may only be reproduced in its entirety. 
 
 Risk and Variability. Insurance is an inherently risky enterprise. 

Actual losses may vary significantly from our estimates, projections and 
recommendations. They may emerge higher or lower. 

 

16



 Statutory and Judicial Changes. Legislatures and judiciaries may 
change statutes that govern indemnification. This includes benefit levels for 
workers compensation, immunities and limitations for liability, and other 
similar issues. Unless otherwise stated, we assumed no statutory changes 
subsequent to the date this study was prepared. 

 
 Supplemental Data. In addition to the data provided by the 

organization, we supplemented our analysis with data from similar 
organizations and insurance industry statistics, as we deemed appropriate. 

 
 Usage. This study has been prepared for the usage of the organization 

shown on the transmittal page. It was not prepared for and may not be 
appropriate for use by other organizations. Other organizations should obtain 
written permission from Aon prior to use of this study. 

17



 

 
 Appendix B 
 

Glossary of Actuarial Terms 
 
 
Actuarial Methods (Most Common) 
 
A major objective of an actuarial study is to statistically project ultimate losses. The 
following actuarial methods are the most common: 
 

 Developed Paid Losses 

 Developed Reported Incurred Losses 

 Developed Case Reserves 

 Frequency Times Severity Analysis 

 Loss Rate Analysis 

 
The following describes each method: 
 
1. Developed Paid Losses. Paid losses represent the amounts actually paid to 

claimants (less excess insurance recoveries). As time goes on, loss payments 
continue until all claims are closed and there are no remaining payments expected. 
At this time, the ultimate losses for the claim period are known. This common 
process is called “paid loss development.” 
 
Paid loss development is an extrapolation of actual dollars paid. It does not depend 
on case reserve estimates. A potential shortcoming of utilizing this method is that 
only a small fraction of total payments have been made for the most recent claim 
periods. Extrapolating ultimate losses based on small amounts of actual payments 
may be speculative. A second potential shortcoming is that payment patterns can 
change over time. 
 

2. Developed Reported Incurred Losses. Reported incurred losses are 
paid losses plus case reserves. In most programs, total reported incurred losses 
underestimate the ultimate losses. Over time, as more information about a body of 
claims becomes known, they are adjusted either up or down until they are closed. 
Though many individual claims settle for less than what was estimated, these 
decreases are generally more than offset by increases in the cost of other claims for 
which new information has emerged. 
 
The net effect is that total estimated costs are often revised upward over time. This 

18



 

normal process is called “reported incurred loss development.” Actuaries typically 
review the development patterns of the recent past to make projections of the 
expected future loss development and, therefore, estimations of ultimate losses. 
 

3. Developed Case Reserves. A case reserve is an estimate of the unpaid 
amount established by claims adjusters for which a particular claim will ultimately 
be settled or adjudicated. The developed case reserves method is a hybrid of the paid 
loss development and reported incurred loss development methods. It relies on the 
historical adequacy of case reserves to predict ultimate losses. 
 

4. Frequency Times Severity Analysis. The frequency times severity 
analysis is an actuarial method that uses a preliminary projection of ultimate losses to 
project claims severity. The claims severity times the number of claims is a predictor 
of ultimate losses. The focus of the frequency times severity analysis is that ultimate 
losses each period are dependent on the number of claims. 
 

5. Loss Rate Analysis. The loss rate analysis is based on the historical loss rates 
per exposure unit (such as payroll, vehicles or property value). The loss rates 
(projected ultimate losses divided by exposure units) are trended to reflect the effect 
of claim cost inflation and retention changes. The trended loss rates represent the 
rates that one would see if all of the claims had been handled in the claim cost 
environment that will be present in the upcoming period. The trended loss rate times 
the projected exposure units is a predictor of losses. 
 

6. Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method (B-F). The B-F method is an actuarial 
method that weights a preliminary projection of ultimate losses with projections of 
ultimate losses determined by other actuarial methods (usually the developed paid 
losses and developed reported incurred losses methods). For less mature claim 
periods, the B-F method leans more heavily to the preliminary projection. It 
gradually converges to the projections of ultimate losses determined by the other 
actuarial methods as the claim periods mature. 

 
 
Actuary 
 
A specialist trained in mathematics, statistics, and finance who is responsible for rate, 
reserve, and dividend calculations and other statistical studies. 
 
 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses 
 
Allocated loss adjustment expenses (ALAE) are the direct expenses to settle specific claims. 
These expenses are primarily legal expenses. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 10 requires that ALAE 

19



 

be included in financial statements and that they be calculated by actuarial methods. 
 
 
American Academy of Actuaries 
 
A society concerned with the development of education in the field of actuarial science and 
with the enhancement of standards in the actuarial field. Members may use the designation 
MAAA (Member, American Academy of Actuaries). 
 
 
Benefits 
 
The financial reimbursement and other services provided insureds by insurers under the 
terms of an insurance contract. An example would be the benefits listed under a life or health 
insurance policy or benefits as prescribed by a workers compensation law. 
 
 
Casualty Actuarial Society 
 
A professional society for actuaries in areas of property and casualty insurance work. This 
society grants the designation of Associate of the Casualty Actuarial Society (ACAS) and 
Fellow of the Casualty Actuarial Society (FCAS). 
 
 
Claim 
 
Demand by an individual or entity to recover for a loss. 
 
 
Claims Made 
 
A policy written on this basis covers only those claims that are made during the policy 
period. Coverage for prior acts is provided back to what is known as the retroactive date, 
which is the effective date of the original claims made policy with the same insurer. 
 
 
Composite Rate 
 
A single rate with a single basis of premium (e.g., payroll or sales). For this single rate the 
insured is covered for a variety of hazards, such as premises and operations, completed 
operations, products liability, and automobile. Its primary value is to compute premium 
simply. 

20



 

Confidence Level 
 
A confidence level is the statistical certainty that an actuary believes funding will be 
sufficient. For example, an 80% confidence level means that the actuary believes funding 
will be sufficient in eight years out of ten. 
 
Confidence levels are determined based on mathematical models. Coverages that are low 
frequency and high severity (such as excess liability) are subject to greater risk than 
coverages that are high frequency and low severity (such as automobile physical damage). 
Therefore, they need a greater margin to attain a given confidence level. 
 
 
Coverage 
 
The scope of the protection provided under a contract of insurance. 
 
 
Credibility 
 
Credibility is the belief that the sample data is an accurate reflection of the larger population. 
Credibility is highest when the sample data is large and the standard deviation (discussed 
later) of the larger population is low. 
 
 
Dates 
 
There are at least three milestone dates in a claim. They are the date of injury or accident, the 
date of report and the date of closure. It is best if each of these dates is recorded. Some 
organizations may also keep the date a claim becomes a lawsuit, as opposed to a demand. 
Aon recommends this additional level of detail, especially if the data is to be used for 
litigation management. 
 
 
Deductible 
 
The portion of an insured loss to be borne by the insured before he is entitled to recovery 
from the insurer. Deductibles may be expressed as a dollar amount, percentage or waiting 
period. 
 
 
Disability 
 
A condition that curtails a person’s ability to carry on his normal pursuits. A disability may 
be partial or total, and temporary or permanent. 

21



 

 
 
Dividend (Policyholder) 
 
The return of part of the premium paid for a policy issued on a participating basis by either a 
mutual or a stock insurer. 
 
 
Estimated Outstanding Losses 
 
Estimated outstanding losses are the cost of claims that have occurred but have not yet been 
paid. They typically include indemnification and allocated loss adjustment expenses 
(ALAE), but not unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE).  
 
Estimated outstanding losses are calculated as projected ultimate losses less paid losses. 
Alternatively, they are the sum of case reserves and incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. 
 
Estimated outstanding losses are usually the largest single item listed as a liability on the 
balance sheet of a public entity’s financial statement. GASB Statement No. 10 requires they 
be calculated by actuarial methods. Other common names for estimated outstanding losses 
are outstanding claims liabilities and unpaid claims. 
 
 
Experience Rating 
 
A method of adjusting the premium for a risk based on past loss experience for that risk 
compared to loss experience for an average risk. 
 
 
Exposure Data 
 
Exposure data refers to the activities of the organization. For example, payroll is the most 
common exposure measure for workers compensation. Aon suggests collecting exposure 
data with the following characteristics: 
 

 Readily Available. The exposure data should be easily obtained. It is 
best if it is a byproduct of other activities, although this is not always 
possible. If getting data is arduous, it may discourage collection. 

 

22



 

 Vary With Losses. The exposure data should correlate directly with 
losses. The ideal situation is where exposure and expected losses move in 
tandem. The exposure base needs to be fitting to the coverage. For example, 
the number of employees may vary with property losses (more employees = 
more office space = more losses), but property value is a clearly superior 
exposure base for property losses. 

 
 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
 
These principles are intended to produce financial results (in the insurance industry) 
consistent with those of other industries and to assure consistency in financial reporting. 
 
 
Incurred But Not Reported 
 
IBNR is really comprised of two distinct items. These are the development of known case 
reserves (incurred but not enough reported [IBNER] and incurred but not yet reported 
[IBNYR]). 
 
IBNER are the actuary’s estimate of the inadequacy of case reserves. Most claims settle at 
amounts close to what is set by the claims administrator. Some claims close favorably and 
some emerge as more expensive. On balance, case reserves tend to be too low (especially for 
recent years). IBNER is the actuary’s estimate of the amount total case reserves will rise 
upon closure. 
 
IBNYR refers to those claims that have occurred, but have not yet been reported. A classic 
example is medical malpractice claim reported several years after the medical procedure was 
performed.  
 
 
Insurance Services Office (ISO) 
 
An organization of the property and casualty insurance business designed to gather statistics, 
promulgate rates, and develop policy forms. 
 
 
Investment Income 
 
The return received by entities from their investment portfolios, including interest, dividends 
and realized capital gains on stocks. Realized capital gains means the profit realized on 
assets that have actually been sold for more than their purchase price. 
 
 

23



 

Limited 
 
Most programs purchase excess insurance for catastrophic claims. For example, they may 
purchase coverage for claims above a $500,000 per occurrence self-insured retention. 
“Limited” refers to an estimate or projection being limited to the self-insured retention. In 
contrast, “unlimited” means a loss projection not limited to the self-insured retention. 
 
Other common names for limited are net of excess insurance or capped losses. 
 
 
Loss Development 
 
The difference between the amount of losses initially estimated by the insurer and the 
amount reported in an evaluation on a later date. Loss development is typically measured for 
paid losses, reported incurred losses and claim counts. 
 
 
Manual Rates 
 
Usually, the published rate for some unit of insurance. An example is in the workers 
compensation manual, where the rates shown apply to each $100 of the payroll of the 
insured, $100 being the “unit.” 
 
 
National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) 
 
An association of workers compensation insurance companies whose main functions are 
collecting statistics and calculating rates, establishing policy wording, developing experience 
and retrospective rating plans, and serving as the filing organization for member companies. 
 
 
Net 
 
Many pooling programs assign deductibles to members. For example, each member may 
have a $5,000 per claim deductible. “Net” refers to a loss estimate or projection that excludes 
amounts below member deductibles. 
 
 
Occurrence 
 
An event that results in an insured loss. In some lines of insurance, such as general liability, 
it is distinguished from accident in that the loss does not have to be sudden and fortuitous 
and can result from continuous or repeated exposure that results in bodily injury or property 
damage neither expected nor intended by the insured. 
 
 

24



 

Pool 
 
An organization of entities through which particular types of risks are written with the 
premiums, losses, and expenses shared in agreed amounts among the members belonging to 
the organization. 
 
 
Premium 
 
The price of insurance protection for a specified risk for a specified period of time. 
 
 
Present Value 
 
The amount of money that future amounts receivable are currently worth. For example, a 
Life Insurance policy may provide for payments to be made monthly for ten years. The 
present value of that money would be less than the total amount of the regular periodic 
payments for 10 years because of the amount of interest that a present lump sum could earn 
during the term than the payments otherwise would have been made.  
 
 
Probability 
 
The probability is the likelihood of an event. It is a measure of how likely a value or event is 
to occur. It can be measured from data by calculating the number of occurrences of the value 
or event divided by the total number of occurrences. This calculation can be converted to a 
percentage. For example, tossing a coin has a 50% probability of heads or tails. 
 
 
Projected Losses Paid 
 
Projected losses paid are the projected claims disbursements in a period, regardless of when 
the claim occurred. They typically include indemnification and ALAE, but not unallocated 
loss adjustment expenses (ULAE). 
 
“Projected losses paid” is a cash-flow analysis that can be used in making investment 
decisions. 
 
 
Projected Ultimate Losses 
 
Projected ultimate losses are the accrual value of claims. They are the total amount that is 
expected to be paid in a particular claim period after all claims are closed. Projected ultimate 

25



 

losses are the total loss costs for a particular period. They typically include indemnification 
and ALAE, but not ULAE. 
 
Other common names for projected ultimate losses are expected losses, ultimate losses and 
total losses. 
 
 
Rate 
 
The cost of a given unit of insurance. For example, in life insurance, it is the price of $1,000 
of the face amount. In property insurance, it is the rate per $100 of value to be insured. The 
premium is the rate multiplied by the number of units of insurance purchased. 
 
 
Retrospective Rating 
 
A method for which the final premium is not determined until the end of the coverage 
period, and is based on the insured’s own loss experience for that same period. It is usually 
subject to a maximum and minimum premium. A plan of this type can be used in various 
types of insurance, especially workers compensation and liability, and is usually elected by 
only very large insureds. 
 
 
Salvage 
 
Property taken over by an entity to reduce its loss. Automobile physical damage losses can 
be reduced by the sale of recovered vehicles. 
 
 
Schedule Rating 
 
The application of debits or credits within established ranges for various characteristics of a 
risk according to an established schedule of items. Under liability and automobile insurance, 
the schedule rating plan allows credits and debits for various good or bad features of a 
particular commercial risk. An example in automobile schedule rating would be allowing 
credits for driver training classes or fleet maintenance programs. 
 
 
Self-Insurance Retention (SIR) 
 
That portion of a risk or potential loss assumed by an insured. It is often in the form of a per 
occurrence deductible. 
 
 

26



 

Society of Actuaries (SOA) 
 
A professional society for actuaries in areas of pensions, and life and health insurance work. 
The SOA grants the designation Associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA) and Fellow of 
the Society of Actuaries (FSA). 
 
 
Standard Premium 
 
Most often used in connection with retrospective rating for Workers Compensation and 
General Liability Insurance. It is the premium of which the basic premium is a percentage 
and is developed by applying the regular rates to an insured’s payroll.  
 
 
State Fund 
 
A fund set up by a state government to finance a mandatory insurance system, such as 
Workers Compensation or non-occupational disability benefits. Such a fund may be 
monopolistic, i.e., purchasers of the type of insurance required must place it in the state fund; 
or it may be competitive, i.e., an alternative to private insurance if the purchaser desires to 
use it. 
 
 
Statutory Accounting Principles (SAP) 
 
Those principles required by statute that must be followed by an insurance company or other 
similar entity when submitting its financial statement to the state insurance department. Such 
principles differ from (GAAP) in some important respects. For one thing SAP requires that 
expenses must be recorded immediately and cannot be deferred to track with premiums as 
they are earned and taken into revenue. 
 
 
Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expenses 
 
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) are the indirect expenses to settle claims. 
These expenses are primarily administration and claims handling expenses.  
 
GASB Statement No. 10 requires that ULAE be included in financial statements and that 
they be calculated by actuarial methods. 

27



 

 
 Appendix C 
 

Exhibits 
 
 
The attached exhibits detail our analysis. 

28



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-1 (page 1)
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Data Summary as of June 30, 2012
Losses Limited to Self-Insured Retention

Claim
Period

Specific
Self-Insured
Retention

Aggregate
Retention

Months of
Development

6/30/12
Payroll
(000)

Reported
Claims
6/30/12

Open
Claims
6/30/12

Limited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Limited
Case

Reserves
6/30/12

Limited
Reported
Incurred
Losses
6/30/12

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)
------------------------------ -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- --------------------- --------------------- ---------------------

to 1992/93 See Note None 240.0 Not Provided 39 7 $4,587,625 $262,971 $4,850,596
1993/94 Unlimited None 228.0 Not Provided 5 0 397,029 0 397,029
1994/95 Unlimited None 216.0 133,835 18 1 1,972,233 99,341 2,071,574
1995/96 Unlimited None 204.0 157,149 15 0 1,256,752 0 1,256,752
1996/97 Unlimited None 192.0 178,257 26 0 955,189 0 955,189
1997/98 Unlimited None 180.0 194,133 108 6 4,519,307 243,606 4,762,913
1998/99 Unlimited None 168.0 209,650 126 4 2,788,970 220,304 3,009,274
1999/00 Unlimited None 156.0 224,325 273 6 4,177,783 204,933 4,382,716
2000/01 Unlimited None 144.0 237,785 679 12 5,300,371 761,869 6,062,239
2001/02 Unlimited None 132.0 249,675 789 13 6,144,918 1,222,748 7,367,666
2002/03 Unlimited None 120.0 307,072 693 14 5,628,821 310,437 5,939,258
2003/04 Unlimited None 108.0 294,759 615 10 3,998,498 115,288 4,113,786
2004/05 Unlimited None 96.0 284,445 486 8 2,959,332 331,363 3,290,695
2005/06 Unlimited None 84.0 289,808 466 13 2,877,595 818,452 3,696,047
2006/07 Unlimited None 72.0 331,250 504 14 3,233,569 425,700 3,659,269
2007/08 Unlimited None 60.0 342,744 502 27 2,663,867 838,375 3,502,241
2008/09 Unlimited None 48.0 322,456 485 18 1,658,676 376,393 2,035,069
2009/10 1,000,000 None 36.0 328,981 498 47 2,542,888 1,845,902 4,388,789
2010/11 1,000,000 None 24.0 315,947 494 39 1,374,759 819,856 2,194,615
2011/12 1,000,000 None 12.0 310,723 453 118 505,920 1,485,267 1,991,187

----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- -----------------------
Total 7,274 357 $59,544,101 $10,382,804 $69,926,905

* The specific self-insured retention changes are as follows:

Effective Date Retention
------------------------------ --------------------

07/01/86 Unlimited
11/01/09 1,000,000

(8), (9) and (10) are net of the specific self-insured retention.

Data was provided by the District.

SantaAnaUSD_WC_063012.xlsx

29



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-1 (page 2)
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Data Summary as of June 30, 2012
Unlimited Losses

Claim
Period

Specific
Self-Insured
Retention

Aggregate
Retention

Months of
Development

6/30/12
Payroll
(000)

Reported
Claims
6/30/12

Open
Claims
6/30/12

Unlimited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Unlimited
Case

Reserves
6/30/12

Unlimited
Reported
Incurred
Losses
6/30/12

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)
------------------------------ -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- --------------------- --------------------- ---------------------

to 1992/93 Unlimited None 240.0 Not Provided 39 7 $4,587,625 $262,971 $4,850,596
1993/94 Unlimited None 228.0 Not Provided 5 0 397,029 0 397,029
1994/95 Unlimited None 216.0 133,835 18 1 1,972,233 99,341 2,071,574
1995/96 Unlimited None 204.0 157,149 15 0 1,256,752 0 1,256,752
1996/97 Unlimited None 192.0 178,257 26 0 955,189 0 955,189
1997/98 Unlimited None 180.0 194,133 108 6 4,519,307 243,606 4,762,913
1998/99 Unlimited None 168.0 209,650 126 4 2,788,970 220,304 3,009,274
1999/00 Unlimited None 156.0 224,325 273 6 4,177,783 204,933 4,382,716
2000/01 Unlimited None 144.0 237,785 679 12 5,300,371 761,869 6,062,239
2001/02 Unlimited None 132.0 249,675 789 13 6,144,918 1,222,748 7,367,666
2002/03 Unlimited None 120.0 307,072 693 14 5,628,821 310,437 5,939,258
2003/04 Unlimited None 108.0 294,759 615 10 3,998,498 115,288 4,113,786
2004/05 Unlimited None 96.0 284,445 486 8 2,959,332 331,363 3,290,695
2005/06 Unlimited None 84.0 289,808 466 13 2,877,595 818,452 3,696,047
2006/07 Unlimited None 72.0 331,250 504 14 3,233,569 425,700 3,659,269
2007/08 Unlimited None 60.0 342,744 502 27 2,663,867 838,375 3,502,241
2008/09 Unlimited None 48.0 322,456 485 18 1,658,676 376,393 2,035,069
2009/10 Unlimited None 36.0 328,981 498 47 2,542,888 1,845,902 4,388,789
2010/11 Unlimited None 24.0 315,947 494 39 1,374,759 819,856 2,194,615
2011/12 Unlimited None 12.0 310,723 453 118 505,920 1,485,267 1,991,187

----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- -----------------------
Total 7,274 357 $59,544,101 $10,382,804 $69,926,905

(8), (9) and (10) are gross of the specific self-insured retention.

Data was provided by the District.

SantaAnaUSD_WC_063012.xlsx

30



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-2 (page 1)
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Summary of Percent Losses Paid, Losses Reported and Claims Reported

Months of
Development

Percent
Losses

Paid

Percent
Losses

Reported

Percent
Claims

Reported
Months of

Development

Percent
Losses

Paid

Percent
Losses

Reported

Percent
Claims

Reported
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------
360.0 # 99.9% # 100.0% # 100.0% 354.0 99.8% 100.0% 100.0%
348.0 # 99.8% # 100.0% # 100.0% 342.0 99.8% 100.0% 100.0%
336.0 # 99.7% # 100.0% # 100.0% 330.0 99.7% 100.0% 100.0%
324.0 # 99.6% # 100.0% # 100.0% 318.0 99.5% 100.0% 100.0%
312.0 # 99.4% # 100.0% # 100.0% 306.0 99.3% 100.0% 100.0%
300.0 # 99.2% # 100.0% # 100.0% 294.0 99.0% 100.0% 100.0%
288.0 # 98.9% # 100.0% # 100.0% 282.0 98.6% 100.0% 100.0%
276.0 # 98.4% # 100.0% # 100.0% 270.0 98.0% 100.0% 100.0%
264.0 # 97.7% # 100.0% # 100.0% 258.0 97.2% 100.0% 100.0%
252.0 # 96.7% # 100.0% # 100.0% 246.0 96.0% 99.9% 100.0%
240.0 # 95.2% # 99.8% # 100.0% 234.0 95.2% 99.8% 100.0%
228.0 # 95.1% # 99.7% # 100.0% 222.0 95.1% 99.7% 100.0%
216.0 # 95.0% # 99.6% # 100.0% 210.0 95.0% 99.6% 100.0%
204.0 # 95.0% # 99.5% # 100.0% 198.0 94.9% 99.5% 100.0%
192.0 # 94.9% # 99.4% # 100.0% 186.0 94.8% 99.4% 100.0%
180.0 # 94.7% # 99.3% # 100.0% 174.0 94.5% 99.3% 100.0%
168.0 # 94.4% # 99.2% # 100.0% 162.0 94.2% 99.2% 100.0%
156.0 # 93.9% # 99.1% # 100.0% 150.0 93.5% 99.1% 100.0%
144.0 # 93.0% # 99.0% # 100.0% 138.0 92.1% 98.9% 100.0%
132.0 # 91.2% # 98.8% # 100.0% 126.0 90.2% 98.7% 100.0%
120.0 # 89.2% # 98.5% # 100.0% 114.0 88.1% 98.3% 100.0%
108.0 # 87.0% # 98.0% # 100.0% 102.0 85.4% 97.5% 100.0%
96.0 # 83.7% # 97.1% # 100.0% 90.0 81.9% 96.1% 100.0%
84.0 # 80.1% # 95.1% # 100.0% 78.0 76.4% 93.9% 100.0%
72.0 # 72.8% # 92.6% # 100.0% 66.0 68.9% 90.9% 100.0%
60.0 # 65.0% # 89.1% # 100.0% 54.0 61.3% 86.2% 100.0%
48.0 # 57.5% # 83.3% # 100.0% 42.0 53.1% 77.8% 99.9%
36.0 # 48.7% # 72.4% # 99.8% 30.0 42.4% 65.9% 99.6%
24.0 # 36.1% # 59.3% # 99.4% 18.0 25.3% 46.2% 98.0%
12.0 # 14.4% # 33.0% # 96.5% 6.0 7.2% 16.5% 48.3%

(2) is from Exhibit WC-2 (page 2).

(3) is from Exhibit WC-2 (page 3).

(4) is from Exhibit WC-2 (page 4).

(6), (7) and (8) are interpolated, based on (2), (3) and (4), respectively.

31



S
A

N
T

A
 A

N
A

 U
N

IF
IE

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
E

xh
ib

it 
W

C
-2

 (
pa

ge
 2

)
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

' C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N

H
is

to
ric

al
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

P
ai

d 
Lo

ss
es

 (
$0

00
) 

an
d 

U
nl

im
ite

d 
P

ai
d 

Lo
ss

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

I. 
 H

is
to

ric
al

 U
nl

im
ite

d 
P

ai
d 

Lo
ss

es
 (

$0
00

)

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

24
36

48
60

72
84

96
10

8
12

0
13

2
14

4
15

6
16

8
18

0
19

2
20

4
21

6
22

8
24

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
$4

,3
32

$4
,3

81
$4

,5
15

$4
,5

88
19

93
/9

4
32

1
33

9
35

5
35

9
37

2
38

6
39

3
39

6
39

6
39

6
39

7
19

94
/9

5
1,

33
5

1,
39

7
1,

51
6

1,
64

1
1,

76
8

1,
83

0
1,

89
4

1,
91

7
1,

92
5

1,
93

4
1,

97
2

19
95

/9
6

43
7

56
2

92
9

99
2

1,
06

1
1,

10
0

1,
12

1
1,

20
4

1,
23

3
1,

24
0

1,
25

7
19

96
/9

7
79

0
84

9
90

1
91

8
92

8
94

7
94

8
94

9
95

0
95

1
95

5
19

97
/9

8
2,

63
7

2,
96

0
3,

14
5

3,
29

2
3,

59
3

4,
00

8
4,

17
0

4,
22

2
4,

35
9

4,
48

6
4,

51
9

19
98

/9
9

1,
53

6
1,

80
2

1,
97

1
2,

11
4

2,
28

7
2,

44
8

2,
52

1
2,

56
3

2,
71

2
2,

76
6

2,
78

9
19

99
/0

0
1,

98
8

2,
52

5
2,

81
8

2,
99

7
3,

39
4

3,
66

2
3,

86
9

3,
95

1
4,

02
7

4,
13

5
4,

17
8

20
00

/0
1

1,
54

6
2,

45
5

3,
00

1
3,

31
5

3,
83

3
4,

36
6

4,
59

3
4,

82
2

5,
05

9
5,

20
7

5,
30

0
20

01
/0

2
77

6
2,

02
3

2,
85

1
3,

40
6

3,
92

2
4,

49
0

5,
05

4
5,

51
6

5,
75

4
5,

97
0

6,
14

5
20

02
/0

3
82

7
1,

96
8

2,
77

4
3,

70
8

4,
34

6
4,

94
5

5,
25

7
5,

44
4

5,
56

2
5,

62
9

20
03

/0
4

48
3

1,
40

5
2,

24
0

2,
85

6
3,

49
2

3,
70

9
3,

84
8

3,
96

2
3,

99
8

20
04

/0
5

42
3

1,
24

6
1,

71
5

2,
06

5
2,

25
7

2,
57

3
2,

90
5

2,
95

9
20

05
/0

6
59

5
1,

39
5

1,
92

3
2,

27
7

2,
49

6
2,

77
7

2,
87

8
20

06
/0

7
1,

08
6

2,
26

4
2,

62
9

2,
83

8
3,

16
4

3,
23

4
20

07
/0

8
50

7
1,

52
0

2,
00

8
2,

43
4

2,
66

4
20

08
/0

9
49

0
1,

00
8

1,
36

1
1,

65
9

20
09

/1
0

58
0

1,
73

5
2,

54
3

20
10

/1
1

70
7

1,
37

5
20

11
/1

2
50

6

II.
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

P
ai

d 
Lo

ss
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

-2
4

24
-3

6
36

-4
8

48
-6

0
60

-7
2

72
-8

4
84

-9
6

96
-1

08
10

8-
12

0
12

0-
13

2
13

2-
14

4
14

4-
15

6
15

6-
16

8
16

8-
18

0
18

0-
19

2
19

2-
20

4
20

4-
21

6
21

6-
22

8
22

8-
24

0
24

0
-U

lt
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
1.

01
1

1.
03

1
1.

01
6

19
93

/9
4

1.
05

4
1.

04
8

1.
01

2
1.

03
5

1.
03

9
1.

01
9

1.
00

7
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
2

19
94

/9
5

1.
04

7
1.

08
5

1.
08

3
1.

07
7

1.
03

5
1.

03
5

1.
01

2
1.

00
4

1.
00

5
1.

02
0

19
95

/9
6

1.
28

4
1.

65
3

1.
06

8
1.

06
9

1.
03

7
1.

01
8

1.
07

5
1.

02
4

1.
00

5
1.

01
4

19
96

/9
7

1.
07

5
1.

06
2

1.
01

9
1.

01
0

1.
02

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

1.
00

2
1.

00
4

19
97

/9
8

1.
12

2
1.

06
3

1.
04

7
1.

09
2

1.
11

5
1.

04
0

1.
01

3
1.

03
2

1.
02

9
1.

00
8

19
98

/9
9

1.
17

3
1.

09
4

1.
07

2
1.

08
2

1.
07

0
1.

03
0

1.
01

7
1.

05
8

1.
02

0
1.

00
8

19
99

/0
0

1.
27

0
1.

11
6

1.
06

4
1.

13
2

1.
07

9
1.

05
7

1.
02

1
1.

01
9

1.
02

7
1.

01
0

20
00

/0
1

1.
58

8
1.

22
2

1.
10

5
1.

15
6

1.
13

9
1.

05
2

1.
05

0
1.

04
9

1.
02

9
1.

01
8

20
01

/0
2

2.
60

6
1.

40
9

1.
19

5
1.

15
2

1.
14

5
1.

12
6

1.
09

1
1.

04
3

1.
03

8
1.

02
9

20
02

/0
3

2.
38

1
1.

40
9

1.
33

7
1.

17
2

1.
13

8
1.

06
3

1.
03

5
1.

02
2

1.
01

2
20

03
/0

4
2.

90
9

1.
59

5
1.

27
5

1.
22

3
1.

06
2

1.
03

7
1.

03
0

1.
00

9
20

04
/0

5
2.

94
9

1.
37

6
1.

20
5

1.
09

3
1.

14
0

1.
12

9
1.

01
9

20
05

/0
6

2.
34

6
1.

37
8

1.
18

4
1.

09
6

1.
11

3
1.

03
6

20
06

/0
7

2.
08

5
1.

16
2

1.
07

9
1.

11
5

1.
02

2
20

07
/0

8
2.

99
8

1.
32

1
1.

21
2

1.
09

4
20

08
/0

9
2.

05
6

1.
35

0
1.

21
9

20
09

/1
0

2.
99

2
1.

46
6

20
10

/1
1

1.
94

3
20

11
/1

2

A
ve

ra
ge

A
ll

2.
52

7
1.

40
5

1.
22

0
1.

13
4

1.
10

6
1.

08
7

1.
07

8
1.

10
6

1.
04

8
1.

03
9

1.
03

0
1.

02
2

1.
03

1
1.

01
3

1.
00

5
1.

00
6

1.
01

0
1.

01
6

1.
01

6
W

td
 3

2.
31

7
1.

38
7

1.
15

6
1.

10
3

1.
08

4
1.

06
3

1.
03

0
1.

02
6

1.
03

2
1.

02
7

1.
03

0
1.

02
1

1.
01

9
1.

01
0

1.
00

4
1.

00
7

1.
01

3
La

st
 3

2.
33

1
1.

37
9

1.
17

0
1.

10
2

1.
09

1
1.

06
8

1.
02

8
1.

02
5

1.
03

3
1.

02
6

1.
03

4
1.

02
1

1.
01

3
1.

01
1

1.
00

4
1.

00
6

1.
01

0
La

st
 5

2.
37

8
1.

35
0

1.
20

0
1.

10
2

1.
10

4
1.

07
5

1.
03

9
1.

03
8

1.
03

0
1.

02
6

1.
01

9
1.

01
6

1.
02

4
1.

01
3

x-
hi

,lo
w

S
im

ila
r

2.
48

3
1.

48
7

1.
24

5
1.

14
5

1.
09

9
1.

06
3

1.
04

7
1.

02
8

1.
02

8
1.

02
8

1.
02

5
1.

01
9

1.
01

6
1.

01
4

1.
01

0
1.

00
9

1.
00

6
1.

00
6

1.
00

4
1.

07
1

P
re

vi
ou

s
2.

50
0

1.
35

0
1.

18
0

1.
14

0
1.

12
0

1.
10

0
1.

05
0

1.
04

5
1.

02
5

1.
02

0
1.

01
5

1.
01

0
1.

00
5

1.
00

3
1.

00
2

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
05

0

S
el

ec
te

d
2.

50
0

1.
35

0
1.

18
0

1.
13

0
1.

12
0

1.
10

0
1.

04
5

1.
04

0
1.

02
5

1.
02

2
1.

02
0

1.
01

0
1.

00
5

1.
00

3
1.

00
2

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
05

0
C

um
ul

at
iv

e
6.

92
4

2.
77

0
2.

05
2

1.
73

9
1.

53
9

1.
37

4
1.

24
9

1.
19

5
1.

14
9

1.
12

1
1.

09
7

1.
07

5
1.

06
5

1.
05

9
1.

05
6

1.
05

4
1.

05
3

1.
05

2
1.

05
1

1.
05

0
P

er
ce

nt
14

.4
%

36
.1

%
48

.7
%

57
.5

%
65

.0
%

72
.8

%
80

.1
%

83
.7

%
87

.0
%

89
.2

%
91

.2
%

93
.0

%
93

.9
%

94
.4

%
94

.7
%

94
.9

%
95

.0
%

95
.0

%
95

.1
%

95
.2

%

A
m

ou
nt

s 
ar

e 
un

lim
ite

d 
(g

ro
ss

 o
f e

xc
es

s 
in

su
ra

nc
e)

.

D
at

a 
w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t.

32



S
A

N
T

A
 A

N
A

 U
N

IF
IE

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
E

xh
ib

it 
W

C
-2

 (
pa

ge
 3

)
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

' C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N

H
is

to
ric

al
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

R
ep

or
te

d 
In

cu
rr

ed
 L

os
se

s 
($

00
0)

 a
nd

 U
nl

im
ite

d 
R

ep
or

te
d 

In
cu

rr
ed

 L
os

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

I. 
 H

is
to

ric
al

 U
nl

im
ite

d 
R

ep
or

te
d 

In
cu

rr
ed

 L
os

se
s 

($
00

0)

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

24
36

48
60

72
84

96
10

8
12

0
13

2
14

4
15

6
16

8
18

0
19

2
20

4
21

6
22

8
24

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
$4

,9
35

$4
,9

11
$4

,6
73

$4
,8

51
19

93
/9

4
45

5
45

2
52

1
50

8
51

1
49

5
39

6
39

8
39

6
39

6
39

7
19

94
/9

5
1,

65
7

1,
64

4
1,

95
3

1,
98

9
2,

01
5

1,
99

7
1,

98
9

1,
97

1
2,

03
9

2,
03

9
2,

07
2

19
95

/9
6

74
5

1,
62

1
1,

67
3

1,
72

4
1,

18
7

1,
18

9
1,

21
1

1,
26

4
1,

33
2

1,
28

4
1,

25
7

19
96

/9
7

1,
12

7
1,

13
6

1,
11

8
1,

06
1

1,
01

7
99

1
99

1
95

9
95

0
96

4
95

5
19

97
/9

8
3,

80
3

3,
91

2
3,

93
1

4,
01

7
4,

39
2

4,
45

2
4,

46
4

4,
46

1
4,

81
0

4,
92

5
4,

76
3

19
98

/9
9

2,
39

9
2,

50
0

2,
78

5
2,

74
9

2,
78

1
2,

77
8

2,
76

3
2,

71
7

2,
81

7
2,

97
6

3,
00

9
19

99
/0

0
3,

43
3

3,
58

7
3,

70
5

3,
90

3
4,

04
0

4,
09

0
4,

17
2

4,
22

5
4,

35
3

4,
47

9
4,

38
3

20
00

/0
1

3,
19

3
3,

81
4

4,
50

6
4,

71
0

4,
74

7
5,

04
1

5,
18

7
5,

29
1

5,
93

3
6,

18
6

6,
06

2
20

01
/0

2
2,

32
4

3,
43

7
4,

37
6

4,
71

7
4,

92
1

5,
21

7
5,

66
2

6,
25

1
7,

24
9

7,
30

1
7,

36
8

20
02

/0
3

1,
73

4
3,

56
4

4,
28

5
4,

79
9

5,
32

5
5,

75
4

5,
79

1
6,

00
9

5,
98

0
5,

93
9

20
03

/0
4

2,
23

9
3,

16
4

3,
31

4
3,

50
4

3,
91

6
4,

14
7

4,
13

3
4,

16
4

4,
11

4
20

04
/0

5
79

8
1,

53
4

2,
19

0
2,

54
0

2,
89

8
3,

67
6

3,
39

3
3,

29
1

20
05

/0
6

1,
01

1
1,

95
2

2,
49

9
2,

87
6

3,
91

3
4,

01
0

3,
69

6
20

06
/0

7
1,

53
8

2,
92

4
3,

34
2

3,
92

0
3,

70
8

3,
65

9
20

07
/0

8
1,

20
5

2,
58

0
3,

23
2

3,
76

3
3,

50
2

20
08

/0
9

1,
18

9
2,

10
9

2,
31

3
2,

03
5

20
09

/1
0

2,
36

4
4,

96
2

4,
38

9
20

10
/1

1
2,

49
3

2,
19

5
20

11
/1

2
1,

99
1

II.
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

R
ep

or
te

d 
In

cu
rr

ed
 L

os
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

-2
4

24
-3

6
36

-4
8

48
-6

0
60

-7
2

72
-8

4
84

-9
6

96
-1

08
10

8-
12

0
12

0-
13

2
13

2-
14

4
14

4-
15

6
15

6-
16

8
16

8-
18

0
18

0-
19

2
19

2-
20

4
20

4-
21

6
21

6-
22

8
22

8-
24

0
24

0
-U

lt
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
0.

99
5

0.
95

2
1.

03
8

19
93

/9
4

0.
99

3
1.

15
3

0.
97

5
1.

00
7

0.
96

8
0.

79
9

1.
00

7
0.

99
5

1.
00

0
1.

00
2

19
94

/9
5

0.
99

2
1.

18
8

1.
01

9
1.

01
3

0.
99

1
0.

99
6

0.
99

1
1.

03
4

1.
00

0
1.

01
6

19
95

/9
6

2.
17

5
1.

03
2

1.
03

0
0.

68
9

1.
00

2
1.

01
8

1.
04

4
1.

05
4

0.
96

4
0.

97
9

19
96

/9
7

1.
00

8
0.

98
4

0.
94

9
0.

95
8

0.
97

5
1.

00
0

0.
96

7
0.

99
0

1.
01

5
0.

99
1

19
97

/9
8

1.
02

9
1.

00
5

1.
02

2
1.

09
3

1.
01

4
1.

00
3

0.
99

9
1.

07
8

1.
02

4
0.

96
7

19
98

/9
9

1.
04

2
1.

11
4

0.
98

7
1.

01
1

0.
99

9
0.

99
5

0.
98

3
1.

03
7

1.
05

7
1.

01
1

19
99

/0
0

1.
04

5
1.

03
3

1.
05

4
1.

03
5

1.
01

2
1.

02
0

1.
01

3
1.

03
0

1.
02

9
0.

97
8

20
00

/0
1

1.
19

5
1.

18
2

1.
04

5
1.

00
8

1.
06

2
1.

02
9

1.
02

0
1.

12
1

1.
04

3
0.

98
0

20
01

/0
2

1.
47

9
1.

27
3

1.
07

8
1.

04
3

1.
06

0
1.

08
5

1.
10

4
1.

16
0

1.
00

7
1.

00
9

20
02

/0
3

2.
05

6
1.

20
2

1.
12

0
1.

10
9

1.
08

1
1.

00
6

1.
03

8
0.

99
5

0.
99

3
20

03
/0

4
1.

41
3

1.
04

7
1.

05
7

1.
11

8
1.

05
9

0.
99

6
1.

00
8

0.
98

8
20

04
/0

5
1.

92
3

1.
42

8
1.

16
0

1.
14

1
1.

26
8

0.
92

3
0.

97
0

20
05

/0
6

1.
93

1
1.

28
0

1.
15

1
1.

36
1

1.
02

5
0.

92
2

20
06

/0
7

1.
90

1
1.

14
3

1.
17

3
0.

94
6

0.
98

7
20

07
/0

8
2.

14
1

1.
25

3
1.

16
4

0.
93

1
20

08
/0

9
1.

77
3

1.
09

7
0.

88
0

20
09

/1
0

2.
09

9
0.

88
4

20
10

/1
1

0.
88

0
20

11
/1

2

A
ve

ra
ge

A
ll

1.
76

0
1.

18
0

1.
10

1
1.

07
7

1.
06

8
1.

00
3

1.
13

5
1.

02
5

1.
03

1
0.

98
9

1.
00

4
1.

01
4

1.
00

5
0.

96
5

0.
99

9
0.

99
1

1.
00

4
0.

97
7

1.
03

8
W

td
 3

1.
53

2
1.

02
9

1.
09

3
1.

05
3

1.
07

9
0.

94
8

1.
01

1
1.

05
6

1.
03

5
1.

02
6

1.
00

8
1.

03
5

1.
01

6
0.

98
9

1.
00

3
0.

99
2

1.
00

1
La

st
 3

1.
58

4
1.

07
8

1.
07

2
1.

07
9

1.
09

3
0.

94
7

1.
00

5
1.

04
8

1.
04

1
1.

02
7

1.
01

5
1.

03
8

1.
00

8
1.

01
2

0.
99

7
0.

99
1

1.
00

4
La

st
 5

1.
92

4
1.

16
4

1.
15

8
1.

06
8

1.
05

5
0.

97
5

1.
02

5
1.

01
2

1.
00

5
1.

01
4

1.
00

9
1.

01
8

1.
01

0
0.

99
1

x-
hi

,lo
w

S
im

ila
r

1.
60

9
1.

26
3

1.
13

3
1.

08
5

1.
07

0
1.

05
4

1.
03

8
1.

03
1

1.
01

3
1.

01
4

1.
01

3
1.

00
8

1.
01

0
1.

01
0

1.
01

1
1.

00
3

1.
00

2
1.

00
4

1.
00

4
1.

03
5

P
re

vi
ou

s
1.

80
0

1.
23

0
1.

15
0

1.
07

0
1.

04
5

1.
03

0
1.

02
0

1.
01

0
1.

00
5

1.
00

3
1.

00
2

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

2

S
el

ec
te

d
1.

80
0

1.
22

0
1.

15
0

1.
07

0
1.

04
0

1.
02

7
1.

02
0

1.
01

0
1.

00
5

1.
00

3
1.

00
2

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

#
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
2

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

3.
03

3
1.

68
5

1.
38

1
1.

20
1

1.
12

3
1.

07
9

1.
05

1
1.

03
0

1.
02

0
1.

01
5

1.
01

2
1.

01
0

1.
00

9
1.

00
8

1.
00

7
1.

00
6

1.
00

5
1.

00
4

1.
00

3
1.

00
2

P
er

ce
nt

33
.0

%
59

.3
%

72
.4

%
83

.3
%

89
.1

%
92

.6
%

95
.1

%
97

.1
%

98
.0

%
98

.5
%

98
.8

%
99

.0
%

99
.1

%
99

.2
%

99
.3

%
99

.4
%

99
.5

%
99

.6
%

99
.7

%
99

.8
%

A
m

ou
nt

s 
ar

e 
un

lim
ite

d 
(g

ro
ss

 o
f e

xc
es

s 
in

su
ra

nc
e)

.

D
at

a 
w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t.

33



S
A

N
T

A
 A

N
A

 U
N

IF
IE

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
E

xh
ib

it 
W

C
-2

 (
pa

ge
 4

)
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

' C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N

H
is

to
ric

al
 R

ep
or

te
d 

C
la

im
s 

an
d 

R
ep

or
te

d 
C

la
im

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

I. 
 H

is
to

ric
al

 R
ep

or
te

d 
C

la
im

s

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

24
36

48
60

72
84

96
10

8
12

0
13

2
14

4
15

6
16

8
18

0
19

2
20

4
21

6
22

8
24

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
37

37
38

39
19

93
/9

4
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

19
94

/9
5

17
18

18
18

18
18

18
18

18
18

18
19

95
/9

6
13

13
14

14
15

15
15

15
15

15
15

19
96

/9
7

24
24

24
25

25
25

26
26

26
26

26
19

97
/9

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
10

8
19

98
/9

9
12

3
12

5
12

5
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
12

6
19

99
/0

0
27

2
27

2
27

3
27

3
27

3
27

3
27

3
27

3
27

3
27

3
27

3
20

00
/0

1
67

5
67

6
67

7
67

7
67

8
67

8
67

9
68

0
68

0
68

0
67

9
20

01
/0

2
61

3
62

8
63

2
63

7
78

7
78

7
78

8
78

8
78

8
78

9
78

9
20

02
/0

3
58

9
59

0
59

8
68

9
69

1
69

1
69

1
69

1
69

2
69

3
20

03
/0

4
42

4
39

8
61

0
61

1
61

3
61

5
61

5
61

5
61

5
20

04
/0

5
37

0
47

7
48

1
48

2
48

2
48

4
48

6
48

6
20

05
/0

6
44

8
46

4
46

6
46

6
46

6
46

6
46

6
20

06
/0

7
48

8
50

2
50

3
50

4
50

4
50

4
20

07
/0

8
49

1
49

9
50

0
50

1
50

2
20

08
/0

9
47

3
48

4
48

3
48

5
20

09
/1

0
48

7
49

6
49

8
20

10
/1

1
48

7
49

4
20

11
/1

2
45

3

II.
 R

ep
or

te
d 

C
la

im
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

-2
4

24
-3

6
36

-4
8

48
-6

0
60

-7
2

72
-8

4
84

-9
6

96
-1

08
10

8-
12

0
12

0-
13

2
13

2-
14

4
14

4-
15

6
15

6-
16

8
16

8-
18

0
18

0-
19

2
19

2-
20

4
20

4-
21

6
21

6-
22

8
22

8-
24

0
24

0
-U

lt
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
1.

00
0

1.
02

7
1.

02
6

19
93

/9
4

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

19
94

/9
5

1.
05

9
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

19
95

/9
6

1.
00

0
1.

07
7

1.
00

0
1.

07
1

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

19
96

/9
7

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
04

2
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

04
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

19
97

/9
8

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

19
98

/9
9

1.
01

6
1.

00
0

1.
00

8
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

19
99

/0
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
4

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

20
00

/0
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

0
1.

00
1

1.
00

0
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
0.

99
9

20
01

/0
2

1.
02

4
1.

00
6

1.
00

8
1.

23
5

1.
00

0
1.

00
1

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

20
02

/0
3

1.
00

2
1.

01
4

1.
15

2
1.

00
3

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
20

03
/0

4
0.

93
9

1.
53

3
1.

00
2

1.
00

3
1.

00
3

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
20

04
/0

5
1.

28
9

1.
00

8
1.

00
2

1.
00

0
1.

00
4

1.
00

4
1.

00
0

20
05

/0
6

1.
03

6
1.

00
4

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

20
06

/0
7

1.
02

9
1.

00
2

1.
00

2
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
20

07
/0

8
1.

01
6

1.
00

2
1.

00
2

1.
00

2
20

08
/0

9
1.

02
3

0.
99

8
1.

00
4

20
09

/1
0

1.
01

8
1.

00
4

20
10

/1
1

1.
01

4
20

11
/1

2

A
ve

ra
ge

A
ll

1.
03

9
1.

05
7

1.
01

7
1.

02
6

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

0
1.

01
8

1.
00

0
1.

00
8

1.
00

5
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

01
4

1.
02

6
W

td
 3

1.
01

9
1.

00
1

1.
00

3
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

0.
99

9
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
La

st
 3

1.
01

9
1.

00
1

1.
00

3
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
1

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
La

st
 5

1.
01

9
1.

00
3

1.
00

2
1.

00
1

1.
00

1
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

x-
hi

,lo
w

S
im

ila
r

1.
07

6
1.

00
6

1.
00

2
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

P
re

vi
ou

s
1.

03
0

1.
00

4
1.

00
2

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0

S
el

ec
te

d
1.

03
0

1.
00

4
1.

00
2

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
C

um
ul

at
iv

e
1.

03
6

1.
00

6
1.

00
2

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
1.

00
0

1.
00

0
P

er
ce

nt
96

.5
%

99
.4

%
99

.8
%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%

D
at

a 
w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t.

34



S
A

N
T

A
 A

N
A

 U
N

IF
IE

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
E

xh
ib

it 
W

C
-2

 (
pa

ge
 5

)
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

' C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N

H
is

to
ric

al
 R

at
io

 o
f U

nl
im

ite
d 

P
ai

d 
Lo

ss
es

 a
nd

 U
nl

im
ite

d 
R

ep
or

te
d 

In
cu

rr
ed

 L
os

se
s

I. 
 R

at
io

 o
f U

nl
im

ite
d 

P
ai

d 
Lo

ss
es

 to
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

R
ep

or
te

d 
In

cu
rr

ed
 L

os
se

s

C
la

im
M

on
th

s 
of

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t:
P

er
io

d
12

24
36

48
60

72
84

96
10

8
12

0
13

2
14

4
15

6
16

8
18

0
19

2
20

4
21

6
22

8
24

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

to
 1

99
2/

93
87

.8
%

89
.2

%
96

.6
%

94
.6

%
19

93
/9

4
70

.7
%

75
.0

%
68

.1
%

70
.7

%
72

.7
%

78
.0

%
99

.5
%

99
.5

%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

19
94

/9
5

80
.6

%
85

.0
%

77
.6

%
82

.5
%

87
.8

%
91

.6
%

95
.2

%
97

.3
%

94
.4

%
94

.9
%

95
.2

%
19

95
/9

6
58

.7
%

34
.7

%
55

.5
%

57
.6

%
89

.3
%

92
.5

%
92

.6
%

95
.3

%
92

.6
%

96
.5

%
10

0.
0%

19
96

/9
7

70
.1

%
74

.7
%

80
.7

%
86

.6
%

91
.3

%
95

.6
%

95
.7

%
99

.0
%

10
0.

0%
98

.7
%

10
0.

0%
19

97
/9

8
69

.4
%

75
.7

%
80

.0
%

81
.9

%
81

.8
%

90
.0

%
93

.4
%

94
.7

%
90

.6
%

91
.1

%
94

.9
%

19
98

/9
9

64
.0

%
72

.1
%

70
.8

%
76

.9
%

82
.3

%
88

.1
%

91
.2

%
94

.3
%

96
.2

%
92

.9
%

92
.7

%
19

99
/0

0
57

.9
%

70
.4

%
76

.1
%

76
.8

%
84

.0
%

89
.5

%
92

.7
%

93
.5

%
92

.5
%

92
.3

%
95

.3
%

20
00

/0
1

48
.4

%
64

.4
%

66
.6

%
70

.4
%

80
.7

%
86

.6
%

88
.6

%
91

.1
%

85
.3

%
84

.2
%

87
.4

%
20

01
/0

2
33

.4
%

58
.9

%
65

.1
%

72
.2

%
79

.7
%

86
.1

%
89

.3
%

88
.2

%
79

.4
%

81
.8

%
83

.4
%

20
02

/0
3

47
.7

%
55

.2
%

64
.7

%
77

.3
%

81
.6

%
85

.9
%

90
.8

%
90

.6
%

93
.0

%
94

.8
%

20
03

/0
4

21
.6

%
44

.4
%

67
.6

%
81

.5
%

89
.2

%
89

.4
%

93
.1

%
95

.1
%

97
.2

%
20

04
/0

5
53

.0
%

81
.2

%
78

.3
%

81
.3

%
77

.9
%

70
.0

%
85

.6
%

89
.9

%
20

05
/0

6
58

.8
%

71
.5

%
77

.0
%

79
.2

%
63

.8
%

69
.2

%
77

.9
%

20
06

/0
7

70
.6

%
77

.4
%

78
.7

%
72

.4
%

85
.3

%
88

.4
%

20
07

/0
8

42
.1

%
58

.9
%

62
.1

%
64

.7
%

76
.1

%
20

08
/0

9
41

.2
%

47
.8

%
58

.8
%

81
.5

%
20

09
/1

0
24

.5
%

35
.0

%
57

.9
%

20
10

/1
1

28
.4

%
62

.6
%

20
11

/1
2

25
.4

%

A
ve

ra
ge

A
ll

40
.6

%
58

.3
%

66
.6

%
73

.7
%

76
.5

%
78

.5
%

81
.6

%
82

.0
%

83
.7

%
83

.8
%

87
.0

%
89

.7
%

90
.7

%
92

.1
%

96
.6

%
97

.6
%

95
.7

%
94

.8
%

98
.3

%
94

.6
%

La
st

 3
26

.1
%

48
.5

%
59

.6
%

72
.9

%
75

.1
%

75
.9

%
85

.5
%

91
.9

%
89

.9
%

87
.3

%
86

.7
%

92
.0

%
93

.0
%

94
.6

%
95

.4
%

97
.0

%
98

.3
%

94
.8

%
La

st
 5

31
.7

%
56

.5
%

66
.0

%
77

.6
%

79
.8

%
81

.4
%

88
.6

%
89

.7
%

92
.3

%
90

.0
%

90
.0

%
94

.2
%

93
.6

%
94

.4
%

97
.0

%
x-

hi
,lo

w

Im
pl

ic
it

43
.8

%
60

.8
%

67
.3

%
69

.1
%

73
.0

%
78

.6
%

84
.2

%
86

.2
%

88
.8

%
90

.5
%

92
.3

%
93

.9
%

94
.8

%
95

.1
%

95
.3

%
95

.4
%

95
.4

%
95

.4
%

95
.4

%
95

.4
%

35



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-3
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Developed Limited Paid Losses

Claim
Period

Months of
Development

6/30/12

Limited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Percent
Losses

Paid

Developed
Limited

Paid
Losses
(3)/(4)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

to 1992/93 240.0 $4,587,625 95.2% $4,817,006
1993/94 228.0 397,029 95.1% 417,297
1994/95 216.0 1,972,233 95.0% 2,074,989
1995/96 204.0 1,256,752 95.0% 1,323,553
1996/97 192.0 955,189 94.9% 1,006,966
1997/98 180.0 4,519,307 94.7% 4,773,811
1998/99 168.0 2,788,970 94.4% 2,954,868
1999/00 156.0 4,177,783 93.9% 4,448,424
2000/01 144.0 5,300,371 93.0% 5,700,172
2001/02 132.0 6,144,918 91.2% 6,740,590
2002/03 120.0 5,628,821 89.2% 6,310,302
2003/04 108.0 3,998,498 87.0% 4,594,661
2004/05 96.0 2,959,332 83.7% 3,536,582
2005/06 84.0 2,877,595 80.1% 3,593,652
2006/07 72.0 3,233,569 72.8% 4,442,026
2007/08 60.0 2,663,867 65.0% 4,098,543
2008/09 48.0 1,658,676 57.5% 2,883,745
2009/10 36.0 2,542,888 48.7% 5,216,805
2010/11 24.0 1,374,759 36.1% 3,807,482
2011/12 12.0 505,920 14.4% 3,502,941

(3) is from Exhibit WC-1.

(4) is from Exhibit WC-2.

36



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-4
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Developed Limited Reported Incurred Losses

Claim
Period

Months of
Development

6/30/12

Limited
Reported
Incurred
Losses
6/30/12

Percent
Losses

Reported

Developed
Limited

Reported
Incurred
Losses
(3)/(4)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

to 1992/93 240.0 $4,850,596 99.8% $4,860,297
1993/94 228.0 397,029 99.7% 398,221
1994/95 216.0 2,071,574 99.6% 2,079,871
1995/96 204.0 1,256,752 99.5% 1,263,047
1996/97 192.0 955,189 99.4% 960,934
1997/98 180.0 4,762,913 99.3% 4,796,349
1998/99 168.0 3,009,274 99.2% 3,033,429
1999/00 156.0 4,382,716 99.1% 4,422,314
2000/01 144.0 6,062,239 99.0% 6,123,129
2001/02 132.0 7,367,666 98.8% 7,456,551
2002/03 120.0 5,939,258 98.5% 6,028,943
2003/04 108.0 4,113,786 98.0% 4,196,785
2004/05 96.0 3,290,695 97.1% 3,390,658
2005/06 84.0 3,696,047 95.1% 3,884,491
2006/07 72.0 3,659,269 92.6% 3,949,675
2007/08 60.0 3,502,241 89.1% 3,931,393
2008/09 48.0 2,035,069 83.3% 2,444,350
2009/10 36.0 4,388,789 72.4% 6,062,151
2010/11 24.0 2,194,615 59.3% 3,698,283
2011/12 12.0 1,991,187 33.0% 6,039,853

(3) is from Exhibit WC-1.

(4) is from Exhibit WC-2.

37



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-5
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Developed Limited Case Reserves

Claim
Period

Months of
Development

6/30/12

Percent
Losses

Paid

Percent
Losses

Reported

Percent
Losses

Reserved
6/30/12
[(4)-(3)]/

[100.0%-(3)]

Limited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Limited
Case

Reserves
6/30/12

Developed
Limited
Case

Reserves
(6)+(7)/(5)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
------------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- -----------------------

to 1992/93 240.0 95.2% 99.8% 95.8% $4,587,625 $262,971 $4,862,101
1993/94 228.0 95.1% 99.7% 93.8% 397,029 0 397,029
1994/95 216.0 95.0% 99.6% 91.9% 1,972,233 99,341 2,080,278
1995/96 204.0 95.0% 99.5% 90.1% 1,256,752 0 1,256,752
1996/97 192.0 94.9% 99.4% 88.4% 955,189 0 955,189
1997/98 180.0 94.7% 99.3% 86.9% 4,519,307 243,606 4,799,559
1998/99 168.0 94.4% 99.2% 85.8% 2,788,970 220,304 3,045,685
1999/00 156.0 93.9% 99.1% 85.3% 4,177,783 204,933 4,418,082
2000/01 144.0 93.0% 99.0% 85.8% 5,300,371 761,869 6,188,102
2001/02 132.0 91.2% 98.8% 86.5% 6,144,918 1,222,748 7,558,320
2002/03 120.0 89.2% 98.5% 86.2% 5,628,821 310,437 5,988,850
2003/04 108.0 87.0% 98.0% 84.8% 3,998,498 115,288 4,134,518
2004/05 96.0 83.7% 97.1% 81.9% 2,959,332 331,363 3,363,741
2005/06 84.0 80.1% 95.1% 75.7% 2,877,595 818,452 3,959,438
2006/07 72.0 72.8% 92.6% 73.0% 3,233,569 425,700 3,816,933
2007/08 60.0 65.0% 89.1% 68.8% 2,663,867 838,375 3,882,162
2008/09 48.0 57.5% 83.3% 60.6% 1,658,676 376,393 2,279,933
2009/10 36.0 48.7% 72.4% 46.1% 2,542,888 1,845,902 6,543,040
2010/11 24.0 36.1% 59.3% 36.4% 1,374,759 819,856 3,629,287
2011/12 12.0 14.4% 33.0% 21.7% 505,920 1,485,267 7,365,681

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

(3) and (4) are from Exhibit WC-2.

(6) and (7) are from Exhibit WC-1.

38



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-6
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Preliminary Projected Ultimate Limited Losses to 2011/12

Claim
Period

Developed
Limited

Paid
Losses

Developed
Limited

Reported
Incurred
Losses

Developed
Limited
Case

Reserves

Preliminary
Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

to 1992/93 # $4,817,006 $4,860,297 $4,862,101 # $4,876,893
1993/94 # 417,297 398,221 397,029 # 397,029
1994/95 # 2,074,989 2,079,871 2,080,278 # 2,081,508
1995/96 # 1,323,553 1,263,047 1,256,752 # 1,256,752
1996/97 # 1,006,966 960,934 955,189 # 955,189
1997/98 # 4,773,811 4,796,349 4,799,559 # 4,799,559
1998/99 # 2,954,868 3,033,429 3,045,685 # 3,045,685
1999/00 # 4,448,424 4,422,314 4,418,082 # 4,418,082
2000/01 # 5,700,172 6,123,129 6,188,102 # 6,188,102
2001/02 # 6,740,590 7,456,551 7,558,320 # 7,558,320
2002/03 # 6,310,302 6,028,943 5,988,850 # 5,988,850
2003/04 9 4,594,661 4,196,785 4,134,518 9 4,134,518
2004/05 8 3,536,582 3,390,658 3,363,741 8 3,366,433
2005/06 7 3,593,652 3,884,491 3,959,438 7 3,944,449
2006/07 6 4,442,026 3,949,675 3,816,933 6 3,856,756
2007/08 5 4,098,543 3,931,393 3,882,162 5 3,901,854
2008/09 4 2,883,745 2,444,350 2,279,933 4 2,406,081
2009/10 3 5,216,805 6,062,151 6,543,040 3 6,085,437
2010/11 2 3,807,482 3,698,283 3,629,287 2 3,692,525
2011/12 1 3,502,941 6,039,853 7,365,681 1 6,062,802

0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

(2) is from Exhibit WC-3.

(3) is from Exhibit WC-4.

(4) is from Exhibit WC-5.

(5) is based on (2) to (4) and actuarial judgment.

39



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-7
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Bornhuetter - Ferguson Analysis

I. A-priori Loss Rate

Claim
Period

Preliminary
Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

Payroll
(000)

Limited
Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
(2)/(3)/10

Loss Rate
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Trended
Limited

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
(4)X(5)

Projected
A-priori

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
(7)/(5)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (8)
--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

2002/03 # $5,988,850 $307,072 $1.95 0.536 $1.04 $2.88
2003/04 9 4,134,518 294,759 1.40 0.617 0.87 2.50
2004/05 8 3,366,433 284,445 1.18 0.950 1.12 1.62
2005/06 7 3,944,449 289,808 1.36 1.111 1.51 1.39
2006/07 6 3,856,756 331,250 1.16 1.116 1.30 1.38
2007/08 5 3,901,854 342,744 1.14 1.102 1.25 1.40
2008/09 4 2,406,081 322,456 0.75 1.074 0.80 1.44
2009/10 3 6,085,437 328,981 1.85 1.058 1.96 1.46
2010/11 2 3,692,525 315,947 1.17 1.040 1.22 1.48
2011/12 1 6,062,802 310,723 1.95 1.020 1.99 1.51

(7) Projected 2012/13 a-priori loss rate per $100 of Payroll $1.54

II. Bornhuetter - Ferguson Analysis Based on Limited Paid Losses

Claim
Period

Limited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Percent
Losses

Paid

Projected
A-priori

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
Payroll
(000)

B-F
Unpaid
Losses

[100.0%-(3)]
X(4)X(5)X10

B-F
Ultimate
Limited

Paid
Losses
(2)+(6)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

2007/08 # $2,663,867 65.0% $1.40 $342,744 $1,679,990 $4,343,856
2008/09 # 1,658,676 57.5% 1.44 322,456 1,969,219 3,627,895
2009/10 # 2,542,888 48.7% 1.46 328,981 2,459,731 5,002,618
2010/11 # 1,374,759 36.1% 1.48 315,947 2,994,982 4,369,741
2011/12 # 505,920 14.4% 1.51 310,723 4,023,056 4,528,976

III. Bornhuetter - Ferguson Analysis Based on Limited Reported Incurred Losses

B F

Claim
Period

Limited
Reported
Incurred
Losses
6/30/12

Percent
Losses

Reported

Projected
A-priori

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
Payroll
(000)

B-F
Unreported

Losses
[100.0%-(3)]
X(4)X(5)X10

B-F
Ultimate
Limited

Reported
Losses
(2)+(6)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

2007/08 # $3,502,241 89.1% $1.40 $342,744 $523,898 $4,026,139
2008/09 # 2,035,069 83.3% 1.44 322,456 776,154 2,811,223
2009/10 # 4,388,789 72.4% 1.46 328,981 1,324,669 5,713,458
2010/11 # 2,194,615 59.3% 1.48 315,947 1,905,862 4,100,476
2011/12 # 1,991,187 33.0% 1.51 310,723 3,151,989 5,143,176

Section I, (2) is from Exhibit WC-6.

Section I, (3), Section II, (5) and Section III, (5) are from Exhibit WC-10.

Section I, (5) is from Exhibit WC-14 and adjusted for change in retention.

Section I, (7) is based on Section I, (6) and actuarial judgment.

Sections II and III, (2) are from Exhibit WC-1.

Sections II and III, (3) are from Exhibit WC-2.

Sections II and III, (4) are from Section I, (8). 40



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-8
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Frequency Times Severity Analysis

I. Projected Ultimate Claims

Claim
Period

Months of
Development

6/30/12

Reported
Claims
6/30/12

Percent
Claims

Reported

Projected
Ultimate
Claims
(3)/(4)

Payroll
(000)

Frequency
(per $1M of

Payroll)
(5)/(6)X1,000

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
------------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- -----------------------

2002/03 120.0 693 100.0% 693 $307,072 2.26
2003/04 108.0 615 100.0% 615 294,759 2.09
2004/05 96.0 486 100.0% 486 284,445 1.71
2005/06 84.0 466 100.0% 466 289,808 1.61
2006/07 72.0 504 100.0% 504 331,250 1.52
2007/08 60.0 502 100.0% 502 342,744 1.46
2008/09 48.0 485 100.0% 485 322,456 1.50
2009/10 36.0 498 99.8% 499 328,981 1.52
2010/11 24.0 494 99.4% 497 315,947 1.57
2011/12 12.0 453 96.5% 469 310,723 1.51

II. Frequency Times Severity

Claim
Period

Preliminary
Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

Projected
Ultimate
Claims

Average
Severity
(2)/(3)

Severity
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Trended
Average

Claim
Severity
(4)X(5)

De-Trended
Projected
2012/13
Average

Claim
Severity
(7)/(5)

Frequency
Times

Severity
(3)X(8)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (8) (9)
------------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- -----------------------

2002/03 $5,988,850 693 $8,642 0.720 $6,219 $15,566 $10,787,234
2003/04 4,134,518 615 6,723 0.806 5,416 13,906 8,552,122
2004/05 3,366,433 486 6,927 1.204 8,340 9,305 4,522,071
2005/06 3,944,449 466 8,464 1.367 11,568 8,197 3,819,961
2006/07 3,856,756 504 7,652 1.333 10,198 8,407 4,236,895
2007/08 3,901,854 502 7,773 1.278 9,933 8,766 4,400,721
2008/09 2,406,081 485 4,961 1.209 5,995 9,270 4,495,795
2009/10 6,085,437 499 12,195 1.156 14,101 9,688 4,834,547
2010/11 3,692,525 497 7,430 1.104 8,201 10,150 5,044,304
2011/12 6,062,802 469 12,927 1.051 13,581 10,663 5,000,980

(7) Projected 2012/13 average claim severity $11,203

Section I, (3) is from Exhibit WC-1.

Section I, (4) is from Exhibit WC-2.

Section I, (6) is from Exhibit WC-10.

Section II, (2) is from Exhibit WC-6.

Section II, (3) is from Section I, (5).

Section II, (5) is from Exhibit WC-14 and adjusted for change in retention.

Section II, (7) is based on (6) and actuarial judgment.

41



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-9
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Projected Ultimate Limited Losses to 2011/12

Claim
Period

Developed
Limited

Paid
Losses

Developed
Limited

Reported
Incurred
Losses

Developed
Limited
Case

Reserves

B-F
Ultimate
Limited

Paid
Losses

B-F
Ultimate
Limited

Reported
Losses

Frequency
Times

Severity

Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
------------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- -----------------------

to 1992/93 $4,817,006 $4,860,297 $4,862,101 $0 $0 $0 # $4,877,000
1993/94 417,297 398,221 397,029 0 0 0 # 397,029
1994/95 2,074,989 2,079,871 2,080,278 0 0 0 # 2,082,000
1995/96 1,323,553 1,263,047 1,256,752 0 0 0 # 1,256,752
1996/97 1,006,966 960,934 955,189 0 0 0 # 955,189
1997/98 4,773,811 4,796,349 4,799,559 0 0 0 # 4,800,000
1998/99 2,954,868 3,033,429 3,045,685 0 0 0 # 3,046,000
1999/00 4,448,424 4,422,314 4,418,082 0 0 0 # 4,418,000
2000/01 5,700,172 6,123,129 6,188,102 0 0 0 # 6,188,000
2001/02 6,740,590 7,456,551 7,558,320 0 0 0 # 7,558,000
2002/03 6,310,302 6,028,943 5,988,850 0 0 0 # 5,989,000
2003/04 4,594,661 4,196,785 4,134,518 0 0 0 9 4,135,000
2004/05 3,536,582 3,390,658 3,363,741 0 0 0 8 3,366,000
2005/06 3,593,652 3,884,491 3,959,438 0 0 0 7 3,944,000
2006/07 4,442,026 3,949,675 3,816,933 0 0 0 6 3,857,000
2007/08 4,098,543 3,931,393 3,882,162 4,343,856 4,026,139 4,400,721 5 3,902,000
2008/09 2,883,745 2,444,350 2,279,933 3,627,895 2,811,223 4,495,795 4 2,406,000
2009/10 5,216,805 6,062,151 6,543,040 5,002,618 5,713,458 4,834,547 3 5,545,000
2010/11 3,807,482 3,698,283 3,629,287 4,369,741 4,100,476 5,044,304 2 4,063,000
2011/12 3,502,941 6,039,853 7,365,681 4,528,976 5,143,176 5,000,980 1 4,976,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(2) is from Exhibit WC-3.

(3) is from Exhibit WC-4.

(4) is from Exhibit WC-5.

(5) and (6) are from Exhibit WC-7.

(7) is from Exhibit WC-8.

(8) is based on (2) to (7) and actuarial judgment.

42



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-10
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Projected Ultimate Limited Losses for 2012/13 and Subsequent

Claim
Period

Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

Payroll
(000)

Limited
Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
(2)/(3)/10

Loss Rate
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Trended
Limited

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
(4)X(5)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

2002/03 $5,989,000 $307,072 $1.95 0.536 $1.04
2003/04 4,135,000 294,759 1.40 0.617 0.87
2004/05 3,366,000 284,445 1.18 0.950 1.12
2005/06 3,944,000 289,808 1.36 1.111 1.51
2006/07 3,857,000 331,250 1.16 1.116 1.30
2007/08 3,902,000 342,744 1.14 1.102 1.25
2008/09 2,406,000 322,456 0.75 1.074 0.80
2009/10 5,545,000 328,981 1.69 1.058 1.78
2010/11 4,063,000 315,947 1.29 1.040 1.34
2011/12 4,976,000 310,723 1.60 1.020 1.63

--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------
Total $42,183,000 $3,128,186 $1.35 $1.27

Claim
Period

Projected
Limited

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll

Projected
Payroll
(000)

Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

(7)X(8)X10

Present
Value
Factor

Present
Value of

Projected
Limited

Loss Rate
per $100 of

Payroll
(7)X(10)

Present
Value of

Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

(8)X(11)X10
(1) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12)

--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------
20 2012/13 $1.46 $310,723 $4,542,000 0.98 $1.43 $4,436,000

2013/14 1.49 310,723 4,633,000 0.98 1.46 4,525,000
2014/15 1.52 310,723 4,726,000 0.98 1.49 4,615,000
2015/16 1.55 310,723 4,820,000 0.98 1.52 4,708,000
2016/17 1.58 310,723 4,917,000 0.98 1.55 4,802,000

(2) is from Exhibit WC-9.

(3) was provided by the District.

(5) is from Exhibit WC-14 and adjusted for change in retention.

(7) for 2012/13 is based on (6) and actuarial judgment.

(7) for 2013/14 and subsequent are based on 2012/13 plus the trend in Exhibit WC-14.

(8) is based on (3) for 2011/12 and a 0% trend.

(10) is based on a 0.5% interest rate and the payout pattern in Exhibit WC-2.

43



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-11
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Estimated Outstanding Losses as of June 30, 2012

Claim
Period

Limited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Limited
Case

Reserves
6/30/12

Limited
Reported
Incurred
Losses
6/30/12

Projected
Ultimate
Limited
Losses

Estimated
IBNR

6/30/12
(5)-(4)

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/12
(3)+(6)

Present
Value
Factor

Present
Value of

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/12
(7)X(8)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
--------------------------- --------------------- --------------------- --------------------- --------------------- --------------------- --------------------- --------------------- ---------------------

to 1992/93 $4,587,625 $262,971 $4,850,596 $4,877,000 $26,404 $289,375 # 0.99 $285,745
1993/94 397,029 0 397,029 397,029 0 0 # 0.98 0
1994/95 1,972,233 99,341 2,071,574 2,082,000 10,426 109,767 # 0.98 107,390
1995/96 1,256,752 0 1,256,752 1,256,752 0 0 # 0.97 0
1996/97 955,189 0 955,189 955,189 0 0 # 0.97 0
1997/98 4,519,307 243,606 4,762,913 4,800,000 37,087 280,693 # 0.97 271,149
1998/99 2,788,970 220,304 3,009,274 3,046,000 36,726 257,030 # 0.96 247,538
1999/00 4,177,783 204,933 4,382,716 4,418,000 35,284 240,217 # 0.96 230,939
2000/01 5,300,371 761,869 6,062,239 6,188,000 125,761 887,630 # 0.96 854,009
2001/02 6,144,918 1,222,748 7,367,666 7,558,000 190,334 1,413,082 # 0.97 1,364,688
2002/03 5,628,821 310,437 5,939,258 5,989,000 49,742 360,179 # 0.97 348,536
2003/04 3,998,498 115,288 4,113,786 4,135,000 21,214 136,502 # 0.97 132,234
2004/05 2,959,332 331,363 3,290,695 3,366,000 75,305 406,668 # 0.97 394,817
2005/06 2,877,595 818,452 3,696,047 3,944,000 247,953 1,066,405 # 0.97 1,036,290
2006/07 3,233,569 425,700 3,659,269 3,857,000 197,731 623,431 # 0.98 607,939
2007/08 2,663,867 838,375 3,502,241 3,902,000 399,759 1,238,134 # 0.98 1,208,895
2008/09 1,658,676 376,393 2,035,069 2,406,000 370,931 747,324 # 0.98 729,474
2009/10 2,542,888 1,845,902 4,388,789 5,545,000 1,156,211 3,002,113 # 0.98 2,929,354
2010/11 1,374,759 819,856 2,194,615 4,063,000 1,868,385 2,688,241 # 0.98 2,624,212
2011/12 505,920 1,485,267 1,991,187 4,976,000 2,984,813 4,470,080 # 0.98 4,371,585

----------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------- # ----------------------- -----------------------
Total $59,544,101 $10,382,804 $69,926,905 $77,760,970 $7,834,066 $18,216,871 # $17,744,794

#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#

(2), (3) and (4) are net of specific self insured retention and aggregate retention.

(5) is from Exhibit WC-9.

(8) is based on a 0.5% interest rate and the payout pattern in Exhibit WC-2.
44



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-12
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Projected Losses Paid July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013

Claim
Period

Months of
Development

6/30/12

Percent
Losses

Paid

Months of
Development

6/30/13

Percent
Losses

Paid

Percent
Outstanding

Losses
Paid

7/1/12 to
6/30/13
[(5)-(3)]/

[100.0%-(3)]

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/12

Projected
Losses

Paid
(6)X(7)

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/13
(7)-(8)

Present
Value
Factor

Present
Value of

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/13
(9)X(10)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
----------------------- -------------------- ------------------ -------------------- ------------------ -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- ------------------ --------------------

to 1992/93 240.0 95.2% 252.0 96.7% 30.0% $289,375 $86,813 $202,562 # 0.99 $200,107
1993/94 228.0 95.1% 240.0 95.2% 2.0% 0 0 0 # 0.99 0
1994/95 216.0 95.0% 228.0 95.1% 1.9% 109,767 2,107 107,660 # 0.98 105,813
1995/96 204.0 95.0% 216.0 95.0% 1.9% 0 0 0 # 0.98 0
1996/97 192.0 94.9% 204.0 95.0% 1.8% 0 0 0 # 0.97 0
1997/98 180.0 94.7% 192.0 94.9% 3.6% 280,693 9,969 270,724 # 0.97 262,503
1998/99 168.0 94.4% 180.0 94.7% 5.0% 257,030 12,963 244,067 # 0.97 235,769
1999/00 156.0 93.9% 168.0 94.4% 7.7% 240,217 18,541 221,676 # 0.96 213,489
2000/01 144.0 93.0% 156.0 93.9% 13.3% 887,630 117,678 769,952 # 0.96 740,212
2001/02 132.0 91.2% 144.0 93.0% 20.6% 1,413,082 291,545 1,121,537 # 0.96 1,079,056
2002/03 120.0 89.2% 132.0 91.2% 18.2% 360,179 65,449 294,730 # 0.97 284,636
2003/04 108.0 87.0% 120.0 89.2% 16.8% 136,502 22,888 113,614 # 0.97 109,941
2004/05 96.0 83.7% 108.0 87.0% 20.5% 406,668 83,393 323,275 # 0.97 313,167
2005/06 84.0 80.1% 96.0 83.7% 18.1% 1,066,405 192,849 873,556 # 0.97 848,100
2006/07 72.0 72.8% 84.0 80.1% 26.8% 623,431 166,817 456,614 # 0.97 443,719
2007/08 60.0 65.0% 72.0 72.8% 22.3% 1,238,134 275,872 962,262 # 0.98 938,350
2008/09 48.0 57.5% 60.0 65.0% 17.6% 747,324 131,539 615,785 # 0.98 601,243
2009/10 36.0 48.7% 48.0 57.5% 17.1% 3,002,113 513,900 2,488,213 # 0.98 2,428,782
2010/11 24.0 36.1% 36.0 48.7% 19.8% 2,688,241 531,704 2,156,537 # 0.98 2,104,271
2011/12 12.0 14.4% 24.0 36.1% 25.3% 4,470,080 1,131,875 3,338,205 # 0.98 3,258,695
2012/13 0.0 0.0% 12.0 14.4% 14.4% 4,542,000 655,988 3,886,012 # 0.98 3,800,386

----------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- --------------------- --------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- # ---------------------------------------------
Total $22,758,871 $4,311,890 $18,446,981 # $17,968,239

#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#

(3) and (5) are from Exhibit WC-2.

(7) to 2011/12 is from Exhibit WC-11.  The amount for 2012/13 is from Exhibit WC-10.

(10) is based on a 0.5% interest rate and the payout pattern in Exhibit WC-2. 45



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-13
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Projected Losses Paid July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014

Claim
Period

Months of
Development

6/30/13

Percent
Losses

Paid

Months of
Development

6/30/14

Percent
Losses

Paid

Percent
Outstanding

Losses
Paid

7/1/13 to
6/30/14
[(5)-(3)]/

[100.0%-(3)]

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/13

Projected
Losses

Paid
(6)X(7)

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/14
(7)-(8)

Present
Value
Factor

Present
Value of

Estimated
Outstanding

Losses
6/30/14
(9)X(10)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
----------------------- -------------------- ------------------ -------------------- ------------------ -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- -------------------- ------------------ --------------------

to 1992/93 252.0 96.7% 264.0 97.7% 30.0% $202,562 $60,769 $141,793 # 0.99 $140,151
1993/94 240.0 95.2% 252.0 96.7% 30.0% 0 0 0 # 0.99 0
1994/95 228.0 95.1% 240.0 95.2% 2.0% 107,660 2,109 105,551 # 0.99 104,227
1995/96 216.0 95.0% 228.0 95.1% 1.9% 0 0 0 # 0.98 0
1996/97 204.0 95.0% 216.0 95.0% 1.9% 0 0 0 # 0.98 0
1997/98 192.0 94.9% 204.0 95.0% 1.8% 270,724 4,994 265,730 # 0.97 258,805
1998/99 180.0 94.7% 192.0 94.9% 3.6% 244,067 8,668 235,399 # 0.97 228,250
1999/00 168.0 94.4% 180.0 94.7% 5.0% 221,676 11,180 210,496 # 0.97 203,339
2000/01 156.0 93.9% 168.0 94.4% 7.7% 769,952 59,427 710,525 # 0.96 684,285
2001/02 144.0 93.0% 156.0 93.9% 13.3% 1,121,537 148,688 972,849 # 0.96 935,273
2002/03 132.0 91.2% 144.0 93.0% 20.6% 294,730 60,808 233,922 # 0.96 225,062
2003/04 120.0 89.2% 132.0 91.2% 18.2% 113,614 20,645 92,969 # 0.97 89,785
2004/05 108.0 87.0% 120.0 89.2% 16.8% 323,275 54,206 269,069 # 0.97 260,371
2005/06 96.0 83.7% 108.0 87.0% 20.5% 873,556 179,135 694,421 # 0.97 672,708
2006/07 84.0 80.1% 96.0 83.7% 18.1% 456,614 82,574 374,040 # 0.97 363,140
2007/08 72.0 72.8% 84.0 80.1% 26.8% 962,262 257,480 704,782 # 0.97 684,879
2008/09 60.0 65.0% 72.0 72.8% 22.3% 615,785 137,205 478,580 # 0.98 466,687
2009/10 48.0 57.5% 60.0 65.0% 17.6% 2,488,213 437,957 2,050,256 # 0.98 2,001,839
2010/11 36.0 48.7% 48.0 57.5% 17.1% 2,156,537 369,155 1,787,382 # 0.98 1,744,690
2011/12 24.0 36.1% 36.0 48.7% 19.8% 3,338,205 660,260 2,677,945 # 0.98 2,613,042
2012/13 12.0 14.4% 24.0 36.1% 25.3% 3,886,012 983,982 2,902,030 # 0.98 2,832,909
2013/14 0.0 0.0% 12.0 14.4% 14.4% 4,633,000 669,131 3,963,869 # 0.98 3,876,528

----------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------- ---------------------- --------------------- --------------------- ----------------------- ----------------------- # ---------------------------------------------
Total $23,079,981 $4,208,373 $18,871,608 # $18,385,970

#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#

(3) and (5) are from Exhibit WC-2.

(7) to 2012/13 is from Exhibit WC-12, (9).  The amount for 2013/14 is from Exhibit WC-10.

(10) is based on a 0.5% interest rate and the payout pattern in Exhibit WC-2. 46



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-14
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Loss Rate and Severity Trend

I.   Benefit Level Changes

Effecitive
Date

Benefit
Level

Change

Cumulative
Benefit
Level

Change
(1) (2) (3)

--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------
01/01/03 1.048 1.048
01/01/04 0.755 0.791
04/19/04 0.821 0.650
01/01/05 0.746 0.485
01/01/06 0.964 0.467
01/01/07 1.001 0.468
02/15/07 1.010 0.472
03/01/07 0.971 0.459
01/01/08 1.011 0.464
01/01/09 1.002 0.465
01/01/10 1.001 0.465

II. Loss Rate and Severity Trend

Claim
Period

Benefit
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Residual
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Retention
Index

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Loss Rate
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

(2)X(3)X(4)

Wage
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)

Severity
Trend

(2012/13
= 1.000)
(5)X(6)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

2002/03 # 0.444 1.219 0.990 0.536 1.344 0.720
2003/04 # 0.522 1.195 0.990 0.617 1.305 0.806
2004/05 # 0.819 1.172 0.990 0.950 1.267 1.204
2005/06 # 0.977 1.149 0.990 1.111 1.230 1.367
2006/07 # 1.001 1.126 0.990 1.116 1.194 1.333
2007/08 # 1.009 1.104 0.990 1.102 1.159 1.278
2008/09 # 1.002 1.082 0.990 1.074 1.126 1.209
2009/10 # 1.001 1.061 0.997 1.058 1.093 1.156
2010/11 # 1.000 1.040 1.000 1.040 1.061 1.104
2011/12 # 1.000 1.020 1.000 1.020 1.030 1.051

2012/13 # 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
2013/14 # 1.000 0.980 1.000 0.980 0.971 0.952
2014/15 # 1.000 0.961 1.000 0.961 0.943 0.906
2015/16 # 1.000 0.942 1.000 0.942 0.915 0.862
2016/17 # 1.000 0.924 1.000 0.924 0.888 0.821

Section I, (2) and (3) reflect NCCI data.

Section II, (2) is based on Section I, (2).

Section II, (3) is based on 2% trend per actuarial judgment.

Section II, (4) is based on industry statistics and actuarial judgment.

Section II, (6) is based on 3% trend.

47



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-15
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

List of Large Claims
Reported Incurred Losses Greater Than $250,000

Claim
Number

Date of
Loss

Claim
Period

Specific
Self-Insured

Retention

Unlimited
Paid

Losses
6/30/12

Unlimited
Case

Reserves
6/30/12

Unlimited
Reported
Incurred
Losses
6/30/12

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
--------------------------- ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------
SUSD-000010 12/19/1986 to 1992/93 Unlimited $267,372 $26,404 $293,776
SUSD-000015 12/14/1988 to 1992/93 Unlimited 327,763 0 327,763
SUSD-000017 5/31/1989 to 1992/93 Unlimited 302,132 0 302,132
SUSD-000019 12/1/1989 to 1992/93 Unlimited 208,335 117,299 325,634
SUSD-000024 9/25/1990 to 1992/93 Unlimited 284,391 0 284,391
SUSD-000026 3/1/1991 to 1992/93 Unlimited 509,097 0 509,097
SUSD-000035 7/27/1992 to 1992/93 Unlimited 404,893 62,803 467,696
SUSD-000036 8/4/1992 to 1992/93 Unlimited 263,545 0 263,545
SUSD-000060 2/27/1995 1994/95 Unlimited 711,912 99,341 811,253
SUSD-000070 1/30/1996 1995/96 Unlimited 268,793 0 268,793
SUSD-000076 6/30/1996 1995/96 Unlimited 356,606 0 356,606
SUSD-000112 8/21/1997 1997/98 Unlimited 497,814 0 497,814
SUSD-000140 11/24/1997 1997/98 Unlimited 380,882 27,003 407,886
SUSD-000147 1/5/1998 1997/98 Unlimited 243,475 74,716 318,192
SUSD-000183 4/23/1998 1997/98 Unlimited 247,836 30,034 277,870
SUSD-000185 5/1/1998 1997/98 Unlimited 300,385 52,962 353,348
SUSD-000207 6/22/1998 1997/98 Unlimited 408,465 0 408,465
SUSD-000314 5/1/1999 1998/99 Unlimited 245,543 161,993 407,537
SUSD-000321 5/13/1999 1998/99 Unlimited 363,858 24,173 388,032
SUSD-000353 9/7/1999 1999/00 Unlimited 691,767 0 691,767
SUSD-000544 5/5/2000 1999/00 Unlimited 264,798 25,726 290,524
SUSD-000578 6/2/2000 1999/00 Unlimited 468,086 93,007 561,093
SUSD-000665 8/15/2000 2000/01 Unlimited 9,234 340,766 350,000
SUSD-000706 9/13/2000 2000/01 Unlimited 217,717 93,087 310,804
SUSD-000770 10/25/2000 2000/01 Unlimited 257,420 0 257,420
SUSD-001118 4/20/2001 2000/01 Unlimited 253,840 116,861 370,701
SUSD-001154 5/4/2001 2000/01 Unlimited 275,603 39,002 314,605
SUSD-001877 4/11/2002 2001/02 Unlimited 251,214 122,630 373,844
SUSD-001885 4/15/2002 2001/02 Unlimited 954,477 836,524 1,791,001
SUSD-001906 4/24/2002 2001/02 Unlimited 292,116 15,950 308,066
SUSD-001981 5/22/2002 2001/02 Unlimited 276,858 0 276,858
SUSD-002245 10/5/2002 2002/03 Unlimited 302,218 0 302,218
SUSD-002393 12/11/2002 2002/03 Unlimited 256,710 13,723 270,432
SUSD-002418 1/7/2003 2002/03 Unlimited 279,612 68,924 348,536
SUSD-002605 4/2/2003 2002/03 Unlimited 305,115 55,046 360,162
SUSD-003407 7/26/2004 2004/05 Unlimited 163,879 106,121 270,000
SUSD-003442 8/26/2004 2004/05 Unlimited 264,437 0 264,437
SUSD-003848 6/15/2005 2004/05 Unlimited 253,428 104,330 357,758
SUSD-003874 7/25/2005 2005/06 Unlimited 271,414 87,696 359,110
SUSD-003915 8/24/2005 2005/06 Unlimited 284,626 446,058 730,684
SUSD-004473 10/18/2006 2006/07 Unlimited 1,303,074 2,108 1,305,182
SUSD-004583 1/16/2007 2006/07 Unlimited 208,408 50,292 258,700
SUSD-005126 3/3/2008 2007/08 Unlimited 94,118 179,274 273,392
SUSD-005265 5/19/2008 2007/08 Unlimited 285,657 87,213 372,870
SUSD-006186 9/1/2009 2009/10 Unlimited 31,824 270,524 302,348
SUSD-005882 9/3/2009 2009/10 Unlimited 288,860 319,646 608,506
SUSD-006277 6/2/2010 2009/10 1,000,000 228,220 87,159 315,379

The claim(s) indicated by a '*' have been limited in development.

(1) through (7) were provided by the District.

48



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit WC-16
WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Size of Loss Distribution

I. Reported Claim Count

Layer Prior 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Total

(2)…(7)

Non-Zero
Claim

Cumulative
Total

Non-Zero
Claim

Cumulative
% of Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

0 998 129 87 4 2 20 1,240
0.01 - 5,000 3,036 314 345 433 435 391 4,954 4,954 82.1%
5,000 - 10,000 188 16 21 11 15 9 260 5,214 86.4%
10,000 - 25,000 199 10 13 16 18 16 272 5,486 90.9%
25,000 - 50,000 147 11 12 13 10 5 198 5,684 94.2%
50,000 - 100,000 124 15 2 9 12 8 170 5,854 97.0%
100,000 - 250,000 108 5 5 9 2 4 133 5,987 99.2%
250,000 - 500,000 35 2 0 2 0 0 39 6,026 99.9%
500,000 - 750,000 4 0 0 1 0 0 5 6,031 100.0%
750,000 - 1,000,000 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 6,032 100.0%
Over 1,000,000 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 6,034 100.0%

Total 4,842 502 485 498 494 453 7,274 6,034

II. Total Reported Incurred Losses

Layer Prior 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Total

(2)…(7)

Non-Zero
Claim

Cumulative
Total

Non-Zero
Claim

Cumulative
% of Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
0.01 - 5,000 2,659,963 328,480 282,868 337,482 309,070 286,038 4,203,901 4,203,901 6.0%
5,000 - 10,000 1,272,304 101,192 148,054 73,608 94,299 66,161 1,755,617 5,959,518 8.5%
10,000 - 25,000 3,330,324 154,316 236,683 275,899 291,478 284,171 4,572,870 10,532,388 15.1%
25,000 - 50,000 5,290,196 375,310 439,377 483,936 366,500 203,713 7,159,032 17,691,420 25.3%
50,000 - 100,000 8,896,436 1,131,349 131,672 638,964 850,426 553,156 12,202,004 29,893,424 42.7%
100,000 - 250,000 16,372,048 765,331 796,416 1,352,668 282,841 597,948 20,167,253 50,060,677 71.6%
250,000 - 500,000 11,593,656 646,262 0 617,727 0 0 12,857,645 62,918,322 90.0%
500,000 - 750,000 2,492,641 0 0 608,506 0 0 3,101,147 66,019,469 94.4%
750,000 - 1,000,000 811,253 0 0 0 0 0 811,253 66,830,722 95.6%
Over 1,000,000 3,096,183 0 0 0 0 0 3,096,183 69,926,905 100.0%

Total $55,815,004 $3,502,241 $2,035,069 $4,388,789 $2,194,615 $1,991,187 $69,926,905 $69,926,905

Data was provided by the District. 49



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
4.0



RESOLUTION NO. 12/13-2939 1 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 2 

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 3 

ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 4 

 5 

TO SUPPORT SCHOOLS & LOCAL PUBLIC SAFETY PROTECTION ACT (PROPOSITION 30) 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, the Santa Ana Unified School District Board of Education is committed 8 

to making policy and financial decisions that enable the school district to provide 9 

quality educational programs and services to the school-age children of our 10 

community; and 11 

 12 

WHEREAS, since the onset of the state’s fiscal crisis in 2008, public schools 13 

statewide have experienced unprecedented funding reductions and apportionment 14 

deferrals totaling more than $20 billion; and   15 

 16 

WHEREAS, California public schools now rank 47 out of the 50 states in per-17 

pupil spending; and 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, California public schools have laid off over 40,000 educators since 20 

2008; and  21 

 22 

WHEREAS, the school funding crisis is at historic proportions with 188 school 23 

districts certifying possible difficulty in meeting their financial obligations over 24 

the next two years; and 25 

 26 

WHEREAS, the 2012-13 state budget is predicated on voter approval in November 27 

2012 of the Schools & Local Public Safety Protection Act (Prop 30), without which 28 

schools will receive additional mid-year funding reductions that will result in 29 

additional cuts in services and programs to students; and  30 

 31 

WHEREAS, the Santa Ana Unified School District has implemented reductions in 32 

the amount of $229.8 million cumulatively over the past nine years in order to 33 

remain fiscally solvent; and  34 

 35 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Santa Ana Unified School District Board of Education 36 

joins CSBA and school districts around the state in supporting funding measures and 37 

joins the Stand Up For Education campaign to urge the Legislature to work with CSBA 38 

and other education leaders to identify long-term adequate funding solutions for 39 

public schools; and 40 



-2- 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this body, the Santa Ana Unified School District, 1 

supports the passage of Proposition 30 that provides needed revenue to public 2 

schools.   3 

 4 

Adopted by the Governing Board of the Santa Ana Unified School District on by 5 

the following vote of the Board:   6 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Governing Board on September 25, 2012, by the 7 

following vote: 8 

 9 

AYES: 10 

NOES: 11 

ABSENT: 12 

 13 

 I, Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Secretary of the Governing Board, do hereby 14 

certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution passed 15 

and adopted by the Board at a regularly called and conducted meeting held on said 16 

date. 17 

 18 

 WITNESSED my hand this _________ day of __________________, 20______. 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

       ______________________________________ 23 

Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D., 24 

 Secretary of the Governing Board 25 

       Santa Ana Unified School District 26 

 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
5.0



Board Meeting 

9/25/12 

 

Administration Regulation: Title: Summary of Changes: 

 

Board Policy – 6163.2 

 

Animals at School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The revisions to BP - 6163.2 include: 

 

Changes in District practices and 

policies for seeing-eye dogs, services 

dogs, and animals on school campus:   

 

1. Service animals must meet 

licensing and certification 

requirements per California Food 

and Agriculture Code Section 

30850. 

2. District personnel must provide the 

animal’s Assistance Dog 

Identification tag and sign an 

affidavit affirming the specialty 

training of the animals. 

3. Owner or handler of service 

animal will be liable for any 

property damage. 

4. No feral or stray animal or animal 

colonies are to be fed or 

maintained on District property. 

 

 

 

 

   

 



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
BP 6163.2 

 
Instruction 

 
Animals at School and District Facilities 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that animals can be an effective teaching aid. In 

addition, instruction related to the care and treatment of animals teaches students 

a sense of responsibility and promotes the humane treatment of living creatures. 

 

Animals may be brought onto District facilities for educational purposes, subject to 

rules and precautions specified in administrative regulations related to health, 

safety and sanitation. Teachers shall ensure that these rules and precautions are 

observed so as to protect both the students and animals. 

 

Seeing-eye dogs and service dogs may accompany students, and the public as needed 

(cf.0410- Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities). Seeing-eye dogs 

and service dogs may accompany District personnel only as part of a formal 

reasonable accommodation approved through the District’s Interactive Process. 

Service animals must meet licensing and certification requirements per California 

Food and Agriculture Code Section 30850. District personnel must provide the 

animal’s Assistance Dog Identification Tag and sign an affidavit affirming the 

specialty training of the animal. 

 

The District assumes no liability for the safety of animals voluntarily brought to 

school. (cf. 5141-Health Care and Emergencies) (cf.5141.1-Accidents)(cf.5141.23-

Infectious Disease Prevention). Owners of service animals will be responsible for 

any damage done to District facilities by the animal. 

 
No feral or stray animal or animal colonies are to be fed or maintained on District    

facilities. 

 
Legal Reference:  

 

       CIVIL CODE 

 54.2   Individuals with Disabilities 

        EDUCATION CODE 

44806   Instruction in kindness to pets and humane treatment of   

              living creatures 

51202   Instruction in personal and public health and safety 

51540   Safe and humane treatment of animals at school 

FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 

30850   License and Certification of Service Animals 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

810-996.6  California Tort Claims Act, especially:    

815         Liability for injuries; immunity of public entity 

835   Conditions of liability 

 
Management Resources:  

HUMANE SOCEITY OF THE UNITED STATES 

Catalogue of Publications, 1996 

Guidelines for the Study of Animals in Elementary and Secondary School 

Biology, HE 1079 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Adopted:  (11-02)  Santa Ana, CA 



SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
BP 6163.2 

 
Instruction 

 
Animals at School and District Facilities 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that animals can be an effective teaching aid. In 

addition, instruction related to the care and treatment of animals teaches students 

a sense of responsibility and promotes the humane treatment of living creatures. 

 

Animals may be brought to onto school District facilities for educational purposes, 

subject to rules and precautions specified in administrative regulations related to 

health, safety and sanitation. Teachers shall ensure that these rules and 

precautions are observed so as to protect both the students and animals. 

 

Seeing-eye dogs and service dogs may accompany students, staff and the public as 

needed (cf.0410- Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities). Seeing-eye 

dogs and service dogs may accompany District personnel only as part of a formal 

reasonable accommodation approved through the District’s Interactive Process. 

Service animals must meet licensing and certification requirements per California 

Food and Agriculture Code Section 30850. District personnel must provide the 

animal’s Assistance Dog Identification Tag and sign an affidavit affirming the 

specialty training of the animal. 

 

The District assumes no liability for the safety of animals voluntarily brought to 

school. (cf. 5141-Health Care and Emergencies) (cf.5141.1-Accidents)(cf.5141.23-

Infectious Disease Prevention). Owners of service animals will be responsible for 

any damage done to District facilities by the animal. 

 
No feral or stray animal or animal colonies are to be fed or maintained on District    

facilities. 

 
Legal Reference:  

 

       CIVIL CODE 
 54.2   Individuals with Disabilities 

        EDUCATION CODE 

44806   Instruction in kindness to pets and humane treatment of   

              living creatures 

51202   Instruction in personal and public health and safety 

51540   Safe and humane treatment of animals at school 

FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 

30850   License and Certification of Service Animals 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

810-996.6  California Tort Claims Act, especially:    

815         Liability for injuries generally; immunity of public entity 
835   Conditions of liability 

 
Management Resources:  

HUMANE SOCEITY OF THE UNITED STATES 

Catalogue of Publications, 1996 

Guidelines for the Study of Animals in Elementary and Secondary School 

Biology, HE 1079 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Adopted:  (11-02)  Santa Ana, CA 



rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
6.0



Board Meeting 

9/25/12 

 

Administration Regulation: Title: Summary of Changes: 

 

Administrative Regulation – 

4032 

 

Reasonable Accommodation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The revisions to AR - 4032 include: 

 

Procedures that are being revised to 

update the AR to reflect recent 

changes that coincide with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, 

recent changes to current District 

processes, and updates to the Code of 

Federal Regulations, Title 28 and 29. 

The District will make reasonable 

accommodations for District 

employees with disabilities who 

qualify and require modifications to 

the work environment at their site. 

 

   

 



 SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 AR 4032(a) 

 

All Personnel 

 

 Reasonable Accommodation 

 

Definitions 

 

Disability, with respect to an individual, is defined as any of the following:  

(Government Code 12926; 29 CFR 1630.2) 

 

1. A physical or mental impairment that limits one or more of the major life 

activities. 

 

2. A record of such an impairment. 

 

3. Being regarded as having such an impairment. 

 

Limits shall be determined without regard to mitigating measures such as 

medications, assistive devices, prosthetics or reasonable accommodations, unless 

the mitigating measure itself limits a major life activity. (Government Code 

12926) 

 

Essential functions are the fundamental job duties of the position the individual 

with a disability holds or desires.  The term does not include the marginal 

functions of the position.  (29 CFR 1630.2) 

 

Reasonable accommodations what an employer may need to provide in connection with 

modifications to the work environment or adjustments in how and when a job is 

performed.  (29 CFR 1630.2) 

 

Qualified individual with a disability means an individual with a disability who 

satisfies the requisite skill, experience, education and other job-related 

requirements of the employment position and who, with or without reasonable 

accommodation, can perform the essential functions of such position. (29 CFR 

1630.2) 

 

Undue hardship is a determination based on an individualized assessment of 

current circumstances that shows that a specific reasonable accommodation would 

cause significant difficulty or expense.  A determination of undue hardship 

should be based on several factors,  

 

Requests for Reasonable Accommodation 

 

The District designates the position specified in BP 4030 - Nondiscrimination in 

Employment to coordinate its efforts to comply with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) and to investigate any and all related complaints.  (cf. 

4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) (cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning 

Discrimination in Employment) 

 

When requesting reasonable accommodation, the employee or employee's 

representative shall inform the employee's supervisor that he/she needs a change 

at work for a reason related to a medical condition. All requests for reasonable 

accommodations are to be forwarded to the District Office.  

 

When requesting reasonable accommodation during the hiring process, a job 

applicant shall inform the District that he/she will need a reasonable 

accommodation for the process. 

 

 

 

AR 4032(b) 



 

 

Employees who request a reasonable accommodation will be required to sign a 

medical release allowing the District to communicate in writing with the 

employee’s health care provider. 

 

Upon receiving a request to reasonably accommodate a qualified individual with a 

disability, the District will: 

 

1. Determine the essential functions of the job through a review of a job 

function analysis. 

 

2. Engage in an interactive process with the employee to review the request 

for accommodation, identify the precise limitations resulting from the 

disability, identify potential means for providing accommodation, and 

assess their effectiveness to perform the essential functions of the job. 

 

No accommodation shall impose undue hardship on the District. 

 

No accommodation shall pose any risk of substantial harm to the employee or 

others in the workplace. 

  

Appeal Process 

 

If the employee or applicant is not satisfied with the decision of the District, 

he/she may appeal in writing to the Superintendent or designee. This appeal shall 

be made within ten (10) days of receiving the decision and shall include:  

 

1. A clear concise statement of the reasons for the appeal. 

 

2. A statement of the specific remedy sought. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall give the employee his/her decision within 

fifteen (15) working days of receiving the appeal. 

  

Any further appeal for reasonable accommodation shall be considered a complaint 

concerning discrimination in employment and may be taken to the Governing Board 

in accordance with the District's procedure for such complaints. 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

CIVIL CODE 

51   Unruh Civil Rights Act 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

791-794e   Vocational Rehabilitation Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

12101-12213  Americans With Disabilities Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act, especially: 

35.107  Designation of employee 

36.101-36.608 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability by public 

facilities 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 

1630.2  Direct threat 

COURT DECISIONS 

Colmenares v. Braemar Country Club, Inc., 2003 Cal.LEXIS 1131 

Echazabal v. Chevron USA., (9th Circuit, 2000) 226F.3d 1063 

U.S. Airways, Inc. v Barnett, (2002) 535 U.S., 122 S.Ct. 1516 

 

 

Approved:  (9-95 10-96 3-05) Santa Ana, CA  



 SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 AR 4032(a) 

 

All Personnel 

 

 Reasonable Accommodation 

 

Definitions 

 

Disability, with respect to an individual, is defined as any of the following: 

 (Government Code 12926; 29 CFR 1630.2) 

 

1. A physical or mental impairment that limits one or more of the major 

life activities. 

 

2. A record of such an impairment. 

 

3. Being regarded as having such an impairment. 

 

Limits shall be determined without regard to mitigating measures such as 

medications, assistive devices, prosthetics or reasonable accommodations, 

unless the mitigating measure itself limits a major life activity. (Government 

Code 12926) 

 

Essential functions are the fundamental job duties of the position the 

individual with a disability holds or desires.  The term does not include the 

marginal functions of the position.  (29 CFR 1630.2) 

 

Reasonable accommodations that what an employer may need to provide in 

connection with modifications to the work environment or adjustments in how 

and when a job is performed that enable an individual with a disability to 

enjoy equal employment opportunities include, but are not limited to:  (29 CFR 

1630.2) 

 

1. Making existing facilities accessible and usable. 

 

2. Restructuring the job duties. 

 

3. Offering an alternative position which could be part-time or modified 

 work schedules. 

 

4. Acquiring or modifying equipment or devices. 

 

5. Changing tests, training materials or policies. 

 

6. Providing qualified readers or interpreters. 

 

7. Reassigning the employee to a vacant position. 

 

Qualified individual with a disability means an individual with a disability 

who satisfies the requisite skill, experience, education and other job-related 

requirements of the employment position and who, with or without reasonable 

accommodation, can perform the essential functions of such position. (29 CFR 

1630.2) 

 

Undue hardship is a determination based on an individualized assessment of 

current circumstances that shows that a specific reasonable accommodation 

would cause significant difficulty or expense.  A determination of undue 

hardship should be based on several factors, including: in light of a number 

of factors. These factors include the nature and cost of the accommodation in 

relation the size, resources, nature, and structure of the employer’s 

operation. (Title 42 (12101-12213) (29 CFR 1630.2) 



AR 4032(b) 

 

 

1. The nature and cost of the accommodation needed, taking into 

consideration the availability of tax credits and deductions and/or 

outside funding. 

 

2. The overall financial resources of the facility making the reasonable 

accommodation, the number of persons employed at this facility, the 

effect on expenses and resources of the facility, or the impact on the 

operations of the facility.  

 

3. The overall financial resources, size, number of employees, and the 

number, type and location of facilities of the District. 

 

4. The type of operation of the employer, including the structure and 

functions of the workforce, the geographic separateness, and the 

administrative or fiscal relationship of the facility involved in making 

the accommodation. 

 

5. The impact of the accommodation on the operation of the facility, 

including the impact on the ability of other employees to perform their 

duties and the impact on the facility's ability to conduct business. 

 

Requests for Reasonable Accommodation 

 

The District designates the position specified in BP 4030 - Nondiscrimination 

in Employment to coordinate its efforts to comply with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) and to investigate any and all related complaints.  

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) (cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning 

Discrimination in Employment) 

 

When requesting reasonable accommodation, the employee or employee's 

representative shall inform the employee's supervisor that he/she needs a 

change at work for a reason related to a medical condition. All requests for  

reasonable accommodations are to be forwarded to the District Office.  

 

When requesting reasonable accommodation during the hiring process, a job 

applicant shall inform the coordinator the District that he/she will need a 

reasonable accommodation for the process. 

 

Employee requests for reasonable accommodation may first be considered 

informally by the site administrator.  The site administrator shall consult 

with the coordinator before any decision as to accommodation is made. 

 

When the disability and/or the need for accommodation is not obvious, the 

coordinator may ask the employee to supply reasonable documentation about 

his/her disability.  In requesting this documentation, the coordinator shall 

specify the types of information that are being sought about the employee's  

condition, the employee's functional limitations and the need for reasonable 

accommodation.  The Employees may be asked who request a reasonable 

accommodation will be required to sign a limited medical release allowing the 

District to communicate in writing with the employee’s submit a list of 

specific questions to the health care provider. or vocational professional. 

 

If the documentation submitted by the employee does not specify the existence 

of a qualifying disability and explain the need for reasonable accommodation, 

the District may require the employee to submit to an examination by a health 

care professional selected and paid for by the District. 

 

 

 



AR 4032(c) 

 

 

Upon receiving a request to reasonably accommodate a qualified employee 

individual with a disability, the Coordinator shall District will: 

 

1. Determine the essential functions of the job through a review of a job 

function analysis. 

 

2. Engage in an interactive process with the employee to review the request 

for accommodation, identify the precise limitations resulting from the 

disability, identify potential means for providing accommodation, and 

assess their effectiveness. 3.Develop a plan for reasonable 

accommodation which is effective and allows the employee to perform the 

essential functions of the job. 

 

or to gain equal access to a benefit or privilege of employment and No 

accommodation shall does not impose undue hardship on the District. 

 

To qualify for a job, an individual No accommodation shall not pose a any 

significant risk of substantial harm to himself/herself  the employee or 

others in the workplace which cannot be eliminated or reduced by reasonable 

accommodation. 

  

The determination of whether an individual poses a significant risk of 

substantial harm to himself/herself or others shall be made on a case-by-case 

basis and shall be based on objective, factual evidence, taking into 

consideration the duration of the risks, the nature and severity of the 

potential harm, the likelihood that the potential harm will occur, and the 

imminence of potential harm.  (29 CFR Section 1630.2)  

 

The Coordinator may confer with the site administrator, the District medical 

advisor and/or other District staff before making a final decision as to the 

accommodation. 

 

Reasonable Accommodation Committee 

 

The Coordinator may appoint a Reasonable Accommodation Committee to review or 

assist in the development of appropriate plans to reasonably accommodate an 

employee or qualified job applicant who has requested an adjustment in work 

duties or environment because of known physical or mental disabilities.   The 

membership of this committee may change on a case-by-case basis.  The 

committee may include:  

 

1. A District administrator. 

 

2. A site administrator. 

 

3. A medical advisor or rehabilitation specialist. 

 

4. A certificated employee. 

 

5. A classified employee.  

 

Committee members shall be selected on the basis of their knowledge of the 

issues at hand, including: 

 

1. The specific functions and duties required in the position. 

 

2. The physical work environment. 

 

3. Available accommodations. 



 

AR 4032(d) 

 

 

At the coordinator's discretion, the employee or applicant requesting 

accommodation may participate in or be excluded from committee meetings.  If 

the employee or applicant is excluded from committee meetings, the coordinator 

shall communicate with him/her so that he/she has the opportunity to interact 

and contribute to planning the reasonable accommodation. 

 

The coordinator shall take steps to ensure the confidentiality of information 

related to medical conditions.  

 

Appeal Process 

 

If the employee or applicant is not satisfied with the decision of the 

Coordinator District, he/she may appeal in writing to the Superintendent or 

designee. This appeal shall be made within ten (10) days of receiving the 

decision and shall include:  

 

1. A clear concise statement of the reasons for the appeal. 

 

2. A statement of the specific remedy sought. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the coordinator and review 

the appeal, together with any available supporting documents.  The 

Superintendent or designee shall give the employee or applicant his/her 

decision within fifteen (15) working days of receiving the appeal. 

  

Any further appeal for reasonable accommodation shall be considered a 

complaint concerning discrimination in employment and may be taken to the 

Governing Board in accordance with the District's procedure for such 

complaints. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

CIVIL CODE 

51   Unruh Civil Rights Act 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

791-794e   Vocational Rehabilitation Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

12101-12213  Americans With Disabilities Act 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act, especially: 

35.107  Designation of employee 

36.101-36.608 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability by public 

facilities 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 

1630.2  Direct threat 

COURT DECISIONS 

Colmenares v. Braemar Country Club, Inc., 2003 Cal.LEXIS 1131 

Echazabal v. Chevron USA., (9th Circuit, 2000) 226F.3d 1063 

U.S. Airways, Inc. v Barnett, (2002) 535 U.S., 122 S.Ct. 1516 

 

 

 

Approved:  (9-95 10-96 3-05) Santa Ana, CA  



AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
September 25, 2012 

 
Board Meeting 

 
TITLE:  Approval of Personnel Calendar 
 
ITEM:  Action 
SUBMITTED BY: Chad Hammitt, Assistant Superintendent, Personnel Services 
PREPARED BY: Chad Hammitt, Assistant Superintendent, Personnel Services 
    
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval of the Personnel Calendar. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Board approval of the Personnel Calendar is required for all Certificated and Classified 
personnel reports, non-confidential leaves of absences, and effective dates of resignations and 
retirements. 
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Approve the Personnel Calendar. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CH:nr 

 

rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
7.0















































AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 

September 25, 2012 

 

 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Approval to Call for Nomination and Submission of Letter of Support 

for California School Boards Association Director-at-Large, 

Asian/Pacific Islander 

  

ITEM: Action 

SUBMITTED BY:    Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D., Superintendent 

PREPARED BY: Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana, Ph.D., Superintendent 

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  

 

The purpose of this agenda item is to seek Board approval to call for nominations and 

submission of letter of support for California School Boards Association (CSBA) Director-at-

Large, Asian/Pacific Islander. 

 

 

RATIONALE: 

 

The CSBA has issued a call for nominations for 2012 Director-at-Large, Asian/Pacific Islander. 

The call for nominations must come before the Board before a name from that District can be 

placed on the ballot.  Board member Yamagata-Noji has expressed an interest in serving as a 

CSBA Board of Director-at-Large. 

 

The Directors-at-Large election will take place November 28-29, 2012. 

 

 

FUNDING:  

 

Not Applicable 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the call for nominations and submission of letter of support for California School 

Boards Association Director-at-Large, Asian/Pacific Islander. 

 

 

 

 

TM/cg 

rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
8.0





AGENDA ITEM BACKUP SHEET 
September 25, 2012 

 
 

Board Meeting 
 

TITLE: Board and Staff Reports/Activities 
 

ITEM: Reports 
SUBMITTED BY:    Thelma Meléndez, Ph.D., Superintendent 
PREPARED BY: Thelma Meléndez, Ph.D., Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is for members of the Board of Education and staff to make 
announcements to the community regarding events and activities within Santa Ana Unified 
School District and the community as they relate to student achievement. 
 
 
RATIONALE: 
 
Members of the Board of Education have requested an item on the agenda of each regular 
meeting to provide an opportunity for announcements.  
 
This item will provide pertinent information to the general public. 
 
 
FUNDING: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Board members will make announcements regarding community events and activities within 
Santa Ana Unified School District and the community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TM:rr 

rosie.rosales
Typewritten Text
9.0


	Agenda
	Customer Service Employee of the Month for September 2012, Rocio Dominguez
	AIB

	Common Core State Standards Implementation Update – English Language Arts Focus
	agenda

	Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports
	PBIS Presentation

	Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting - September 11, 2012
	Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting

	Approval of Agreement with Intel-Assess, Inc., for Development and Creation of Assessments for 2012-13 School Year
	agenda
	contract

	Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Orange County United Way for Participation in Destination Graduation Initiative Grant for Intermediate Schools for 2012-13 School Year
	Agenda
	MOU

	Approval of Master Contracts and/or Individual Service Agreements with Nonpublic Schools and Agencies for Students with Disabilities for 2012-13 School Year
	AIBS - Master Contracts

	Ratification of Payment and/or Reimbursement of Costs Incurred for Designated Instructional Services for Students with Disabilities for 2011-12 School Year
	AIBS - Payment and Reimbursement

	Ratification of Provider Participation Agreement with California Department of Health Care Services for LEA Medi-Cal Billing Option Program
	AIBS - PPA
	Provider Participation Agreement

	Ratification of Purchase Order Summary and Listing of Orders $25,000 and Over for Period of August 29, 2012 through September 11, 2012
	Agenda
	PO Summary
	PO Listing

	Ratification of Expenditure Summary and Warrant Listing for Period of August 29, 2012 through September 11, 2012
	Agenda
	Warrant Summary Report
	Warrant Listing

	Approval/Ratification of Listing of Agreements/Contracts with Santa Ana Unified School District and Various Consultants Submitted for Period of August 29, 2012 through September 11, 2012
	Agenda
	Constultant List

	Approval of Disposal of Obsolete Unrepairable Computer Equipment, Miscellaneous Furniture, and Equipment
	Agenda
	Equipment List

	Authorization to Obtain Bids for Purchase of Classroom and Office Furniture Districtwide
	Agenda

	Authorization to Obtain Bids for Installation of Structured Cabling System and Network Equipment at Various E-Rate Eligible Sites Districtwide
	Agenda

	Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Wide Area Network Services Districtwide Under E-Rate
	Agenda

	Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Various Telecommunication and Internet Access Services Districtwide Under E-Rate
	Agenda

	Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Cisco Base Maintenance for Maintenance of Newtwork Equipment and Cabling Districtwide Under E-Rate
	Agenda

	Authorization to Obtain Request for Proposals for Lease of Copier Equipment Districtwide
	Agenda

	Approval of Rejection of Government Code §910 and §910.2 Claim Against Santa Ana Unified School District – File No. 12-06106 MH
	Agenda

	Acceptance of Completion of Contract for Bid Package No. 5 Ceramic Tile and Flooring at Willard Intermediate School Under Modernization Program
	Agenda

	Acceptance of Completion of Contract for Bid Package No. 15 Structural Steel, Metal Fabrication, Elevator Refurbishing, Handrails, Ornamental Steel Fence, Refurbish ADA Ramp, Concrete Patching, and Sacking at Willard Intermediate School Under Modernization Program
	Agenda

	Approval of Deductive Change Order No. 1 for Bid Package No. 2 Arch Wood Casework and Finish Carpentry at Willard Intermediate School Under Modernization Program
	Agenda

	Acceptance of Gifts in Accordance with Board Policy 3290 – Gifts, Grants, and Bequests
	agenda
	gifts list

	Acceptance of Actuarial Study of Workers’ Compensation Program as of June 30, 2012
	Agenda
	Actuarial Attachement A
	PPT
	Draft Report

	Adoption of Resolution No. 12/13-2939 – To Support Schools and Local Public Safety Protection Act (Proposition 30)
	Agenda
	Resolution No 2939

	Board Policy 6163.2 – Animals at School (Revised: For Adoption)
	Agenda
	Summary of Changes
	For Adoption
	First Reading

	Administrative Regulation 4032 – Reasonable Accommodation (Revised: For Implementation)
	Agenda
	Summary of Changes
	For Implementation
	First Reading

	Approval of Personnel Calendar
	AIB
	Attachment

	Approval to Call for Nomination and Submission of Letter of Support for California School Boards Association Director-at-Large, Asian/Pacific Islander
	CSBA DAL -Dr  Noji
	CSBA Nomination Form

	Board and Staff Reports/Activities
	Board and Staff Reports 9-25-12

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



